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One. Report to Shareholders

Dear shareholders, ladies and gentlemen:

Gamania Group's 2023 consolidated operating revenue was NTD 9.79 billion, operating gross profit
was NTD 3.79 billion, andmerating profit was NTD 640 million; under review, the annual revenue

and profit scale decreased, mainly due to small sales and no new product introductions. However,
through offline special events and localized operations, we have driven a significaasenm active
players. Additionally, under continuous cultivation of the digital entertainment landscape, our
diversified business revenue has steadily grown. The Company's net profit after tax reached NTD 580
million, and EPS was NTD 3.28.

In the faceof the challenges of the macro environment, Gamania Group has never stopped, and realize
the business goal of a pantertainment ecosystem through méditeted business strategies. Looking
back to 2023, the annual revisions, new classes, anddeaggevents of many key games have
consolidated player activity. Among them, "Lineage M" was revamped for the 6th anniversary, allowing
crosscountry battles between Taiwan and South Korea for the first time; for the 18th anniversary,
"MapleStory" opened up metopics through diverse credoerders, and also entered Taipei Music

Center to create larggcale parties to reward players and attract thousands of people to participate.
10,000 people have fun online and announced the biggest revision of the pashaddiion,

limited-edition events for the 14th anniversary of "Elsword" and "Mabinogi" gathering players to

interact through Vtuber and the community all drove the growth of monthly average active users.

Continuously pursuing the key growth momentundiwérsified business layout, Gamania Group's
services in payment;@mmerce, IP, information security and other fields are closely connected and
advancing hand in hand. In addition to optimizing the cash flow service, GASH also targets the new
generatiorof IP fans economy to effectively increase the contribution of digital collectors. Gamania
Payment focuses on the pantertainment channel, expands the payment scenarios such as ACGN and
amusement park, and creates an interesting payment experieztmenterce leisure shopping has

mainly focused on ACGN categories, which has led to an 80% increase in customers for several years
Discover richer original IP through "bfcreators" program, Gamania Group assists over 100 creators in

the matching of promotionaésources, and is developing towards cooperation with brokers; about



2,000 online manga titles have been accumulated on the literature and manga star platforms so far an
received 6 million views. In addition, to embrace the digital wave, Digicentre shihwecapabilities

of its information security technology, actively participated in cloud and information security
conferences, and provided customized solutions to enterprises, which drove the annual growth of its

commerce business by 1.5%.

Looking forwad to 2024, we expect the classic game "MapleStory" to create a new growth curve
through the largest revision in the past years, and to boost the revenue momentum side by side with tf
new distributords product " WapongKang andPMacas. SASH" t
has also introduced a new "swstore instant deposit” function that allows users to more safely store
services at the four major hypeommercial channels, and develop new types of digital products to
enrich the collection expemce. In terms of IP, the cartoon star collaborated with PILI puppet show

and the Chinese astrologer Tang Qiyang to cooperate with each other to expand new user forms. As tt
demand for information security and clebdsed information security of globalterprises continues

to rise, Digicentre is expanding its customers in diversified industries and in response to the net zero
carbon emissions issue. The ESG Intelligence Center uses digital tools to assist enterprises to quickly

introduce net zero emissisMmanagement to increase business development.

Gamania Group will continue to focus on "Data, Al, Globalization" and embrace the new wave of the
high-tech era. Thank you for your continued trust and guidance towards Gamania Group. We will
adhere to our camitment to sustainable development and move forward with solid operating

capabilities to share the Company's operating results with all shareholders.

| wish you

The best in all your endeavors and happiness anebemlfy of you and your loved ones!

Chairman and President

Liu, Po-Yuan



Business Report
1. 2023 Business plan Implementation results
Please refer to the following table for operating revenue, operating gross profit, net profit before tax
and net profit after tax in 2023.

Unit: NTD 1,000

ltem 2023
Operating income 9,790,860
Operating gross profit 3,794,800
Operating profit 639,695
Pretax net profit 687,621
Net profit attributable to the own
575,188
of the parent company

2. Analysis of Financial Income and Expenditure and Profitability
Refer to dall. Financi al Anal ysis of Past Five

3. Status of Research and Development

Refer to the descriptions about R&D accompl i st
Overview oford&taler ati ono f

4. Expected Sales Volume and Rationale

Due to the wide variety of operating revenues, the measurement units are different and the Company
has not prepared financial forecasts, so there is no statistical value of the expected sales volume.

5. Impacts from External Competition, Regulatory Environment, and Overall Operational Setting
(1) Impacts from External Competition and Overall Operational Setting

The popularization of smart phones and mobile devices has contributed to the rapid growths in the
production value brought about by games and has also attracted accession of foreign game service
providers at the same time. As a result, the competition on the domestic gaming market is getting
fiercer and fiercer. However, systemic impacts and riskis aathe external environment,
international trade disputes, and regional conflicts have impacted global economic growth and
increased uncertainty in the business environment. As an online enterprise, the core game
consumers are the main body and variausiness entities are connected to drive the Company's
growth momentum.

(2) Impacts from the Regulatory Setting
As far as the regulatory setting is concerned, besides complying with national policies and
regulatory requirements, respective units, namebifie, sales, and auditing, of the Company are
paying close attention to changes in important policies and laws in the nation at any time and are
precisely keeping track of the | atest inform
and operating@ivities accordingly and to ensure smooth corporate operations.

Chairman of the Board: Liu, Péuan Manager: Liu, Pe¥uan Chief Accountant: Su, Hsiklung



Two. Company Profile

Established onjune 12, 1995

Company Historyd

1.

Company mergers and@gsitions in the past year up to the date the Annual Report
was printed: None.

Transfer or exchange of stock options in large quantities by directors, supervisors, or
heavyweight shareholders holding more than 10% of all shares in the past year up to
the date the Annual Report was printed: None.

Company restructuring in the past year up to the date the Annual Report was printed:
None.

Major changes in operation or scope of operation in the past year up to the date the
Annual Report was printed: Me.

Change in the management and other important matters sufficient to impact
shareholder equity and their impacts on the Company in the past year up to the date
the Annual Report was printed: None.

Reinvestment in affiliates in the past year uphe date the Annual Report was

printed: Refer to dl. BW.f or mati on of A
Other Information:
1995 A The Company was established under the

information and software services.

1999 A Releasdthefirstsehmade product @ACONVENI ENT STOR
the market with unprecedented sales.
A The Company officially changed its name to Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.
(Gamania).
2000 A Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co. d.twas established.
A Brokered and released the online game
industry of Taiwan.
A Released the digital recreational ma g a
soon as it was available on the market.
A ACONENIENT STOREO was awarded fABest Str
by the Taipei Computer Association.
A Releasedthesethade product ACONVENI ENT STORE
2001 A ACONVENIENT STORE 20 was awarded fABest
De v el o the Taipei Gomputer Association.
A ALineaged was awarded fiBest Online Gam
A Gamaniads Corporate ldentity System (C
Nati onal Design Awar do.
2002 A Listed in Taiwan under the er symbol of 6180.
A Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. was established.
2003 A Theseimade online game ACOCOCANO was intrt
iGame Cato as its sound track.
A Gamaniads Corpor at e NaibeahLevieliGgld ARardsfdr eraativity.e
A fiHero: 108060 was awarded the Ani mati on
Content Prototype Awards.
2004 A Taiwan Index became part of Gamania (a
2005 A Brokeredad rel eased the online game fdAMapl e
game in Taiwan that changed the habits of players.
A Brokered and released the online game
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Attended the Tokyo Game Show for the first time where five of the Coyfgpselfmade

online games, including ALucent Hearto
Brokered and released the recreational
Brokered and released the online game

recreational game in deain Taiwan.
fiLucent Hearto won the Alnternational
series of contests of Taiwan.

Releasedtheseffiade onl i ne games fALucent Heart
particul ar, swaXxaawarnde 0®MB® in Japan.
Gamania was named one of Taiwanés Top
Brokered and released in Taiwan the on

fad of FPS shooting games.

iGamani a Cheer Up Foundadcumgopeap| ettt o
be yoursel fo.

Formedthe E ports team fAiGama Bear so -spord. bec
Gameastor brokered and released the on
Gamania Digital Entertainment (United States) Co., Ltd. wasledtad.

Gamania received an fiOQutstandingo awar
The original animation fiHero: 1080, a
US Warner Bros. and France Moon Scoop played in over 100 countries around the wo
including the US, the UK, and France through Cartoon Network.

The comprehensive platform fAiBeanfun!o
after another in Taiwan, the US, Europe, China, and Hong Kong.
Releasedthesethade onl i nvd NgAda@me si RAIODAI onl i ne 0,
Musoo0.

Gamania Digital Entertainment (Europe) Co., Ltd. was established.

ATWO Tl GERS CO. , LTD. 0 was established
Gash Point Card Digital Technology Co., ltdas est abl i shed and
diversify business in repsective areas.

Released the first iPhone game "Hero: 108" for the global iOS platform.

AiWeb Koi hi me Musoo0o won t h-enad2 0/ddasedGEaMESING
Awar do.

GamaBears won the national championship in Taiwasplrts fivey e ar i SFo &
ACrazyRacing KartRidero.

Founded the corporate childcare facildi
of Al ove to playo and t o dndleamingusphe game df g
acquiring knowledgeo.

Gama Bears won the Taiwarsgorts fiveyear national championship.

Brokered and released the cute online
popularity.

Listed in Cheel®0 Mégmagzamieds fdopt he Yol
topped the list of counterparts from Taiwan.

Gama Bears won the national championship in Taiwapdtssisy e ar A Cr azy
Kart Ri der o.

Attended the Tokyo Game Show; the R&D Company PlayCoo Corpomatimmessfully
attracted international attention with three of its-sei d e g a me s, inclu
Val kyri ao.

Founded AMIMIGIGIO®O to take charge of t
brokered the internati osfarlAndroid Sradéang Chnese.

-

In total, o it was downl oaded more than
Brokered and released the popul ar scif
The free server edition of the classicldng ved onl i ne g a mecedfitlL i

became one of the most popular games of the year in Taiwan. A headcount of more th
million people signed up for the first time.

iDragon Pokero, the famous Japanese ca
The publicfundr ai si ng pl at f or M CKyE RiShoe waasme na fr
entrepreneurship teams with diversified opportunities and cultural and creative, gaming
animation, design, audiovisual, technology, and public interest proposals are welcome
Reinvested in fiJol beyfootizecolingdet al 6 t o of
Established the online audiovisual new
new perspectives for online entertainment.

Establi shed fiGash JpatypaymenPagopodunite®s secur e
Listed consecutiveljn Cheer s Magazineds fATop 100 ¢
2015 and topped the list of counterparts from Taiwan.

Introduced the popul ar RPG game fFinge
I ntroduced the mobile phone edition nédP



2016

2017

> >> > > >

>

game AMapl estoryo.

Introduced themobile nd dual platform game fLinea
Announced collaboration with the Japan mobile game leader GungHo to jointly enter tt
markets in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao.

Gash Point Pay received the officialdiness license to run as an exclusive electronic pay
institution for domestic O20 physical store payment service and joined hands with Tai\
Taxi, E.SUN VENTURE CAPITAL CO.,LTD., TAIWAN SECOM CO., LTD., and
FamilyMart, among others to jointly expatite scope of application for the payment servi
and to deploy comprehensively on the electronic payment market.

Jol Il ywi z established fdnrnereeiplattormdmall Globel with
quality historical store products.

COTURE introducedte t al ent show fAGamania 20 To
multi-screen realime interactive audiovisual entertainment show.
Introduced online exchange mar ketpl ace
model.

fiGash Point Card.Di dittdaldo Tcehcahnngeeldo g yt sCon
Introduced fAAzion Corporationo and fAME
strategic partners of fDigicentreo and
Invested in ANOWndeplyoentt o further media
Joined hands with the Japan mobile game leader GungHo and introduced the popular

RPG chesshoatdy pe mobi l e game fASummons Board
million players and members.

Brokered and released the popularEPSassi ¢ onl i ne game ex
Online 260; more than 500 thousand peop

to reignite the passion for FPS games.

Introduced the original classic mudiased social networkingrientedmobile game
APLAN; it combined the el emen$s wlhilCOT
innovative videegame interactive entertainment model. The game was downloaded mc
a million times.

iGash Point Pay Co., LtHAY CW®.a,ngleTdD.iodt.s
A GAMA PAYO officially went online to c¢
payment. The goal is to become a leading brand in electronic payment in Taiwan.
The masterpiece of COTURE A GamanietyShHw
Awardo of the 51st Golden Bell Awards
the awards in Taiwan.

The Gamania Group was officially relocated to its new headquarters in Neihu and turn
a new leaf as a comprehensive vietsed pterprise.

Introduced thereal i me communi cati on software fAB
communication requirements of intuition, dating and events, and redefines the network
model of the new generation to provide the most interesting and trendy odcatian
experience.

Listed in Cheers Magazinebs fATop 100
best ranking in history, and topped the list of counterparts from Taiwan. The Group cor
to live up to its ciomepeasce nared ofamdiin
quality workplace with benefits.

Obt ained the exclusive deal ership of t
for Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao. It was released to the market concurrently in Taiw
Hong Kang and Macao on December 11 and the number of members went up to 2.43 |
within only 20 days. The highest record was over 1.11 million people active in one sing
and more than 400 thousand people online at the same time; both were the nevorette
gaming market. Meanwhile, it had been topping the iOS list of best sellers and the Goc
Play list of highest revenue for three weeks in a row.

For the classic flagshi p eanl0yearalippessien
five-turn corients were introduced. The popularity was unprecedented.

As part of its internationalization strategy, GASH cooperated with the Japan cash flow
platform BitCash to reach out to the world.

Fundr ai sing for the first nost aflWEBACKERS me
rendered more than NTD 7 million raised, the highest record in the&isidg history of
game publications in the world.

COTURE introduced Boy's Love drama fDa
triggered heated discussions onlara it was viewed 15 million times.

Jollywiz obtained the exclusive dealership of the international brand Vita Coco in Taiwe
crossborder ecommerce operation reached out to the largesnemerce platform Lazada i
Southeast Asia.

Jollywiz venturedvi t h si sters and formed fABjolly
e-commerce social media capable of producing its own media content, running its own
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2020
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e-commerce platform, and managing its own brand.

Listed in Cheers Magaari ntelbes YioTuorpg 1®e0n er
The Group took part in the Taipei Game
businesses, namely GASH, COTURE, GAMA PAY, and Swapub. Starting with games,
AV media, mobile pay, and secehdnd exchange markefje were combined. The
deployment covering various types of mobile applications facilitated the Group to grow
toward being a comprehensive weésed enterprise.

GASH released its new business model for the gaming industry during the Asia Blockc
Summitfor the first time in the third quarter, the 110 (Initial ltem Offerings), which triggel
inquiries from a lot of game operators.

The mobile shopping platform centering on networkirgpeimerce iJ ol | yBuy 0
innovative groupshopping model and its cdrimation with Beanfun! allowance spending
successfully boosted brand awareness.

The media business took a step further. In the third quarter of 2018, Nownews officially
became a subsidiary of the Group; it is positioned to be the engine for originattsafiten
Taiwan and contributes to a more robust foundation of the Group while the latter grows
a comprehensive webased enterprise.

The first Corporate Social Responsibility Report of Gamania won the Golden Award in
AiCor por at ey SRiespaaritn afwalridts 0 of t he 12t h
Awards.

Listed in Cheers Magazinebs ATop 100 C
and ranked 23rd, the bester in history.

The Group's kindergarten "Young Gamania Garden" Wwerptiblic space category of the 1
"Taiwan Interior Design Award" in 2019, demonstrating a new height of corporate welfe
Continued with the AExpedition to Sout
First, a smal/l i Soiudrmo Pwd ® Melve niturteh &
Group in Neihu where challenges countered in the south pole expedition and its prepa
were released to the public. It was recognized by 2019 Germany Iconic Awards. Coope
with Discoveryin2019androd uced t he adventure scient
South Poledo and held the first special
year entitlSedthG®Pol 80 Theme Ticket Exh
generation to be braver their dreams.

Obtained exclusive dealership for Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao for thgaemes

ALi neage REMASTEREDO and fAiDragon Nesto
ASinTal esdo, and AKomor i Li f edo anrdifiedptapets
to maximize the game player base.

Entertainmentdo usi ness company fAJol |l yBuyod was
and Games) populations, with PiLi Puppet Show, Kadokawa, Tong Li and Beast Kingd
participating. Meanwhile, multiple sia¢ shopping services and the painless store platfori
were launched to provide complete 2C and Zi®mmerce services.

The joint venture WalkerMedia was established with Taiwan Kadokawa. Technological
innovation was applied to travel and food informaticneating a onstop fulfilling
intelligence website for those who love to travel and enriched contents were introducet
Beanfun! In the future, it will be planned to combine memberships of both for maximize
synergistic effects in daily life entertairemt services such as intelligence/information, gat
and payment.

DIGICENTRE rendered fruitful results in overseas deployment. Its branch office Hyper
established in Singapore and it collaborated with the Israel information security compa
Reblazen providing new services. Domestically, on the other hand, it successfully ente
medical care and national defense fiedls. The cloud information security service contin
grow.

To celebrate its 25th anniversary, Gamania Group held an exfikition "Stuck and
Unstuck" and released the 25th anniversary film "Come Out Together".

The 2019 AGo! Go! South Poled special
2020 Germany Red Dot Design Award for
Communicati on Designo, the 2020 Good D
and many other special honors.

The Gamania Group took part in thé"Iiwan Corporate Sustainability Award screening
and won fASust-&Siidaleirloi leaySdfReangbotycEaadmpleTalent
Devel opment 0.

The Gamania Group took part in the fifth Sports Enterprise Certificate screening and re
the d A2020 | Sports Enterprise certif
of Education.

Listed in Cheers Magazineodts fiTop 100 th@ear
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and also the only enterprise selected from the industry of Taiwan.

One of the finalists for the second Annual Enterprises Protection Award.

Gamania has been devotedttwporate governance over the long term and hopes to
strengthen communications with stakeholders and information disclosure by improving
function of its Board of Directors, setting up the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, independent directpiand corporate governance supervisors, creating maxit
shareholder equity and realizing sustainable corporate operation.

For the first time, the Group hosted two interactive live shows, "Gamania Online Carni
which integrated the gaming, paymenta@nmerce, and daily entrance beanfun! resource
Gamania Group.

GungHo Gamania brokered the virtual I i
was released by Shanghai Ruluo Network Development and Shengqu Games and it w
officially online onboth platforms in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao.

The Group obtained the exclusive dealership of the Traditional Chinese version (for Ta
Hong Kong and Macao) of the brandw pinball RPG mobile game World Flipper
co-developed between leading Japanesesgdeveloper Cygames and our subsidi@itail.
We also partnered with leading South Korean game developer Kakao Games to jointly
the AThe Legendary Moonlight Sculptoro
In response to the surge iardand for remote work in 2020, Digicentre has focused on tt
"Amazing Thor Smart Security Office" solution that allows for rapid setup, backup, and
information security. At the same time, it has collaborated with drastd security compar
Reblaze to deelop a robot for traffic identification. Network security risk assessments sl
big data analysis and threat intelligence continuous monitoring from outside the enterp
have become a new type of solution.

The video fADar e cted ehraaltlieonng ecof ftohre tGreo L
affirmation of the Brands and Communication Design category of the Red Dot Design .
in 2021.

Rated the top 6~20% among TREsted companies at the 7th Corporate Governance
Evaluation.

Won the Bronzéward at the 3rd Annual Enterprise Environmental Protection Award
(AEEPA), the highest honor for environmental protection in Taiwan.

Nomi nated for the ATop 100 Most Admire
Magazine for 16 consecutive years, @&the only game developer on the list.

Gamania Care Foundation held the "Summer School" in 2021 to transform the physics
lectures to online for the first time, with the theme of "Adventure Unlocked", and active
break the time, space and qualificatiestrictions.

The 2021 Gamania Winter Carnival was held in collaboration with Syntrend Creative |
the center of ACG, to create an event for gamers through online merge offline (OMO).
livestream reached a record 16,000 people and the total nunpspdé exceeded 1 millior
The 2021 Gamania Summer Carnival combined the ACG, music, and novel domains fc
first time to broadcast differentp@annt er t ai nment contents ¢
virtual studio, for 5 consecutive days. Besidesating gamers and audiences from differe
social groups, the event created over 5 million views and a reach of nearly 1.7 million |
in total, creating a new record for the event.

One of the main products of Gamania Group "MapleStory" has reacheaemghts. The
team is aiming to expand the user base by rejuvenating the brand. In 2021, the brand"
further improved to become a "PC game trendsetter" and continue to stack up the usel
confidence index which reached a record high in terms of reviera single month, a single
quarter, and a year since listing.

Thebrandh ew pi nbal l RPG mobi ldevelgpedrbetweénWiading d
Japanese game developer Cygames and our subgidiatyai | , and fAWor
classic IP from Eyedentity Games of South Korea, both of which are representathbyi6,
started service in Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao.

Gamania Group established the braedv Literature Star and Comics Star platforms to er
the electronic (digital) literature and comics markets, turning beanfun! into the unique
platform app that &érs electronic literature and comics contents in Taiwan. The Group ¢
integrated game,-eommerce and payment services to complete the deployment for me
production, OMO exhibition, and domestic and overseas channels to build an unprece
contentt P ecosystem for Taiwanédés original
commercialization mechani sms for works
contents.

Gamania Group received a total score of 2.4 in the 2022 ESG evaloiti@international
evaluation agency FTSE Russell (the highest FTSE Russell evaluation score is 5 point
Gamania Group received a total score of 16.7 in the 2022 ESG evaluation of Sustainal
international evaluation organization (the lower $wsstainalytics score, the better), and wi
rated as a Low Risk company.
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2023

Gamania Group received a total score of 50.73 points in the 2021 ESG disclosure scol
Bloomberg, an international financial information company (the higher the Bloomberg [
disclosure score, the better).

Gamania Group was rated top 6~20% among Hifed companies at the 8th Corporate

Governance Evaluation.

Gamania Group won the Bronze Award for two consecutive years at the 4th Annual En
Environmental Protection Award (AEBFR, the highest honor for environmental protection
Taiwan.

Gamania Group has completed greenhouse gas inventory and inspection, ahead of th:
regulatory authoritiesdéd time |Iimit and
net zero carbonreissions and climate and environmental issues.

In 2022, the Gamania Cheer Up Foundation launched a new initiative called "GoNext
continue supporting two young people with a big dream: Taiwan mountaineer Lui,
ChungHan successfully climbed the worldfgrd highest peak Kanchenjunga without
oxygen, and Taiwan football teenager Yuan, Y@igeng made his debut in the European
Football League. The Group officially
Summer School students to hike 50 kildene to challenge the National Greenway in the
mountains and seas; at the end of the year, we also invited top marathon runners to jo
complete the preliminary study of the "Shore to Top" super marathon track, advocating
spirit of fearlessness ardventure.

The Group's curated brand "2022 Gamania Carnival Summer Call" launched a new bri
identity, injected the elements of original entertainment film and television IP "Atomic Y
for the first time, with the Group's services and online acts/ibiganized by beanfun!.
beanfun! under Gamania Group! launched a new service "Fun Market" to create a legi
authorized IP digital collectible platform, and also provided B2B and C2C digital comm
trading platforms for collectibles, game propstual goods and other treasures.

The talent show "Atomic Youth" jointly produced by Gamania Group and Wildfire
Entertainment was officially aired, and integrated with the Group's diverse digital capac
such as the launch of the Atomic Youth digital eotion "Atomic Energy Box" by Music
Point GASH through crosisorder cooperation to deeply integrate typical entertainment f
and television content with digital services, and create a new digital entertainment moc
One of the key products under GamaBiaup, "MapleStory" has created a new high in
operation. The team continues to strengthen the brand's youthfulness management to
its user base, and collaborated with welbwn idol groups both domestically and
internationally in 2022.

The Group otained the exclusive dealership in Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau of "Tree
Savior: Mobile Remakeo of South Korean
Seung kyu, the father of "RO".

GASH, a subsidiary of Gamania Group, officially launched the "BlockcBaaS
(Blockchain as a Service) oséop integration service" to provide partners with technical
support and consulting services in aspects of production contracts, casting websites al
community integration marketing.

Gamania Group, in collaboration witlaipei Pop Music Center, integrated music and digi
technology and jointly released the "Chang;Stweng Special Exhibition Digital Collection’
for the "Fly Me to the Moon & Backo sp
to the Group's paantertainment landscape.

Gamania Group supports the development of domestic culture and creativity, and "C«

Star" promotes the diversified development of original IP. "Marry My Dead Body" was

authorized as a prequel to the platform's first filneap t at i on of t he

Fi s ho o-knowinldamesticfilmI“The Little Girl in Red" series was authorized to

adapt the manga under authorization to help excellent IP expand the readership and

diverse digital viewing experiender the audience and fans.

Gamania Group announced that it will jointly invest in the-$eltvice entertainment

company "TPOP Entertainment" with senior media producer ChaHsleng of the

Cultural Content Planning Institute, jointly promote the develept of Taiwan's film,

television, audio and entertainment industry and strive to create an internationally

competitive music trend, and magnify the value and commercialization momentum of

The 2023 Gamania Spring Carnival will introduce diversifiednenand offline

entertainment experiences, bring together all of our classic games, and launch "NPC

Game Market" online to reward players. "Gamania Carnival Show" was held in Kaoh:

as a tweday event and attracted nearly 30,000 people.

The mobilephone information security protection system "appGuard" developed by th

Company's HyperG subsidiary has obtained EAL2 certification of Common Criteria

(Common Criteria for Security Assessment, hereinafter referred to as CC certification

internation&IT product security certification. It is the first time that Gamania Group ha

obtained this certification for app security products; the "appGuard" cooperation custt
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cover various fields such as games, retail, and payment, and the domestic findastay
accounts for more than 50% of the market.

The Taiwanese play "Convenience Store 1999", an adaptation of "The Pocket Edition
Convenience Store", officially started filming. The Taiwanese play "Convenience Stor
1999" was funded by Gamaniadsp, produced by SELF PICK and Coture New Media,
invited Hong Kong star Shawn Yue and wiellown movie star Lee LeZen to perform on
the same stage to create a transcendental of moving séigiarestories.

beanfun! will increase support for dortieexcellent entertainment content and provide
diverse and interesting online and offline applications and experiences; as the official
sole support platform for the wekhown domestic female group "Future Girls", combinir
the key function of the ptform "Show Together" and entering into the digital fan econa
"See What You Listen" was planned to be stationed in the-&mae offline music event
"Fireball Festival". The twalay event attracted more than 10,000 people, effectively tu
music &ins into graphic novel readers, and the derived reading rate reached 35%.
The 2023 Gamania Spring Carnival made its first appearance at Taipei Manga Expo,
combining classic characters from its popular games "MapleStory", "Elsword",
"Mabinogi" to create tle major exhibition areas to interact with players, and also
integrated its digital services "Pantertainment IP" exhibition area was also created to
showcase the innovative strength of original IP.

NOWnews integrates Al and big data technologies inthaaisual news applications, and
launched the hypeaeralistic Al anchor "Ni Zhen" to broadcast news 24 hours a day, ain
at the fast pace of modern life and the young generation's high familiarity with audiov
content.

"MapleStory" started its sixtbnline and offline activities in July, with nearly 700,000
people participating, creating a phenomenal momentum, and organize "NEW AGE 2(
MapleStory party and beyond", the first game brand stationed in Taipei Music Center
create a musical feast.

"Lineage M" is undergoing a 6th anniversary revision. The first Taiwan/South Korea
dungeon "Temple of the Void" will be available for a limited time. Taiwan, Hong Kong,
Macau servers are now available for players to compete for rewards together.

In the 202FESG evaluation conducted by international evaluation institution, S&P Glo
Gamania Group achieved a total score of 46 points and a PR value of 96, ranking arn
top 4 in the industry in the world (S&P Global has a maximum evaluation score of 10(
pants).

Gamania Group continues to refine its ESG practices and strives for greater internatis
visibility. In the 2023 ESG evaluation conducted by the international evaluation agenc
FTSE Russell, Gamania Group achieved a total score of 2.9 (the HgiststRussell
evaluation score is 5 points).

Rated in the top 6%20% of all TPEXisted companies in the 9th Corporate Governanc
Appraisal in 2022.

Gamania Groupds employee restaurant "
Dining Guide "Corporat&reen Food First Avard" and became a member of the "Gree
Food Declaration" campaign promoted by the Green Dining Guide, and continues to-
care of employee health and environmental friendliness as our goals to implement
sustainable corporate developrhen

In 2023, Gamania Care Foundation will continue to promote "Go Next" spirit and hos!
"Gamania Coast to Top Ultra Marathon" test event, inviting Taiwanese elite runners a
high-profile runners to establish risk management and supply plans, and @haito
international competition certification and build an adventure track that competes witt
rest of the world; Gamania Adventure Academy led youths on -&ildi@eter hike to
challenge the mountains, seas, and natural lakes of a nddvebgre@way; the Dream
Project continued to support mountaineer Lu Zhbiag in reaching the summit K2 witho
oxygen; football teenager Yuan Yu@heng transferred to CF Fuenlabrada and particip:
in the promotion of football in rural areas during the retorfdiwan; established the first
U12 community club basketball team in Hualien, "Hualien Gamania Monkeys", to
supplement the lack of local sports education resources and rooted in the spirit of ad
and encourage youths and children to believe in $ebras and dream boldly.
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Three. Corporate Governance Report

|.  Organizational System:

(I) Organizational structure:

Shareholders
meeting

Audit Committee meeting

Compensation and
Remuneration Committef:
meeting

Board of Directors
meeting

Nomination Committee

Group Audit Office

Chief Executive
Officere s Office

Original Chief Strategy Enterprise Chief Financial Human Chief Operatin
Creatign Cente Officere s Communication Brand Center Officere s Resources Officer':';) Ofﬁceg
Office Office Office Office
. . . Accounting
Global Businesy | Intemal Service| Strategic Inform.’_;\tlon Hidol Product Big Da“"? and Information . .
N A Deployment Service L Data Science — Business Unit
Office Division e A R&D Division L Management
Division Division R&D Division e
Division
Strategic
. Fund
Stral;t_egl_c R&D — Management — Oprgr[.j';\L:i%tn
vision Division pera
Division
L— Legal Division — R&D Division
Information
— Technology
Division
Product
11 — Development
Division




(I

Major Departments and Their Scope of Operation:

Unit

Task and Responsibility

Chi
Office

ef Execut i

Prepares the ovetdatrategic goals of the Group and centrally manages and supervises the implementation of Gro
business as a whole.

Group Audit Office

Plans and implements the internal control system.

Chief Operating Officer's
Office

Centrally plans and implements opgons involving enggame and mobikgame products, membership expansion, an
platform creation as well as supervise operations at respective departments.

Optimizes the corporate financial structure, draws up corporabedial strategies, schedules corporate funds, detern
investment direction, manages risks, processes accounts, and produces and analyzes financial and accounting

Chief Fi nanci|andreports.
Office The Legal Division is responsible for reviewing contracts and damgs.
The Sustainable Planning Office is responsible for the implementation of corporate sustainable development affa
enhancing the value of sustainable development.
Chief Strateg Promotes ho'riz'or?tal integration of subsidiades devglops big da}ta application vyithin the groyp. Guides fgcus prd
Office between subsidiaries or the group and other companies and review project business strategies and monitors var

data for the reference of judging business strategies.

HumanResources Office

Plans and implements recruitment, educational trainings, compensation and welfare, and employee relations thr
the Group.

Brand Center

Communicates the essence of Gamania as a brand and reinforces brand depth. Takes chargelafdat affdirs such
as brand identity, brand image, branding, branded goods, and Group cultural dissemination in order to maintain
consistency of the brand internally and externally.

Enterprise Communication
Office

Takes charge of ttihensr oplpdrss pahd iicmpleément s the Gr
luncheons with the media and press conferences, releases Group news and accepts interviews by the media, m
media relations, monitors daily news, and manages crises.

Original Creation Center

Responsible for product content creation and related commercial cooperation within the Group.

Strategic Deployment
Division

Takes charge of related operational affairs between the Group and outside parties as part of strategiborollabora

Hidol Product R&D Division

Planning and function development of Hidol app products.

Information Service Division

Takes charge of integrating related
and helps défie strategic development and technical research for new services.

application an

Internal Service Division

Takes charge of planning fixed assets, purchases, contracts and documentation, and occupational safety, among
logistic and administrative resources, assgstn other services and measures such as employee business tours, en
cafeterias, and the fithess room, and centrally managing related properties such as the corporate building in Neil

Global Business Developmer
Division

Searches for, approachesd negotiates business development, collaborative opportunities with respective subsid
gaming dealership and business to support with business operation, collects market and competition information
new trends, maintains relations with aators and customers.
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ll. Directors, Supervisors, President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice Presidents, and Heads of
Departments and Branches

() Directors

April 22, 2024

Other managersilirectors,

8 4 Shares held by . or supervisors who are t
& 5 @ » ) Shares held in . o
T = Gender| 3 Initial date | Shares held when electe Shares held now spouse and minor ) . spouse or a relative withi| 2
. s S Date Elected|=. . someone else's nan| Positions served at the Company and ot g
Position (& Name 5 of child(ren) Background . the second degree of | 3
o 5 (Inauguratd) | | . i companies at present . . =
g S 2 | inauguration kinship 5
a ” ® Number of |Shareholdin¢ Number of |Shareholding Number| Shareholdin¢ Number of| sharéwolding » ] )
o Age ) ) ) Position| Name| Relationshig
shares ratio (%) shares ratio (%) |of shareq ratio (%) shares | ratio (%)
Chairman and CEO of the o
Male 3 Company 5 o
Liu June 20. |3 Executive Manager of = @
Chairman|R.O.C. ' " |® |April 1, 1995 19,372,202 | 11.04 | 17,491,305| 9.97 0 0 13,600,000 7.75 FULLJIHN Machinery Refer to Note 1 for details None g 38
Po-Yuan 2023 5 Departmat of Mechanical 5 z
51-60 % Engineering, Hwa Hsia Y
University of Technology N
_|
>
Wanin @
R.O.C, . - ® | June 8, 201] 15,101,000 8.6 15,186,000 8.65 0 0 0 0 - -
International 15
. June 20, |p
Director 7] None None
2023
Representativ Mal Chairman of Wanin
ale International Co., Ltd. . . ) )
R.O.C| Hsiao, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 and President Chairman and President of Wanin International
ChengHao | 41-50 Ling Tung University
Chairman and CSO of Wistron Corporation
L — President of Acer Incorporat{ Chairman of WistrorDigital Technology Holding
in, = )
. ) | Male | June 20, |3 June 17, Bachelor of Electronic  Company ) ) ‘
Director |R.O.C.|HsienMin @ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Computer and Control  |Independent Director of Elan Microelectronics None None
2023 [§ 2020 Engineering, National Chiad Corporation
9 % Tung University
71-80
Independent Director of Bora Pharmaceuticals C|
Ltd.
Male Director of Shun Yi Investment Co., Ltd.
S—' President of SHUNG YE |Director of Shung Ye Trading Co., Ltd.
Independen Lin, June 20, |@ TRADING CO., LTD Director of Lien Chen Automotive Co., Ltd
@ , . . .
Director R.O.C, RuetYi 2023 ﬁ June 8, 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 George Washington Universi| Director of Yue Ye Motors Corporation None None
) Master of Management [Director of Yue Ye Motors Corporation
51-60 o Director of Golden Stout Industry Co., Ltd.
Director of An De Shun Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Startrii Co., Ltd.
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Position

ajIoIwopalalsibal
1o AureuoneN

Name

Gender|

Age

Date Elected

(Inaugurated

901JJ0 Ul WiaL

Initial date
of
inauguration

Shares held when electg

Shares held now

Shares held by
spouse and minor
child(ren)

Shares

someone else's nan|

held in

Shareholdin
ratio (%)

Number of
shares

Number of |Shareholdin

shares ratio (%)

Number|
of shares

Shareholdin
ratio (%)

Number of]
shares

Shareholding

ratio (%)

Background

Positions served at the Companylather
companies at present

Other managers, directo
or supervisors who are tl|
spouse or a relative withi
the second degree of
kinship

Position| Name| Relationshig

SHieway

Independen

director

R.O.C

Chen,

| KuanPai

Male

51-60

June 20,
2023

sreak aaiyL

June 17,
2020

Chairperson of Bai Chuan
International Investment Co
Ltd.
Chairman
Master of University of
Southern California

Chairman of Bai Chuan International Investment
Co., Ltd.

Director of Bora Pharmaceuticals

Independent Director of Mercuries Data Systemg
Ltd.

None

None

Independen

Director

R.O.C.

Sheng,
Bao-Si

Male

51-60

June 20,
2023

sreak aaiyL

June 8, 201

Chairman of Bora
Pharmaceuticals and Consur|
Health Inc.

and President

Economics, University of
Callifornia, Berkeley
Bachelor's Degree

Chairman and President of Bora Pharmaicalst
and Consumer Health Inc.

Chairman of Baolei Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Bora Management Consulting Co.,
Chairman of United Chemical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Bora Pharmaceutical and Consumg
Health Inc.

Director of Rui Bao Xing Investmei@o., Ltd.
Chairman of Jia Xi International Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Bao En International Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Impax Laboratories (Taiwan), Inc.
Chairman of Bora Biotech Ltd.

Chairman of Synpakingdom Pharmaceutical Co
Ltd.

Chairman of Bora Biotech Ltd.

Charman of Bora Pharmaceuticals

Chairperson of Bora Health Inc.

Chairman of SunWay Biotech Co., Ltd.
Independent Director of BIONET CORP.
Independent director of Advanced Power Electro|
Corp.

Director of Wellpool Co., Ltd.

None

None
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Other managers, directo

Shares held by i or supervisors who are tl|
- ) Shares held in ) o
Initial date | Shares held when electg Shares held now spouse and minor, . spouse or a relative withi
) someone else's nan| Positions served at the Company and ot
of child(ren) Background . the second degree of
. . companies at present o
inauguratior kinship

Gender|
. Date Elected|
Position Name
(Inaugurated

SHieway

1o AureuoneN
9210 Ul W]

Number of |Shareholding Number of | Shareholding Number| Shareholding Number off shareholding . . )
Age Position|Name| Relationshif
shares ratio (%) shares ratio (%) |of shareq ratio (%) shares | ratio (%)

3|I0IWop paJalsibal

Chairperson of Chiga International Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Zhuo Jia Industry Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Hanshin Asset Management,Céd.
Chairman of Hsueh Yung Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Hanyang Global Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Hanshin Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd.
Female| Chairman of Hanshin Department Store Co., Ltd
Chairman of Ourgame International Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Chong Shen Belopment Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Aquas Sports Culture Co., Ltd.
Chairman of HCW Investment Co., Ltd.

Director of Grand Hi_ai Hotel Co., Ltd

Director of Kaohsiung Arena Development
Corporation

Director of Ji Yang Construction Development C:
Ltd.

31-40 Directorof Hanshin Investment Co., Ltd.
Director of Kuo Yang Construction Co., Ltd.
Director of Epoch International Trade Division C
Ltd.

Director of Verisik Inc.

Chairman of Hansh Shopping
Plaza Co., Ltd.

June 20, Chairman of Ascent
Development Co., Ltd.

2023 Master/PhD, Department of
Bioengineering, Stanford
University

Independen Hou, June 20,
R.O.C, o
Director ChiaQi 2023

None None

sreak aaiyL
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Note 1: Chief Executive Officer of Gamania Digital Entertaint@o., Ltd.; Chairman of Hong KorAgased Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Beijing Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.;
Chairman (corporate representative) of VieFor Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of T&pamsEeague Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Digicentre Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate
representative) of Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Two Tigers Co., Ltd. (corporate representativegrCdia@ash Point (Japan) Co.dLtChairman of Gash Point (Hong Kong) Company
Limited.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gash Point ( Korea) Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) df Indila . , Ltd. ; Chairman (corporate represent
(corporate representative) of First Order Advertisement Production Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) cé\€ dMiecidNCo., Ltd.; Chairman of Joymobee Entertainment Company Limited;
Chairman of Gamania Holdings Ltd.; Chairman (corporatessgmtative) of Gamania International Holdings Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gamania China Holdingsritdn 6Gh@amania Sino
Holdings Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gash Point Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate represen@&sdivania Investment Co., Ltd.; Chairman of the New Taipei City Private Game Gamania Care
Social Welfare Charity Foundation; Director (corporate representative) of Wanin International Co., Ltd.; Chairman (cepressetative) of Gama Pay Co., Ltdhairman (corporate representative) of Conetter
Comarketing Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Webackers Co., Ltd.; Director of Xiang Sheng InvestmdntClmjritan of Hapod Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate
representive) of Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Director of Achieve Made International (BVI); Director of Gungho Gamaniar@ited; Chairman (corporate representative) of Douqu Digital Co., Ltd.;
Chairman (corporate representative) of Ciirco Inc.; Ghair (corporate representative) of China Post Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of Marais Home Furnishiog<8eletd.; Chairman of
Digicentre (HK) Company Limited; Director (corporate representative) of Dream Entertainment ProdGctionisl.; Supervisor (corporate representative) of Watching I.P. Holding Inc.; Supervisor of Newbloom
Venture Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Bjolly Digital Corporation Ltd.; Chairman (corporate represehtiiweews Network Co., ldt; Director (corporate representative) of BaseTech Co.,
Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of Union Splendid Management Co., Ltd.; Supervisor of Le Tao Le Co., Ltd.;(Eoreci@te representative) of Pili International Multimedia Co., Ltdgi@tan
(corporate representative) of Walkermedia Co., Ltd.
Note 2: When the chairman and president or someone charged with equivalent responsibilities (the aighést ng manager ) are the same per son,degee &kinstapctihe ot her 6s
reason, legitimacy, necessity, and countermeasures shall be stated below:
() The industry that the Company is in is changing quickly. Chairman LikYuRa also serves as the President for the purpose of enhancing the operffitteeradyeand boosting decisiemaking capability
given his broad perspective, trend insights and flexible strategic approaches which are famous in the industry, steasagicnea value for the Company and give back to shareholders.
(II) To enhancearporate governance, the Company has taken the following measures:
1. The Company has established functional committees and selected outstanding professionals in different fields tocbe indeperd i r ect or s and members to strengthen
2. The Company's independent directors participate in the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committegahmntkietings to strengthen corporate governance.
3. Each year, the Company plans at least two sessions of continuing stBadwfdmembers to strengthen board competency.
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4. 1n 2019, the Board approved the establishment of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and voluntarily @ &panmatabe Social Responsibility Report to strengthen corporate governance.
5. Onlythe Chairman and President are the same person in the Company. No other directors are also employees of the Company.
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Major shareholders of institutional shareholders

Name of institutional . o Holdin
Major shareholders of institutional shareholders . g
shareholder ratio
Huang Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 44.08%
Hsiao, ChengHao 20.40%
Li, Yu-Chi 9.96%
Yu Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 8.18%
. . Fantasy Technology Co., Ltd. 5.55%
Wanin International Co., Ltd
Joydevelopcy., Ltd. 2.43%
Pu Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1.52%
Xun Yeh Investment Co., Ltd. 0.88%
Te Kao Investment Co., Ltd. 0.82%
Cheng Yuo Investment Co., Ltd. 0.75%
Major Shareholders Whose Major Shareholders are Legal Entities
Name of institutional ) o . .
Major shareholders of institutional shaodders | Holding ratio
shareholder
Hsiao, ChengHao 62.82%
Huang Xin Investment Co.,| Li, Yu-Chi 33.34%
Ltd. Hsiao YuChing 1.92%
Hsiao HuiYu 1.92%
Name of institutional ) o ) .
Major shareholders of institutional shareholder| Holding ratio
shareholder
Yu Xin Investnent Co., Ltd. | Li, Yu-Chi 100%
Name of institutional ) o ) )
Major shareholders of institutional shareholder| Holding ratio
shareholder
FANTASY TECHNOLOGY | Yu Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 39%
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CO., LTD. During Int'l Investment Inc. 30%
Hsiao, ChengHao 29%
Li, Yu-Chi 2%
Name of institutional ) L . )
Major shareholders of institutional shareholder| Holding ratio
shareholder
Memory Global Investment Inc. 99.99%
JOY DEVELOP CO., LTD. X
WangChunMing 0.01%
Name of institutional ) o . .
Major shareholders of instiional shareholders | Holding ratio
shareholder
Hsiao YuChing 48.33%
Pu Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. | Hsiao HuiYu 48.33%
Hsiao, ChengHao 3.34%
Name of institutional ] o ) )
Major shareholders of institutional shareholder; Holding ratio
shareholder
Xun Yeh Investment Co.,t. | Chang HsiekTsung 100%
Name of institutional ) o . .
Major shareholders of institutional shareholder; Holding ratio
shareholder
Huang Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 99%
Te Kao Investment Co., Ltd. -
Hsiao, ChengHao 1%
Name of institutional ) S ) )
Major shareholders of institutional shareholderg Holding ratio
shareholder
Cheng Yuo Investment Co.,| Huang Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 99%
Ltd. Hsiao, ChengHao 1%
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1. Disclosure of directors' professional qualifications and independence of independent directors

Disclosureof the expertise of directors and independence of independent directors

Expertise and Experience Fulfillment of Independence (Note)
Number of
other public
Industry Experience ProfessionaCompetence offering
Position Name Ty EXp! S P companies
1/ 2(3|4a|5|6|7|8]| 9|10 11 |12| ceningas
independent|
Cultural & Information| Financd Biotechnoloay| Automotive Retail sales of | International Research and Financd Investmen| Law| M&A Risk directors
Creative Technolog: 9 department stord  Business development Managmen
Chairman Liu, Po-Yuan 0 o] o) o} [o] 60[o6 |0 0|6 [06 ]| 06 |0 0
Hsiao, Chengao,
Director Representative of o] o] o} o} (o] 66|60 6606|060 (|0] 0 0
Wanin International
Director Lin, HsienMing o] o} o) o) o] o] 60[6|6|6[06 |6 |6 [06 |06 |6 06 |06 1
Independent Pector| Lin, RuekYi [o] o) o} [o] 60/[6|6|6([6 |6 |6 |06 |6 |6 ]| 06 |06 1
Independent Directd Sheng, Baesi o] o] o) o} o] o] 60[6|6|6[06 |06 |6 [06 |66 6 |6 2
Independent Directd Chen, KuarPai [o] o} o} o} o] 60[6|6|6[6 |6 |6 |6 |6 |6 6 |06 1
Independent Directo Hou, ChiaQi o] o) o) o} o] 6/]06[6]|6|06 |6 |66 ]|6]|]6] 06 |6 0

Notes:

@
@

©)

4
®)

(6)

@)

®)

(©)

Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates (The same does not apply, howelepetwlient directors set up by the Company and its parent company or
subsidiary or a subsidiary that shares the same parent company according to the Act or the local laws and regulations.)

Not a natural person shareholder that holds by himself/herdgjf lis/her spouse or minor child in someone else's name more than 1% of all circulating shares of the Company or is on
the Top 10 shareholding list.

Not the spouse, a relative within the second degree of kinship, or a direct blood relative withiial ttiegree of kinship of the managers listed under (1) or those listed under (2) and (3).
Not a director, supervisor, or employee of an institutional shareholder directly holding at least 5% of the circulatireg 8fea@ompany or that ranks Tein shareholding ratio or that
assigns a representative to serve as director or supervisor of the Company according to Paragraph 1 or 2 of Artickopahthact (The same does not apply, however, to
independent directors set up by the Companyitanghrent company or subsidiary or a subsidiary that shares the same parent company according to the Act or theridcal laws a
regulations.)

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company with the number of directors in the Compaeyg enstied to votes accounting for a majority that is controlled by the same
person (The same does not apply, however, to independent directors set up by the Company or its parent company ar subshiahiary that shares the same parent company
according to the Act or the local laws and regulations.)

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company or institution whose chairman, general manager, or somabnétlassigiter responsibilities is the same person or the
spouse of tat of the Company (The same does not apply, however, to independent directors set up by the Company and its parensatisigary or a subsidiary that shares the

same parent company according to the Act or the local laws and regulations.)

Not adirector, supervisor, or manager, or shareholder holding at least 5% of shares of a specific company or institutioaribztlis ér commercially related to the Company (The

same does not apply, however, if the said specific company or institutdmdideast 20% yet less than 50% of the circulating shares of the Company and to independent directors set up
by the Company and its parent company or subsidiary or a subsidiary that shares the same parent company accordiog tteetlacalclaws rd regulations.)

Not a professional providing services or consultations on business, legal affairs, financial affairs, and accountiogaetigede its associated enterprise such as auditing that have
brought about rewards accumulatively yet toemdtNTD 500 thousand, or the owner, partner, director, supervisor, manager, and his/her spouse of a sole proprieliatsiiatimeco
company or institution. This, however, does not apply to the Compensation and Remuneration Committee, the Pulibo ARepiesv Committee, or the Special Mergers and
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Acquisitions Committee fulfilling its duties in accordance with the Securities Transaction Act or the Business MergegsiaittAg Act, among others.
(10) Not the spouse or a relative within the setdegree of kinship to any other director of the Company.
(11) None of the conditions indicated under Article 30 of the Company Act.

(12) Not a government agency, corporation, or its representative set forth in Article 27 of the Company Act.
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2. Board Dversity and Independence

(1) Board diversity

The current Board of Directors consists of 7 directors, including 4

independent directors.

U Proportion of independent directors: 4/7

U 1/7 of the directors is also an employee

U Female directors make up 1/7 of thealwb composition

The board diversity policy stipulated in the Company's "Corporate

Governance Best Practice Principles” is to recruit outstanding

entrepreneurs and professionals with rich experience in finance,

operation and experience in various industiee®rmulate

appropriate diversity policy, including but not limited to the

following two major standards:

U Basic conditions and values: gender, age, nationality, ethnicity,
seniority and culture, etc.

U Professional knowledge and skills: professional bemkgd
(such as law, accounting, industry, finance, marketing or
technology), professional ability and industry experience, etc.

The specific management objectives of the Company's

diversification policy and the achievement are as follows:

U A majority of independent directors was achieved

U Agree to add one female director

U Achieved that no independent director has served for more than 3
terms

U Achieved that a director concurrently serving as a managerial
officer does not exceed ottleird of the board seats

5

Also an Age Seniority as an independent director
Postion Name Gender| Nationality | employee of th Over 9
Company 3140 |41-50 51-60 61-70 | 71-80 | Fewerthan 3 year| 3-9 years years
Chairman |Liu, Po-Yuan Male R.O.C. 0 (o]
Hsiao, ChengHao,
Director |Representative of Wan| Male R.O.C. o]
International
Director _ [Lin, HsienMing Male R.O.C. 0
Independent|, . o eivi Male | R.O.C. 5 5
Director
Independent) o, g, Baesi Male | R.O.C. 5 5
Director
Indgpendent Chen, KuarPai Male R.O.C. 0 0
Director
Indgpendent Hou, ChiaQi Female R.O.C. o] 0
Director

(2) Board Independence

The current Board of Directors has a total of seviegctbrs,

including four independent directors, and independent directors
have more than half of the board seats.

None of the conditions as stated in Article26oaragraphs 3 and 4,
Securities and Exchange Act is found on the current Board, and no
director is the spouse or kindred of the second tier of others.

5
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(1 President, Vice President, Assistant Vice President, and Heads of Various Departments and Branches:
April 22, 2024 (Unit: Shares)

Shares held by spouse g Shares held in someor| Managers who are the spouse or a rela
Shares held . . . e -
minor child(ren) else's name within the second degree of kinship
Position | Nationaiity| Name | Gender| Date Elected . . Main experience/education Current posmops at othg Remarks
(Inaugurated) | Number of| Shareholding Number of| Shareholding Number of| Shareholding companies Position Nam Relationshi
shares ratio (%) shares ratio (%) shares ratio (%) ositio ame elationship

Chief Liu Executive Managesf FULLJIHN Machinery
Executive | R.O.C. PoYljan Male | April 1, 1995 | 17,491,305 9.97 0 0 13,600,00( 7.75 Department of Mechanical Engineering, Hv| Refer to Note 1 for detai None None
Officer Hsia University of Technology

Chief su Underwriting Dertment of Yuanta Securitig
Financial | R.O.C.| " Male | May 13, 2002 | 880,533 0.50 0 0 0 0 Master 6s Degree, Gr gRefertoNote 2 for detai None None

) Hsin-Hung . . . B
Officer Administration, University of Houston
Assistant Specialist on Data Maenent,
Chief W, International Department of Fubon Bank
. R.O.C. Mal M ,2 J77 .01 . N N N
Auditor 0c ChangHung ae ay 8, 2000 8 0.0 0 0 0 0 Graduate Schoool of Accounting, Easterr| one one one
Michigan University

Oir::tfin Chien Head of Mobile Development Divish of

p‘ . 9 R.O.C. " | Male | January 1, 201§ 95,937 0.05 781 0 0 0 Gamania None None None
Officer in Chih-Hao . .

Taiwan EMBA, Royal Roads University

Note 1: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Horgasedgsamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Beijing Gamania Digitaldimteznt Co.,

Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of VieFor Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of F&p@msH eague Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Digicentre Co., Ltd.; Chairman
(corporate representative) of JoliypDigital Technology Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Two Tigers Co., Ltd. (corporate representative); Chairman of Gash Point@aptth) Chairman, Gash Point (Hong Kong)
Company Limited.; Chairman of Gash Point ( Korea) Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporateereptess t i ve) of I ndil and Co. , Ltd. ; Chairman (corporate repr ¢
representative) of First Order Advertisement Production Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Coture New. MédliiaGairma of Joymobee Entertainment Company Limited; Chairman of
Gamania Holdings Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gamania International Holdings Ltd.; Chairman (corpoettiep)esf Gamania China Holdings Ltd.; Chairman of Gamania Sino Hslding
Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gash Point Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gamania lReedttdenthairman of the New Taipei City Private Game Gamania Care Social
Welfare Charity Foundation; Director (corporate rejgrgative) of Wanin International Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Gama Pay Co., Ltd.; Chairman (epnesetéative) of Conetter
Comarketing Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Webackers Co., Ltd.; Director of Xiaggrskstment Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Hapod Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate
representative) of Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Director of Achieve Made International (BVI); Director of GungfamiaaCo., Limited; and Chairman (corgte representative) of Douqu Digital Co.,

Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Ciirco Inc.; Chairman (corporate representative) of China Post Co., Lod (dnmatate representative) of Marais Home Furnishings Selection Co., Ltd.; Chairman
of Digicentre (HK) Company Limited; Director (corporate representative) of Dream Entertainment Productions Co., Ltd s@yperporate representative) of Watching I.P. Holding Inc.; Supervisor of
Newbloom Venture Co., Ltd.; Chairman (corporate repregizve) of Bjolly Digital Corporation Ltd.; Chairman (corporate representative) of Nownews Network Co., Ltd.; Directorgzorppresentative) of
BaseTech Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of Union Splendid Management Co., Ltd.; Sugfdrgi3ao Le Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of Pili International Multimedia Co., Ltd.;
Chairman (corporate representative) of Walkermedia Co., Ltd.

Note 2: Director of Hong Kong Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.; Supervisor ofi@&gmania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.; Director of Achieve Made International (BVI); Director (corporate representative)
of Guohe Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Director of New Taipei City Jubilee Care Social Welfare Charity Foundation; Diréayorabee Entertainment Company Limited; Supervisor of Two Tigers Co., Ltd.;
Supervisor of Gash Point Co., Ltd.; Director of Gash Point (Japan) ) Co.,Ltd.; Director of Gash Point (Hong Kong) Comipechy Simpervisor of Webackers Co., Ltd.; Supervisor aflzRoint (Korea);

Director (corporate representative) of JSDWAY Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Supervisor of Webackers Co., Ltd.; Supebasaredfiew Media Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of Gama Pay Co.,
Ltd.; Supervisor of Conetter Carketing Co., Ltd.; Director (corporate representative) of Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Director (corporatentapve3ef Nownews Network Co., Ltd.; Director
(corporate representative) of Gungho Gamania Co., Limited; Director (corporageaetative) of Hyperg Smart Security Technology Pte. Ltd.; Supervisor of Walkermedia Co., Ltd.; Supervisor of Ciirco, Inc.
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(3) If the chairman of the Board of Directors is the same person as the general manager or the person of
equivalent post (the highelevel manager), or a spouse or relative within the first degree of kinship, the
reason, reasonableness, necessity, and response measures shall be explained
Gamania is operated in a rapidly changing industry. With a macroscopic view, vision, andGgglitgerson Liu,

PoYuan sees through the industryds future and takes up t
and decisiormaking in order to maximize value and benefit shareholders.
Our specific measures for strengtheningpooate governance are as follows:

1. The Company has set up functional committees for which independent directors and members that are the best of
their kind in the industry are selected to reinforce the function of the Board of Directors.

2. The independ# directors of the Company take part in the Compensation and Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and important internal meetings for reinforced corporate governance.

3. The Company plans at least 2 continuing educatiamses for the members of its Board of Directors each year to
reinforce the function of the Board of Directors.

4. The Company established the ESG Committee in 2019 with the approval of the Board of Directors, and voluntarily
prepared the Sustainability Rap (formerly known as the Corporate Social Responsibility Report) to strengthen
corporate governance.

5. Only the Chairman and the President are the same person in the Company. No other directors are also employees of
the Company.
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lll. Remuneration paid to directors, supervisors, general managers and deputy general managers
in the most recent year

(D Remuneration for general and independent directors
Unit: NTD thousand: 1,000 shares

Remuneration for directors The sum of A, B, ( Related remuneration to those who are also employees The sum of A, B, C, T 0
X i X and D andsa Salary, bonus, . D, E,F and G as a| 5 =)
Retirement an¢ Remuneration| Operational R Retirement ang . 5 3
Reward(A) . . ] percentage of ne|  and special . Remuneration for employees (G] percentage of net Q95
pension (B) | for directors (C)| expenditure (D . ) pension (F) ) 2 =
income % expenditure (E) income % 2 3
. =l
_ _ > > _ > > All companies % % g
> 5 > 5 > 5 Y = = = included in the S 2@
" o 3 o 3 o 3 o 3 ® g o 3 o 3 The C All == 3
Position Name 4 |23 |2 |35 2 |25|2 |23 2 |28 |2 |82 |=3 e ZomPA 1 financial companie! 8 3
® 23 ® 23 @ 23 @ 23 @ 23 @ 23 @ 23 tat t p 3 5535
o |3a32|ol3az2]|o0o |32]|] 0o |32]| o 32 |9 |az|o |33 statemen The | included |8 ¢ =
o o @ o > @ o o @ o o @ o o @ <] o @ o o O . S 5 °
3 = 3 = 3 = 3 = 3 =0 3 =0 3 =0 Company| inthe [< @ 3
° Q5 | © a5 S a5 S & 35 S a5 32 2= S & 35 ) . g =
2 25 |8 B3 |8 |22 |8 |82 | 8 235 £ 85 | 8 |8 & | cash| Stock | Cash | Stock financial 5 8
2 8 ¢ 2 D c 2 o c 2 o c 2 ® c < o c 2 o c =
o2 3 2 3 2 3 2 32 3 2 3 & | value | value | value | value statement 2 o
[©] @ @ @ @ @ T
-2 R R s ER e 22 e &
> > =] =] =] =] =] g
. . 10,940| 10,940 120,890 | 120,890
Chairman |Liu, Po-Yuan 0 0 0 0 10,880| 10,880 60 60 8,910 | 8,910 0 0 101,0400 O 0 0 0
1.90% | 1.90% 21.02% | 21.02%
_ Representative of 5450 | 5450 5450 | 5,450
Director [Wanin International: 0 0 0 0 5,440 5,440 10 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hsiao, ChengHao 0.95% | 0.95% 0.95% 0.95%
. . . . 5,500 | 5,500 5,500 5,500
Director |Lin, HsienMing 0 0 0 0 5,440 5,440 60 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.96% | 0.96% 0.96% 0.96%
Independen 4,350 | 4,350 4,350 4,350
_p Sheng, Baesi 1,800 | 1,800 | O 0 2,500| 2,500 | 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Director 0.76% | 0.76% 0.76% | 0.76%
Independen 4,360 | 4,360 4,360 4,360
_p Lin, RuetYi 1,800 | 1,800 | O 0 2,500| 2,500 | 60 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Director 0.76% | 0.76% 0.76% | 0.76%
Independen 4,350 | 4,350 4,350 4,350
Di s Chen KuanPai 1,800 | 1,800 | O 0 2,500 2,500 [ 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Irector 0.76% | 0.76% 0.76% | 0.76%
Ind d e 995 995 995 995
naependen 1, chiaoi 955 | 955 | 0O 0 0 0 40 | 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Director 017% | 0.17% 017% | 0.17%
Representate of
Direct Cloud Copi 5,440 5,440 5,440 5,440
rector ou OPIOL.jS. | 0 0 0 0 5,440| 5,440 | 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Note 1) |Investmetn Limited.] 0.95% | 0.95% 0.95% 0.95%
Chen, ShihYing

Note 1: The director was discharged after the shareholders' meegtegtion on June 20, 2023.
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(I Remuneration for supervisors: The Company has no supervisors.



(Il  Remuneration for President and Vice Presidents
Unit: NTD 1,000

The sum of A, B, C
Pension (B) (Notq Bonuses and and Das a
Salary (A) ®)( Reward for Employees (D) .
1) allowances (C) percentage of net Claim of
income after tax (99 remuneration
] ud from re-investeg
- = = = All companies includeq = ;
Position Name 4 25> 4 25> 4 25> The Company | he fi ol 4 25> busmesse‘s.oth«
= 23 = = 23 = = 53 = in the financial stateme 5 2 2 = |than subsidiarie
@ S £ g @ Q.gg @ g.gg @ 3'5_8
o
o %83 o %83 o 283 o 283 or the parent
32 B8] 2 Es8| 2 [gs8 Stock Stock | 2 |8 =8| company
8 g = g. 8 g = g. 2 = (ED. Cash value | Cash value | 8 g = %
< 33a| 2 a0 0| 2 230 value value E 335
2 2 2 2
President | Liu, Po-Yuan 120,856| 120,856 ~ NOn®
- - 14,173 | 14,173 108 108 0 0 106,575 0 106,575 0
Vice Presiden Su, HsirHung 21.01% | 21.01%

Note 1: The required amount to be set aside according to the Labor Standards Act for the Pension Fund (B).

Remuneration bracket table

Name of General Manager and Vice General Manager
All companies included in the
financial statement

Bracket by which remuneration is paid to individual
President and Vice Presidents of the Company The Company

Below $1,000,00@0 - -
$1,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $2,000,000.00 (exclusive) - -
$2,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $3,500,000.00 (exclusive) - -
$3,500,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $5,000,000.00 (exclusive) - -
$5,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $10,000,000.00 (exclusive)
$10,000,000.0 (inclusive) ~ $15,000,000.00 (exclusive) Su, HsinHung Su, HsinHung
$15,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $30,000,000.00 (exclusive - -

$30,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $50,000,000.00 (exclusive - -

$50,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $100,000,000.00 (exclusiv - -

Above $100,000,000.00 Liu, PoYuan Liu, Po-Yuan

Total 2 2
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(V)

(V)

(V1)

Names of managers allocated to employ
The estimated remuneration to employees for 2023 is as follows

Unit: NTD 1,000

. . . Ratio of sum to
Position Name Value in stocK Valuein cash| Total )
aftertax net profit (%

President | Liu, PoYuan

Vice Presider] Su, HsirRHung

Assistant Viceg Chien,

| 0 47,327 47,327 8.29
President Chih-Hao

Assistant Viceg Wu,
President ChangHung

A listed companyhas experienced aftéax losses in its parent company only

financial statements for the most recent three years, or where the result of its
corporate governance evaluation in the most recent year was at the last notch, or,
in the most recent year and upthe printing date of the annual reports, has

changed transactions method, suspended trading, delisting, or those who have bee
approved by the Corporate Governance Evaluation Committee and should not be
evaluated, and the remuneration of the top fivecetiees with the highest
remuneration should be disclosed separatédye.

The total amount of remuneration paid to the Company's directors, supervisors,
general manager, and deputy general managers in the last two years by the
Company and all compées in the consolidated financial statements as a
percentage of the net income after tax in the parent company only or individual
financial statements, with an explanation of the remuneration payment policies,
standards and components, the proceduredtarhining remuneration, and their
relations to operating performance and future risks

1. The compensation structure for the directors and supervisors of the Company is fixed:

The ratio to the annual Rtax net profit is adopted as the remuneration.

2. The compensation structure for the President and Vice President(s) of the Company
includes fixed items (such as salary and benefits defined in the personnel management
regulations) and variable items (such as bonus, employee remuneration (stock/cash),
and enployee stock option).

3. Fixed items mentioned above shall maintain the mean competitive level of the
Company in the industry in principle. Variable items are comprehensively considered

based on the Company's financial indicators, including revenue, gndfiprofit
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growth rate, as well as ndimancial indicators such as individual performance,
operational efficiency, contribution and future potential. Related goals and weights are
to be defined after the overall economic and environmental changedgetimalin
operational plan, trends in the industry, and risks in the future are evaluated.

4. The Company has set up its Compensation and Remuneration Committee. Related
procedures for defining and reviewing the remuneration are to be enforced according

to applicable laws and regulations.

Analysis of the proportion in the aftéax net profit of the total amount of

rewards paid to the directors, supervisors, the president, and vice president(s) of
the company by the company and all companies listed in thelatated

financial statement in the last two years

All companies included in th
. The Company i )
Position financial statement
2022 2023 2022 2023

Reward for Presider

) 13.85% 25.36% 13.85% 25.36%
and Vice President;

28



V. Status of Corporate Governance

) Operational Status of the Board of Directors:

During the most recent year and as of the date of publication of the annual report, the
Board of Directors held 7 meetings, and the directors' attendance was as follows

Actual output | Attendance Actual
Position Name (list) through attendance Remarks
Numberof seats proxy (seated) (%
Chairman | Liu, Po-Yuan 7 0 100
Wanin International
Director Representative: Hsiao, 1 5 14
ChengHao
Director Lin, HsienMing 6 1 86
Independent :
Director Sheng, Babi 6 1 86 None
Independent | . iy 6 1 86
Director
Independent| o\ arPai 5 2 71
Director
Independent o
Director Hou, ChiaQi 5 0 100
Cloud Copious Investmen lzgrdtgzcstggwmizgr'?harge
Director Limited. Representative: 3 0 100 . .
Alex Chen meeting reelection on June
20, 2023

Other details to be documented:

l. Does the operation of the Board of Directors have (I) matters listed in Arti@eofithe Securities Exchange Act? (Il)
Other than the aforementioned matters, other boardmgeetsolutions that have been opposed or reserved by
independent directors with records or written statements in place: None.

Il. Recusal of directors upon conflicts of interest in proposals being discussed:

() In accordance with Article 15 ofthe BoardafD ect or s® meeting rul es of t
interest in himself/herself or the legal person he/she represents, he/she shall state the important part of tr
in the current board meeting, and if it is detrimental to the interésedompany shall not participate in the
discussion and voting of the Board of Directors, and shall recuse themselves during the discussion and v
directors, and shall not exercise voting rights on behalf of other directors.

(I Recusalduetoconfi cting interests in each of the Board
Date of the Board of| Reason for the
. Name Contents of the proposal Remarks
Directors recusal

The Remuneration Committee recommendexd th
March 9, 2023

remuneration of directors and managers in 2023 Excused and did
Liu, 2022 distribution of remuneration to directors, Director and not take partin
May 10, 2023 . .
Po-Yuan managers and employees Manager discussions and
The Remuneration Committeecommended the voting

March 6, 2024

remuneration of directors and managers in 2024

lll.  Information about the evaluation cycle, duration, scope and approach, and content of the evaluation of Board !
(or peer) evaluation:

1.The Companyb6s fiMeasureanderofEvaheaBoagdtdodfe DPie
the board meeting. As is required, the performance evaluation for the Board of Directors shall be com|
before the end of the year, and the performance evaluation results shall be filed befadeottibeefirst
quarter of the coming year, and submitted to the board meeting for reporting.

2. The Company has completed the evaluation of the operation of the Board of Directors from January 1
to December 31, 2023, including the selaluation qustionnaire survey of 7 directors (including 4
independent directors, CFOb6s office, the inte

3. The result of the Board of Directors' performance evaluation for 2023 was "Excellent".

28



4. The results of the performanceafvation will be used as a reference for individual directors' remuneratic
and nomination for relection.

IV. Reinforced assessments of functional objectives of the Board of Directors and implementation status of the ob
of the specific year and theast recent year:

() Every year the Companyds board meeting amends ¢
effectively build a board governance mechanism and optimize the supervision function.

(I The Company has set up the Compensatitd Remuneration Committee to take charge of helping the Boart
Directors periodically evaluate and determine the compensation and remuneration for directors and mana
to periodically reflect upon the policy, system, criteria, and structurerémmance evaluation and for
compensation and remuneration to be paid to directors and managers.

(Il The Company has set up the Audit Committee to take charge of supervising the Company in the fair presi
of financial statements, the appointmemd aismissal of and independence and performance of certified pub
accountants, effective implementation of internal control, compliance with laws and regulations, and contr
existing or potential risks.

(IV) The Company has set up the Nomination @uitee to take charge of proposing a list of suitable candidates 1
the director or higltanking managerial openings to the Board of Directors (including those of subsidiaries)
reviewing in advance the candidates recommended by shareholders orriheffiaectors by law and
submitting the review results and the reference list of candidates to the board meeting.

(I Implementation of Board Evaluations:

Internal evaluation

Evaluation . Scope of Evaluation o .
Evaluated period _ Highlights of evaluation
cycle evaluation method

(1) Involvement in corporate
operations

2) The Boar dmiakingd e g

Internal .

quality

assessment off

the Board of (3) Composition and structe of

Board of Directors

Directors . .
(4) Election of directors and
continuing education for them
From January 1, (5) Internal control
2023 to Board of (1) Mastering of the goals and
Every year . —
December 31, | Di r ect or mission of the Company
2023 (2) Awareness of the duties of a
director
Selfassessmer (3) Involvement in corporate
of the Board of . P
_ operations
Directors .
(4) Management of internal
members

relationship and communication
(5) Director's professionalism and
continuing education
(6) Internal control
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(Il

Operational status of the Audit Committee and participation of
supervisos in the operations of the Board of Directors

1. Status of operations of the Audit Committee

During the most recent year and as of the publication date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee has held 6 meetings, with the attendance of
independent diretors as follows

A |
. ctual attendancy Attendance Actual seated
Position Name (seated) Remarks
through proxy rate (%)
frequency
| i .
ndependent director, Sheng, Baci 5 1 83 None
(convener)
Independent Director Lin, RuetYi 5 1 83 None
Independent Director] Chen KuanPai 5 1 83 None
. . Newly el 2
Independent Directory  Hou, ChiaQi 4 0 100 ewly e eggezcigon June 20

Other details to be documented:

IV.

Proposal: The Company's internal control system from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 was a

Proposal: The Company's 2022 financial statements.
Proposal
Proposal
Proposal: Approval of the key tasks of the Audit Committee for 2023.

Proposal: Approval of the independence assessment of certifying CPAs and their accounting firm for
Proposal: The approval of the Company's 2023 CPAs, their firm and itataffiind alliance firms to

Proposal: Passed the Company's 2023 first quarter consolidated financial statements.
Proposal

Proposal: Election of the convener and chairperson of the 2nd Audit Committee.

Proposal: Passed the Company's 2023 second quarter consolidated financial statements.

Proposal: Passed the Company's 2028 tjuarter consolidated financial statements.

Proposal: Approval of the provision of endorsements and guarantees for subsidiaries.

Proposal: Approval of the Company's internal control system from January 1 to December 31, 2023,

Proposal: Approval of the Company's 2023 final accounts.
Proposal: Passed the Company's 2023 earnings appropriation.
Proposal: Approved the evaluation on the independence of the Comp@ag' CPAs and the affiliated CPA

Proposal: Approved the proposal for the Company's 2024 CPAs, their firms and affiliates and alliance

Proposal: Passed the 2024 Audin@nittee's annual work focus.
Proposal: Establishment of "Group's tax policy".

V.

VL.

Dissenting opinion, qualified opinion, or material recommendation of the independent directors of
Audit Committee: Noa.

Conditions as stated in Article Blof the Securities and Exchange ARlease detail four

Other than the abovementioned, matters unapproved by the Audit Committee but passed by ove
thirds of all directors: None.

The Audit Committee meeting waslté®n March 9, 2023, May 10, 2023, June 20, 2023, August 7,
2023, November 6, 2023, and March 6, 2024 for the following reasons:

and the Company's inteahcontrol statement was issued based on the results of the
selfassessment.

2022 ear |
Companyodsg

of
of

Approval
Approval

the Companyoés
c hGPAsge of the

provide nonrcertification services to the Company and its subsidiaries.

Approval of the amenstameandiRuleséor t he C

Implementation of Internal Audit.

issuance of a stateent of internal control based on the results of theassgssment.

firm.

to provide norcertification services to the Company and its subsidiaries.

The above matters were all approved by the Committee.
Recusal of Independent Directors from Proposals Due to Conflicts of Interest
Communication between independent divex and internal audit officers:

() Each month the internal audit unit submits an audit report to independent directors for reviey
communicates and discusses with them immediately on any question about the report. Each
the internal audit unitlso holds the corporate governance meeting to communicate with
independent directors and CPAs. After the Audit Committee is established, the audit unit rep
independent directors at the Audit Committee meeting based on the needs of specific propo:
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(I Independent directors and the internal audit unit usually communicate with each another by
phone, or facéo-face discussion as necessary.

2. The communication between independent directors and the chief internal
auditor is good; a summaiy as follows:

Opinions from

Date of meeting Nature of meeting Focus of the communication independent
directors
1. The chief internal auditor reported and communicated the performanc None
Corporate governanc internal audits and inteal control operation in 2022.
March 9, 2023 meeting 2. The chief internal auditor reported and communicated the internal aud
planned for 2023.
1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None

March 9, 2023

Audit Committee 2

. . Report on the Statement of Internalr®rol System for 2022.
meeting

May 10, 2023

1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None

Audit Committee | 5\ e ndment to the Companyds filnt g

meeting Implementation of Internal Audit.
1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None
Audit Committee 2. Reporting of the Audit Plan for 2023.
August 7, 2023 meeting 3. Amendment to the Companyds fAlnt
Implementation of Internal Audit.
Audit Committee 1. Report onle implementation of internal audits. None
November 6, 2023 meeting 2. ThECOmpany'sp2024 annual audit plan.
1. The chiefinternal auditor reported and communicated the performanc None
March 6. 2024 Corporate governanc interna! aqdits and intgrnal control operation in 2023. .
’ meeting 2. The chief internal auditor reported and communicated the internal aud
planned for 2024.
1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None

March 6, 2024

Audit Committee

. 2. Report on the Statement of Internal Control System for 2023.
meeting
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3. Communication between independent directors and CPAs:
(1) Atthe quarterly Audit Committee meetings, the CPAs communicated the results

of the quarterly financial statement audits or reviews and other matters required

by other relevant laws and regulaton

(2) Independent directors and CPAs usually communicate with each another by

email, phone, or faeto-face discussion as necessary.

3)

Communication between independent directors and CPAs is good; a summary is

as follows:

Date of meeting

Nature of meetig

Focus of the communication

Opinions
from
independent
directors

March 9, 2023

Corporate governanc
meeting

CPAs fully communicated the audit results and key audit items of the 2022
financial statements.

In response to the neassurance service pisions in the International Code of
Ethics for Accountants.

None

March 9, 2023

Audit Committee
meeting

ok wd

Gave a presentation on the status f
statements. o

Tracking of the Company's quarterly unqualified finanaggart progress.
CPAsd® explanation of the 2022 conso
Proposal Change of the Companyo0s ¢
Discussion and communication on the key tasks of the Audit Committee for 2
Discussion on the assessmentrafépendence of the certifying CPAs and their
accounting firm for 2023.

Proposal: Approval of theprimp pr oved of the Compan
2023, and the provision of narertification services to the Company and its
subsidiariescbynthegCPAsdm and the f

firms.

None

May 10, 2023

Audit Committee
meeting

Description on the Company's 2023 first quarter consolidated financial statem|

None

August 7, 2023

Audit Committee
meeting

Description on th&€ompany's 2023 second quarter consolidated financial
statements.

None

November 6,
2023

Audit Committee
meeting

Description on the Company's 2023 third quarter consolidated financial staten|
Endorsement/guarantee provided by the Company tauthediary.

March 6, 2024

Corporate governanc
meeting

CPAs fully communicated the audit results and key audit items of the 2023
financial statements.

In response to the neassurance service provisions in the International Code of
Ethics for Accoutants.

None

March 6, 2024

Audit Committee
meeting

CPAsd® explanation of the 2023 conso
Discusssion and communication on the key tasks of the Audit Committee for 2
Discussion on the assessment of independence oéttiying CPAs and their
accounting firm for 2024.

Proposal: Approval of theprimp pr oved of the Compan
2024, and the provision of negertification services to the Company and its
subsidiaries by thetCPAEDrmbébsoahtfih
firms.

Establi shment of "Groupds Tax Pol i

None
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4. Implementation of the Audit Committee's evaluation

Information on the evaluation cycle and duration, evaluation scope, method
and evaluation content of the intal evaluation:

(1)

()

®3)

The Company's "Regulations Governing the Performance Evaluation of the

Board of Directors" has been approved by the Board of Directors, including

that the performance evaluation of functional committees should be
completed before thend of the year, and the performance evaluation

results should be reported before the end of first quarter next year and

submitted to the Board of Directors for report.

The Company has completed the evaluation of the operation of the Audit

Committee fron January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, including the

selfe v a |

uati on

guestionnaire

of

internal resource office and audit office.

4 i

nd

The result of the Audit Committee's performance evaluation for 2023 was

"Excellent".

Evaluation
cycle

Evaluated period

Scope of
evaluation

Evaluation
method

Highlights of evaluation

Every year

From January 1,
2023 to
December 31,
2023

Audit Committee
meeting

Me mber s
internal
selfassessment

(1) Involvement in corporate
operatons

(2) Awareness of the duties of
functional committees

(3) Decisiornmaking quality of
functional committees

(4) Composition and election of
members of functional
committees

(5) Internal control

5, Supervisorséo

have supervisors.
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(IV)  Corporate Governance Implementation Status and Deviations from Corporate Governaita@est
Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies and the Reasons:

Deviation from

Operation
Corporate Governaec
Evaluation item BestPractice Principle
Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Companies and reaso
I.  Does the company establish and disclose its corporate gover
principles in accordance with the Corporate Governance Bes| V The Company hasstablished and disclosed them. No difference
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX List€ompanies?
Il.  Shareholding Structure and Shareholder Equity () The Company has set up the Investor Relations Department and has s
) Does the company establish internal operating procedures| V to take charge of addressing suggestions provided by or disputes involy
handling shareholder suggestions, questions, disputes or shareholders.
lawauits and implement the procedures? (I There are exclusive unit and people to take charge.
(D] Does the company have a list of major shareholders that hjy V (I For the internal control system of the Company, there are the
actual control over the Company and a list of ultimate owne fiParent/ Subsidiary and Aafnfd Itihaet ¢
of those major shareholders? Procedure for Transactions Involving Specific Companies, Group Busin/No difference
() Has the company established and implemented risk \% and Related Partieso to govern f
managemenand firewall mechanisms with its associated affiliates and Asupervision and
enterprises? sourd risk control mechanism and firewall with the affiliates.
(IV)  Has the company established internal rules against insider{ V (IV) The Company has defined its Ethical Code of Conduct to govern the be
trading with undisclosed information? of related people and applicable details and information have been disg
on the Companyds website.
M. Composition and Responsibilities of the Board of Directo 0]
0] Did the company establish and implement a diversity policy V , The Company has formulated a policy of diversity of board members in th
and defined management goals? "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles" to recruit outstanding
(D] Does the company voluntarily establish other functional \Y, entrepreneurs from variousdustries and professionals in finance, operatior
committees in addition to the Compensatol Remuneratior and rich experience, and established a Nomination Committee to determir
Committee and the Audit Committee that are established a selection of directors and managsé
required by laws? , There were a total of 7 directors (including 4 independeatttirs) in the
(I Has the Company established standards and method for \Y, current board of directors. All independent directors have served for less t|No difference
evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors, and ( terms, and are independent from each other. Character
the Company implement the performancaleation . All members of the Board of Directors have rich background and expertise
periodically and submit results of the performance evaluati operation management, indysknowledge, and leadership and decisieaking
the Board of Directors, and use them for reference while ability, and provide the Company with various professional suggestions.
deciding compensation and rewards for individual directors . The specific management objectives of the Company's diversification poli
nominating them for a second term in office?? the achievement are as follows:
(IV)  Does the cmpany regularly evaluate the independence of U The current Board of Dactors consists of 7 directors, including 4
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Deviation from

Operation
Corporate Governaec
Evaluation item BestPractice Principle
Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and reaso
CPAs? independent directors.
U Proportion of independent directors: 4/7
U 1/7 of the directors is also an employee
U Female directors make up 1/7 of the board composition
. The board diversity policy stipulated in the Compari€orporate Governancs
\% Best Practice Principles" is to recruit outstanding entrepreneurs and profe

with rich experience in finance, operation and experience in various indus

formulate appropriate diversity policy, including but not limitedhe following

two major standards:

U Basic requirements and values: gender, age, nationality, ethnicity, seni
and culture

U Professional knowledge and skills: Professional background (such as |
accounting, industry, finance, marketing, or techgg)pprofessional ability
and industry experience

Diversified professionalism
2 = S » Q o
y £ | 28 |39 | ¢ |55 | 8% |38 |B
Position Name c 3 e 2 FS 3 3 2 =8 ] 2
- 2 5 3 3 g c o = =3
2% o = g 2 E 32 o} ° 3
e g 53 €5 2 S = s 5 9 3
s Q 3 @ 3 5 Q Q@ B o S = D
s 3 < SR 5] ® = B T 2
S 2 @ 2 2 3 & = a
@ = g ]
Chairman | Liu, Po-Yuan o] o] o] o] o] o] o] o]
Hsiao, ChengHao,
Director | Representative of o] o] o] o] o] o] (o] o]
Wanin International
Director |Lin, HsienMing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Independen| ) o« o+ « « o« « « «
) Lin, RuetYi o o o o o [o] (o] [o]
Director
Independen| . o+ o+ « « « « « «
X Sheng, BaeBi (o} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0}
Director
Independen| o o o« o« o« o« o« o«
X Chen, KuarPai (o} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0}
Director
Independen « « o« o« o« o« o« o«
Hou, ChiaQi (o} (o} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0} [0}
Director
Representative of
Director [CLOUD COPIOUS x x ~ ~ « « « «
' o o ol o ol o 6 | 6
(Note 1) [INVESTMENT
LIMITED.: Alex Chen

Note 1: The director was discharged on June 20, 2023
(1) On March 72019, the Board of Directors approved the establishment of
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Deviation from

Operation
Corporate Governaec
Evaluation item BestPractice Principle
Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and reaso
voluntary functional committee (Corporate Social Responsibility Commi
which is now named ESG Committ&an December 24, 2020, the Board (
Directors approved the establishment ebluntay functional committee
(Nomination Committee).
(1 The Companyras established the performance evaluation measures an
methods for the Board of Directors, and the evaluation is regularly subn
to the Board of Directors every year, as a reference for reration and
nomination for renewal.
(IV) The Companyegularly evaluates the independence of CPAs and submit
report to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for resolutiof
IV. Does the listed company appoint competent and apptepri \% The Company &s set up responsible people to take charge of corporate
corporate governance personnel, and appoint a corporate governancaelated affairs. The Board of Directors also designated in 2020 tha
governance officer to be responsible for corporate Companyds Vice President alHudgtdCserieast
governanceelated affairs (including but not limited to providin head of corporate governance aodake charge of corporate governansiated
directors and supervisors with the information needed to perfi affairs, including organizing meetings of the Board of Directors, the Audit No difference
their dutiesassisting directors and supervisors in compliance Commi ttee, and the Compensation an
laws, handling matters related to the Board of Directors and meetings, helping directors to take office and recedrginuing education,
shareholders' meetings in accordance with the law, and prepa providing materials required for directors to perform their duties, and helping t|
minutes of the Board of Directors and shareholders' meetings directors comply with laws and regulations, etc.
V. Does the Company create channels for communication with | V The Company has set uglated departments and communication channels in h
stakeholders (including baot limited to shareholders, of its corporate social responsibilities.
employees, customers, and suppliers), set up a stakeholder 4 No difference
on the Company's website, and appropriately respond to imp
corporate social concerns of stakeholders responsibility issug
VI. Does the company designate a professional shareholder se] V The Compang agent for stock affairs is KGI Securities. No difference
agency to deal with affairs relating to shareholders meetings
VIL. Disclosure of Information
0] Has the company established a corporate website to disclg V The Company has set up its corporate website and disclose the information a
information regarding its financial, business and corporate required.
governance status? No difference
(D] Does the compargdopt other ways of disclosing informatiorl VvV We have set up a corporate website in Chinese and English versions, designg

(e.g., maintaining an English website, appointing responsib
people to handle information collection and disclosure, cred
a spokesperson system, webcasting investor conference o

responsible personnel gather and disclose informatiout éfs® Company, enforce
the spokesperson system, and posted investor conference on the corporate w
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Deviation from

Operation
Corporate Governaec
Evaluation item BestPractice Principle
Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and reaso
company website)? We have published and reported the annual financial statements and the fina
(In)  Doesthe Company announce and declare its Annual Finan V |statements for Q1, Q2, and Q3, and the status of monthly operayitins required
Statement within 2 months after a fiscal year ends and deadline.
announce and declare the financial statements for the first,
second, and third quarters and operational status of each 1
than the required ddéne?
VIIl. Is there any other important information available to facilitate | V Al | of the Company6s empl oyees are

better understanding of the
operational status (including without limitation employee right
employee wellnss, investor relations, supplier relations, rights
stakeholders, continuing education of directors and supervisg
the implementation of risk management policies and risk
evaluation standards, the implementation of customer relatior
policies, and putltasing insurance for directors and supervisor|

Insurance, and Group Insurance and are entitled to benefits under each of the
programs. Meanwhile, there are the Employe#fakie Committee and the Pensiol
Fund Supervisory Committee in place to set aside the employee welfare fund
pension fund as required by law, to hold employee communication meetings
periodically, to set up t heanddoprepmrer
details about distribution of bonus to employees so that the Company can shg
profits with all employees. People with disabilities are hired and the charity
foundation is established to encourage young people to work hard to reafize t
dreams in honor of corporate social responsibilities. Meanwhile, industrial
workshops organized by the competent authority are proactively participated i
investor conferences are held from time to time. The Company also has the In
Relations@ part ment and website to provi
reference.

Operation at the Board of Directors:

Directors of the Company unfailingly recused themselves from proposals
a conflict of interest with them.

We have established the Rsilef Procedure for Meetings of Shareholders ar|
implemented them unfailingly.
We have established the Rules of Procedure for Meetings of Board of Dirg
and implemented them unfailingly.

We have purchased liability insurance for directors, and the mgegfti
shareholders has approved the inclusion of the liability insurance for supe
in the Articles of Incorporation
renewal or change.

Except for absences due to unexpected or importantretated affais, all
directors participated in the supervision and discussion of the related prop

throughout each board meeting.

No difference
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Deviation from
Corporate Governaec
BestPractice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and reaso

Operation
Evaluation item
Yes | No Summary
Continuing education of the Company's directors in 2023:
- . . Hours
Position Name Date Organizer Course title involved
How do directors and supervisors
Chairman Liu, May 10, 2023 |Securities and [supervise the Company's corporate risk 3
airma Po-Yuan Futures Institut{management and crisis management
November 6, 202] 2030/2050 Green Industrial Revolution 3
. How do directors and supervisors supel
Securities and . "
May 10, 2023 Futures InstitutEthe Cqmpanys corporate risk managem| 3
land crisis management
. . IThe Key to Improving the Effectiveness
Director Hsiel_rlrr]h)lin September 22, gﬂ‘\“]’earr;;%?mathe Board oDirectors 3
9 2023 IAssociation Key Global Trends and Cases for Winni 3
ESG in the Future
| Securities and . !
November 6, 202] Futures Institutl 2030/2050 Green Industrial Revolution 3
ITaiwan Corpora . . .
) August 7, 2023 |Governance Seminar on Family Wealth Inheritance 3
IndependeniLin, . Practice
; o IAssociaion
Director |RuetYi Securities and
November 6, 202] Futures Institutl 2030/2050 Green Industrial Revolution 3
March 27, 2023 [Chinese Corpoate Resilience Taiwan's 3
National Competitiveness
Association of
Independen|{ Sheng, lcngrl:fnrgrigd
Director BaoSi How do directors and supervisors
May 10, 2023 |Securities and |supervise the Company's corporate risk 3
Futures Institut{ management and crisis management
November 6, 2021 2030/2050 Green Industrial Revolori 3
How do directors and supervisors
Independen| Chen, May 10, 2023 |Securities and [supervise the Company's corporate risk 3
Director Kuan-Pai Futures Institut{management and crisis management
November 6, 2021 2030/2050 Green Industrial Revolution 3
August 7, 2023 | Taiwan
Corporate
Management |Shortcomings or operational crises 3
and Sustainablgidentified from the financial statements
Development
Independen Hou, Association
Director ChiaQi E - -
November 6, 2023 2030/2®0 Green Industrial Revolution 3
November 23, . Corporate Governance Trends and
2023 §jtcljjrztsle|?1;?tﬂ Corporate Sustainability 3
December 19, i N Postmerger integration discussion and 3
2023 establishment of management mechanil

IX. Status of improvemeron the Corporate Governance Evaluation results in the most recent year: Through continual improvement corporate gbee@uamgany is rated topZ)% among

TPExlisted companies in the 8th Corporate Governance Evaluation.
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(V) If the Company has &sblished a Remuneration Committee, its

composition and operation shall be disclosed

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on December 12,
2011. According to the committee charter, the committee shall have 4 members,
who shall be appointealy the resolution of the Board of Directors, and one of
them shall be the convener. The duties of the committee include: 1. Establish
and periodically review the policy, system, standard, and structure of the
performance evaluation, salary, and rewardidctors and officers. 2.

Periodically evaluate and determine the salary and reward of directors and
officers and submit the recommendations to the Board for discussion.

1. Expertise and experience of members of the Remuneration Committee
March 31, 2024

Number of other public

Qualification offering companies with
Status Expertise and Experience Fulfillment of Independence membership in their
Name Compensation and

Remuneration Committee

Independent Directo Lin, RuetYi All members are independent direrstoFor their qualifications, 1
Independent Directo] Sheng, BasSi |[experi ence and independence s 1
IndependenDirector | Chen, KuarPai |Information on the Expertise of Directors and Independence of 1
Independent Directorl  Hou, ChiaQi Independent Directorso of the 0

2. Operational Status of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee

(1) The Company's Compensation and Remuneration Committee has 4
members in total.

(2) The term of office of the curremdembers: June 20, 2023 to June 19,
2026. In the most recent year and as of the date of publication of the
annual report, the Remuneration Committee met 4 times. The
attendance of the members and the matters discussed are as follows

. Attendane in Attendance through Ratio of attendance in
Position Name Remarks
person proxy person (%)
Independent]
Director Chen, KuarPai 2 2 50 None
(Convener)
Independent] )
) Sheng, Ba&si 4 0 100 None
Director
Independent] . s
. Lin, RuetYi 3 1 75 None
Director
Independent] o
) Hou, ChiaQi 2 0 100 Inaugurated on June 20, 202
Director

Other details to be documented:

|. TheRemuneration Committee convened on March 9, 2023, May 10, 2023, July 12, 2023, and March 6, 2024. The proposals &e a
(1) Passed the Company's 2022 and3@mMmuneration distributions to employees and directors.

(2) Approval for the breakdown of the Company's remuneration to directors and managers in 2022.

(3) Election

0 All proposals mentioned above were approved by the Committee.
1. Advice of the Remuneration Committee rejected or revised by the Board: None.
Ill. Resolutions of the Remuneration Committee with objections or reservations by members with recordsentstétenriting: None.

of the convener and chairman of the 5th "Remuneration Committee".
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3. Implementation of the evaluation by the Remuneration Committee

Information on the evaluation cycle and duration, evaluation scope, method

and evaluation content of the internal evaluation:

)

The Company's "Regulations Govergithe Performance Evaluation of the

Board of Directors" has been approved by the Board of Directors, including that

the performance evaluation of functional committees should be completed before

the end of the year, and the performance evaluation resaltdd be reported

before the end of first quarter next year and submitted to the Board of Directors

for report.
(2) The Company has completed the evaluation of the operation of the Remuneration
Committee from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, ingjulden
selfeval uati on survey of 4 independent
resource office and audit office.
(3) The result of the performance evaluation of the Remuneration Committee in
2023 was "Excellent".
Evaluation Evaluated . Evaluation . .
. Scope of evaluation Highlights of evaluation
cycle period method
(1) Involvement in corporate operations
(2) Awareness ofhe duties of functional
F J 1 itt
fom January Compensationand Me mber s com_m_l ees ) . .
2023 to . . (3) Decisionmaking quality of functional
Every year Remuneration internal .
December 31, Committee meeting selfassessment committees
2023 g (4) Composition and election of members of

(©)

functional committees
Internal control

(V1)

Composition, duties, and operations of the Nomination Committee

We estabshed the Nomination Committee on December 24, 2020. According to
the committee charter, the committee shall be composed of the chairman and at

least three directors, one of whom shall be the convener, and a majority of the
committee members shall be inéeplent directors. The duties of the committee
include: 1. Establish and periodically review the number and qualifications of
directors and senior officers. 2. Recommend eligible candidates for the

Companyods

(al so

submit the review results and the reference list of candidates to the Board.

1. Professional qualifications and experience of members of the Nomination
Commitee
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March 31, 2024

Conditions .
) ) Fulfillment of
Status Expertise and Experieng
Independence
Name
Director Liu, PoYuan |[Committee members are all directors and
(Convener)
Independent | | i Rueivi independent directors of the Company. For
Director qualifications, experience, and indegence, please
Independent | ghang. Bacsi . _ .
Director 9 refer to "Disclosure of Directors' Professional
Indgpendent Chen, KuarPailQual i fi cati ons and 1 nd
Director
— . |Independence" of the annual report.
Independent | Hou, ChiaQi
Director

2. Status of operations of the Nomination Committee

(1) The Company's Nomination Committee consists of 5 members.

(2) The term of office of the current members: June 20, 2023 to June 19,
2026. In the most recent year ancbaghe date of publication of the
annual report, the Nomination Committee has held 4 meetings, and
the attendance of members and matters discussed are as follows:

o Attendance | Attendance through Ratio of attendance i
Position Name in person proxy person %) Remarks

Director .

Liu, PoYuan None
(Convener) 3 0 100
Independent . O

Lin, RuetYi None
Director 2 1 67
Independent Sheng, Babi None
Director ’ 2 1 67
Independent Chen, KuarPai None
Director ' 2 1 67
Independen L Inauguratean June
Director Hou, ChiaQi 2 0 100 20, 2023

Other details to be documented:
I. The Nomination Committee meeting was held on May 10, 2023, June 20, 2023, and July 12, 2023. The proposa
follows:
(1) General manager 6s qualificatiaontdt evi ew of tHh
(2) The nomination and qualification review of candidates for directors (including independent directors).
(3) Election of the convener and chairman of the second "Nomination Committee".
(4) Recommending the members of the 5th "Remuneration Cteerhi
. The above matters were all approved by the Committee.
IIl. Advice of the Nomination Committee rejected or revised by the Board: None.
Ill. Resolutions of the Nominatidommittee with objections or reservations by members with records or statements
writing: None.

3. Implementation of the Nomination Committee's evaluation

Information on the evaluation cycle and duration, evaluation scope, method
and evaluation content of the internal evaluation:
(1) The Company's "Regulations Governing the PerfoiceaEvaluation of
the Board of Directors" has been approved by the Board of Directors,
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including that the performance evaluation of functional committees
should be completed before the end of the year, and the performance
evaluation results should be refsat before the end of first quarter next
year and submitted to the Board of Directors for report.

(2) The Company has completed the evaluation of the operation of the
Nomination Committee from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023,
including the selevaluaion questionnaire of 4 independent directors,
CFOG6s office, the internal resoul

(3) The result of the performance evaluation of the Nomination
Committee in 2023 was "Excellent”.

Evaluation . Scope of Evaluation I .
cycle Evaluated period evaluaion method Highlights of evaluation
(1) Involvement in corporate operatior
(2) Awareness of the duties of
From January 1 functional committees
' I Me mber s o . .
2023 to Nomination . (3) Decisionmaking quality of
Every year ; internal _ _
December 31, Committee | ¢ - ccocsment functional committees
2023 (4) Composition and election of
members of functional committees
(5) Internal control
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(VII) Implementation of sustainable development and deviations from the Sustainable Development Best Practice
Principes for Public Companies and the reasons

Implementation status Deviation and causes of
deviation from the Sustainable
Items to be promoted )
Yes | No Summary Development Best Practice
Principles for Public Companie|
1. Does the Company establish a goveceasiructure to| V 1. Governance framework for promoting sustainable developn| No difference
promote sustainable development, and set up a In order to strengthen and promote the concept of corporate
dedicated (or pattime) unit to promote sustainable social responsibility and sustainable operation, the Board of
development, with senior management authorized Directors approved the establishment of "Corporate Social
the Board of Directors to handle the situation, and | Responsibility Management Committee” on March 7, 2019.
is the supervision of the Board Dfrectors? 2021, "ESG Committee" was renamed and established as

ASustainabl e Planning Offi (
the Chairman, convened by the Chief Financial Officer, and
senior executives are égsed to coordinate the management
each ESG task force.

2. Board authorization and supervision:

(1) On November 12, 2021, the Board of Directors approved
establishment of "Sustainability Planning Office" under 1
"ESG Committee" to promote sustaiha development
strategies and strengthen operational efficiency, respon
for promoting and integrating ESG task forces, and the
ESG Committee shall be convened at least once per qu
(A total of five meetings were convened in 2023).

(2) The "ESG ask Team" consists of unit managers from the
Chief Financial Officer's Office, Chief Strategy Office,
Corporate Communication Office, Human Resources
Office, Gamania Care Foundation, and Administrative
Service Department, to implement the corresponding E
tasks.

(3) The Office of Sustainability Planning reports the status o
ESG implementation to the board meeting at least once
year. (August 7, 2023 and November 6, 2023), and
submitted various projects to the Board of Directors fror
time to time.

(4) TheBoard of Directors fully authorizes and guides the
sustainable development strategies and implementation
proposed by "ESG Committee", including ESG sustaing

44



Implementation status

Items to be promoted

Deviation and causes of
deviation from the Sustainablg

Yes | No Summary Development Best Practice
Principles for Public Companie|
strategy blueprint, preparation of ESG sustainability rep|
(GRI, TCFD, etc.), carbon inspém and verification,
carbon reduction plan, and regularly reviews the operat
and results.
2. Does the Company conduct risk assessmentson | V 1. Boundaries of risk assessment No difference

environmental, social and corporate governance is
related to Companyowithop
the principle of materiality, and establish relevant ri
management policies or strategies?

The boundary of the risk assessment considers financial
materiality and industry relevance, covering the Company a
subsidiaries listed in CH.1 of the 2023 ESG report, with a fog
on operations in Taiwan. The sum of revenues covers 100%
the consolidated total revenues.
2. The ESG task team will propose strategies and action plang
the ESG Committee and the Boarddafectors in accordance
with the Company's sustainable development strategy, indu
characteristics, international sustainability issues and other
aspects regarding risk assessment strategies and standards
relevant major issues.

il
(1)

Environmental Issues

Has the company developed an appropriate
environmental management system, given its
distinctive characteristics?

The Company attaches great importance to environmental
protection issues. In addition to the establishment and
implementation of green procurement and energy managemel
Company has completed and inspected its greenhouse gas
emissions in 2023, and conducts inventory checks and inspec
every year.

No difference

(In

Does the company make efforts to enhancegsn
efficiency and use recycled materials to reduce|
environmental impacts and burdens?

We are in an industry that does not produce hazardous waste
pollution. However, as the construction and operation of data
centers need to consume a high volwhelectricity, we have
built the energy monitoring and management system at the
headquarters building. The system is composed of three
interconnected aspects: design, operation, and improvement g
analysis of energy conservation. In 2023, which wasitoeip's
first year of green electricity, the conversion of green electricity
the headquarter building accounted for almost 40% of the orig
power consumption.

No difference

D)

Does the company assess the present and futy
potential risks and omptunities of climate chang

and take the relevant countermeasures?

The Company has evaluated the potential risks and opportunit
of climate change at present and in the future. This year, the

Company passed Net Zero Declaration, the topics of carbon

No difference
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Implementation status

Items to be promoted

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation and causes of
deviation from the Sustainable
Development Best Practice
Principles for Public Companie|

reduction of computer rooms are submitted to the Board of
Directors by the ESG Committee, and the energy usage and
equipment renewal status are inspected regularly.

(IvV) Did the company produce statistics on the GH( V The Company has completed carbon inventory and inspection No difference
emissions, water consunit, and the total disclosed the greenhousesgamission, water consumption and
weight of waste in the last two years, and total weight of waste in the past two years and related managg
establish policies to reduce GHG emissions an procedures.
water consumption or other waste managemen
policies?
IV. Social Issues The Company complies with 17 "Sustainable Development G¢
() Has the company developed related managemer V (SDGs) of the United Nations, the "United Nations Universal | No difference
policies and procedures in accordance with Declaration of Human Rights", "United Nations Global Compa
applicable lawsad regulations and the "United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human
International Bill of Human Rights? Rights" and "International Labor Organization of the United
Nations", and internationally recognized human rights standar
also declares human rights commitments, formulates relevant
regulations, and calucts education and training.
(I) Did the company establish and implement \% We have established the relevant employee welfare measures No difference
reasonable employee welfare measures (includin reflect our operational performance or achievements in the
remuneration, leave, and other benefits) and empl oyeebs remuneration.
appropriately reflect its operational performance
achievementsinthemp | oyeebs r en
(1) Does the Company provide employees with a sa] V 1. For employee safety, the Group has formulated Safe Work ( No difference

and healthyvork environment as well as periodic
safety and health education?

of Conduct, monitoring the operating environment every six
months, and organizing occupational safety education and
training.

2. For employee health, the Company has established a
gymnasium and hired professional coaches to offer daily
courses and training such as: gymnastics, aerobics, and cir
training for employees to arrange.

3. The Company goes beyond regulations ¢aoize annual
employee health checkups and quarterhsive health visits;
currently, work desks have been changed to elevating desk
postureadjusting chairs to relieve employees' musculoskelel
symptoms, and create a healthy workplace environment.
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Implementation status

Items to be promoted

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation and causes of
deviation from the Sustainable
Development Best Practice
Principles for Public Companie|

4. The Company has been awarded Sports Enterprise Certific
Mark by the Sports Administration, Ministry of Education for
eight consecutive years (2016 to present).

5. The number of occupational disasters in 2023 was 2 (2 perg
in total), and there we no fire incidents occurred this year.
Subsequently, the Company assisted employees in applyin
occupational injury benefits, and reminded them to pay
attention on how to prevent occupational injuries and folligw
reporting procedures through occtipaal disaster education.

(IV) Has the Company established an effective trainin VvV We provide a welequipped learning environment and a No difference
program that helps employees develop skills ove well-planned education drtraining framework covering
the course of their career? orientation training for new employees, professional developm
training, and hierarchical training (Gamanian). Every year we
organize talks and irregular seminars (Gamania Classroom,
Gamania Content) supported withearning (Gamania Resource
to implement education and training. We also fund employees
take external training courses. The number of employee trainif
courses in 2023 was 272, of which 391 were organized by the
Company, with a total of 7,062 participants d#339 training
hours. Total training expenses for the year amounted to
$3,423,217.
(V) Does the company handle customer health and | V 1. We have established and implemented mechanisms and No difference
safety, customer privacy, marketing and labeling processes relemato our services based on the nature of
issues relating to products and services in business of individual products in accordance with the legal
compliance withthe relevant laws and regulations requirements and international standards, in order to ensur
and international standards, and has it establish€ protection for the rights and interests of consumers or
policies and grievance procedures to protect the customers.
rights and interests of consumers or customers? 2. Our customer servicewter also offers 24x7 services round t
year. In response to different product needs, we have also
arranged various service channels (telephone lines, a mesg
board on the official website, instant messengers, and a sm
chatbot).
(VI) Does the Company define supplier management| V The Compay's Administrative Service Department is responsilj No difference

policies and require that suppliers follow applicak

regulations in issues such as environmental

for the promotion and execution of related matters, and has

formulated a supplier management policy, including the signin
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Implementation status Deviation and causes of
deviation from the Sustainable
Items to be promoted .
Yes | No Summary Development Best Practice
Principles for Public Companie|
protection, occupational safety and health, or hur supplier's corporate social responsibility, annual supplier audit
rights of workers and how are they implemented?
V. Did the company prepare and publish reports su¢ V 1. The Company compiles the report according to GRI Standal No difference
as the sustainability report in accordance with the obtains confirmation from a thirgarty verification unit, and
internationally accepted reporting standards or sets up a corporate sustainable development sectiomr on th
gui delines to di sfindncgat e Company's website to simultaneously disclose the relevant
information? Are there opinions from a thparty information of the report on the Market Observation Post
qualification unit to validate or guarantee the saig System.
reports? 2. Assurance of the report:
2023 Annual Report, KPMG Taiwan

VI. If the company has established its own Sustainable@pment Best Practice Principles with reference to the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies, please state the differences in the operation from its best practice piodiifesence.

VII. Other importaninformation that helps understand the promotion of sustainable development:

() The Company cares about industrial safety, environmental protection, safety, and health and has respective units tagofaate them.

(I The Company has created maoly opportunities and has been selected as one of the "Top 100 Companies to Desire for New Generation". The Company ha
established an employee welfare committee, implemented a pension system, organized employee training courses, orggeegsrepiployee group insuranc
arranged regular health examinations. We value harmonious labor relations.

(I The Company's Welfare Committee has actively participated in and called on employees to take part in various chadtglsalidg eventslbyear round to help
relevant social welfare groups.

(IV)  The Company established the "Gamania Social Welfare Charity Foundation" in April 2007 to continue caring for young peoggeemung people to dream, an
implement various public welfare peajts.

(V)  The Company supports the development of domestic culture, such as supporting domestic original arts with cultural @md/estatént, and driving the IP
industry.
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Implementation of climate-related information

Item

Implementation status

1. Describe the monitoring and
governance of climateslated risks
and opportunities by the Board of
Directors and the management.

In response to climate change issues, Gamania has established a "TCFD Working Group", joint
managed by the "Environmentali8lyiosis Team" and "ESG Sustainability Planning Office". The
Director of the Administrative Services Department is responsible for managing and promoting
environmental projects such as greenhouse gas inventory and carbon reduction actions, with re
repats to the Sustainable Development Committee and the Board of Directors. The board is full
empowered and provides guidance on clintatated issues, including reéro declarations, carbon
reduction targets, and strategic planning.

2. Describe how thelentified climate
risks and opportunities affect the
business, strategy and finance (sh
medium, and longerm).

Climate change financial impact analysis (risk)

Through the climate risk identification process, a matrix is drawn based on the procatieotial
impact severity" and "potential vulnerability”, with results categorized into low, medium, andiskg
levels. The results of Gamania's 2023 assessment indicate that all-ckfated risks are classified a
medium to lowlevel, with the toghree risks identified as key risk issues. The potential impact an(
financial impact of the relevant risks, responsive measures and management plans are as folloy

: Potential
Risk - ) .
issues Impact description financial Response measures/managememspla
impact
To meet the requirements of 1. Establishment dfuilding intelligent monitoring system:
NZE scenario, which calls for & Gamania's headquarters building is equipped with an energy monit
threefold increase in renewable management system that digitizes the monitoring, analysis, and
energy capacity and a fourfold calculation of building energy consumption, including air conditionin
Market risk increase in energy efficiency, lighting, water dispensers, office machines, light sensors, and air
] energy prices may rise . quality. This system allows for the setting of constant temperatures,
Increase in o ) Changen energy L ) . .
) sgnificantly to reflect their true ) scheduled lighting, timed device operations, alegp modes, thereby
the price of ) ) costs, operating o ) ] )
costs. Due to climate risks, the ) achieving energy savings and air quality management.
energy and L costs, and increase :
. fluctuation in prices of energy, | . 2.Energy conservation measures:
raw materials . .. | in expenses ) . ) - o
(long-term) crude oil, and raw materials in With the goal of improving energy efficiency and prioritizing
g Gamaniabs valu environmental conservation and energy savings, the building has b
lead to increased procurement re-planned, repaéd, and staff have been continuously educated to r
expenses, server room awareness of energy conservation
maintenance, and other (1) Turn off the lights in office at any time. Some public areas are
operating costs equipped with light sensors to turn off the lights duringhaftirs.
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Item

Implementation status

(2) Replace old and energytensive airconditioning equipment, and
regularly clean and maintain them to improve operational efficie

(3) Replace old lamps with higgfficiency LED lights to save
electricity. In 2023, the office fully replaced its lighting system wi
LEDs, totalhg 1,671 LED lights.

(4) Sunshade designs reduce indoor exposure to sunlight, which
enhance cooling efficiency.

3. Achievements and goals:

Per capita electricity consumption in 2023 decreased by 1,686

kWh/year compared to 2022, or a 17% reduction, farediog the

annual target of 1% per capita electricity reduction (base year of 20

According to TCCIP estimates,
applying the IPCC SSR-8.5
scenario to Taiwan shows an
increase in the frequency of
extreme weather events. If
drought leads to water supply
interruptions or water shortage|

Immediate causing water price to increase
risk the following risks may arise:
Extreme Awater supply
weather- to drought can lead to
drought operational disruptions or
(long-term) increased operating dssfor
Gamania or its value chain
AData center c
supply interruptions, increase(
frequency of equipment
maintenance, or even
equipment damage, leading t(
higher operating costs
Long-term Based on TCCIP's estimates
risks and applyinghe IPCC AR6

Average rise
in
temperature
(long-term)

warming scenarios of 1.5°C to
4°C in Taiwan, it is expected
that sea levels around Taiwan'g

coastal areas will rise by 0.5 to

Operational
interruptions,
supply chain
disruptions,
increased opeting
costs due to
equipment
maintenance,
energy usage, or
decreased
production
capacity

1. Improve the ability to resist natural disasters:

Strengthen the building structure and add contingency measures in
response to disasters to maintain the effectisgioé BCM. Gamania's
IT systems and equipment are all equipped with business continuity
plans, which are regularly reviewed and tested.

2. Improve water resource efficiency and avoid water waste:
Gamania has completed the replacement of sensor faucets in
washbasins, continues to promote water conservation, and plans m
comprehensive water resource management policies to reduce wat
usage.

3. Energy conservation measures
Same as the description of market risk.

4. Supply chain resilience
Gamania has estasied a supplier management policy, evaluates ar
selects suitable partners according to the policy while actively
promoting sustainable development with suppliers to jointly reduce
environmental impact. In the future, climate risk issues will graduall
beincorporated to identify high climate risk suppliers for strengtheng
management and guidance, and enhance the climate resilience of
Gamania's supply chain.
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Item Implementation status

1.2 meters, accompanied by ar
increase in the duration of
drought seasons and extreme
high temperatures. This will
have the following impacts on
Gamania:

AThe physical
employees has a negative
impact, resulting in a decreas
in work efficiency or an
increase in turnover rate, and
higher labor costs for Gamanil

ADue to more f
conditioning inserver rooms,
there will be increased
electricity consumption,
leading to energy shortages
and posing risks to all busineg
developments. This will also
drive Gamania to incur higher
costs to transform its overall
business strategy

Climate change financial impact analysis (opportunity)

In 2023, Gamania considered its industry characteristics and industry benchmarks, and established a lis
climaterelated opportunities. The TCFD team evaluated and confirmed that these opportunities align wit
Gamanis business philosophy and strategic direction. The team identified potential climate opportunitie
business prospects under the dcarbon transition trend, including resource efficiency, products and servic
and green procurement/supply chains.Nafee further formulated internal strategies and goals, and our
management and action plans are described in the following table:

o Internal strategies and Potential .
Opportunity issues . L Management and action plans
goals financial impact
Resource efficiency Gamania etively promotes Decrease in operatin{ (1) The headquarters building is equipped with an
In response to climate digital transformation, the use of| costs intelligent energy monitoring and manageingystem
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Item

Implementation status

change, Gamania has
introduced or developed
new technologies and
equipment applicable to
renewable energy use,
resource efficiency, and
green buildings, aiming to
reduce operating costs or
enhance resilience to
climate risks

renewable energy, and
environmentally friendly
low-carbon materials. The
Company continues to educate
employees on water conservatio|
energy savings, and waste
reduction, planning more
comprehensive wateesource
and waste management policies
minimize resource consumption
and implement the Group's
environmental symbiosis
philosophy

to digitally monitor and analyze the building's energ
consumption to save power and manage air quality|

(2) The office lighting system was replaced with LED ir|
2023. Sensor lights were installed in some areas a
patrol inspection has been strémgpted during
off-hours

(3) Initiatives for paperless operations and cloud
compression, such as utilizing cloud storage,
replacing traditional whiteboards with digital
meetings, sticky notes, and other alternatives are
being pushed forward

(4) Production oenvironmental awareness videos to ra|
employees' awareness of energy conservation

Products and services

In response to the green
trend and changes in
consumer behavior,
develop and innovate our
own services to achieve
opportunities to expand
into new lusiness areas
and new markets

Gamania leverages digital
network technologies and
incorporates Al and big data to
innovate products and services,
effectively integrating group
synergies, increasing operationa
efficiency, enhancing service
experiences, gaing consumer
approval, and providing digital
business solutions that integrate
cloud data centers, cybersecurity
services, and mobile security

Innovate lowcarbon
services, enter new
markets, and increas
revenue

(1) In response to the major enterprisetive cloud
transformation in 2023 to reduce the carbon emissi
generated by server rooms, the Company's
cloudrelated service revenue has also grown on a
yearly basis

(2) Digicentre WeMB 3D digital avatar visualization
platform integrates cloud, inforrtian security, energy|
and environmental control systems to effectively
assist corporate transformation. Cumulative sales d
nearly NTD 40 million in the past two years, with
more than 10 key clients having adopted the produ

(3) Product manager shares taeest market information
and trends in the strategy meeting, and formulates
next stage of product service and sales strategy

Green
procurement/supply
chain

The Company prioritizes
the procurement of
environmentally certified
products (low pollution,
recyclable,
resourcesaving, or green
building materials),

Gamania has established a
supplier management policy,
working together with suppliers
to promote sustainable
development and jointly reduce
environmental impacts. The
Company actiely pushes for
green procurement, selecting
cloud service providers with

strong ESG performance, and

Reduce operating
costs, supply chain
reliability, and
improve reputation

(1) Priority was given to purchasing desktop and laptoy
computers with ecéabels, totaling over NTD 10.8
million

(2) In 2023, Gamania headquarters building replaced g
lamps by purchasing higgfficiency and
energysaving LED lights. The purchase amount wa|
NTD 10.83 million.

(3) Green procurement centralized by the headquarter
amounted to NTD 21.79 million, the Company
continuously receives "112 Buying Power Service
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Item

Implementation status

self-declared or green life
cycle products with
minimal environmental
impact from raw material
acquisition to disposal.
Gamania actively
participates in green
procurement programs an

sourcing office supplies like LED
bulbs, computer hardware, and
paper products that meet
environmental regulations, 1SO
certifications, and PEFC forest
catification

Procurement Award" from the Ministry of Economic
Affairs' Small and Medium Enterprise Administratio
practices responsible consumption and production,
and fosters innovative collaborations between
businesses and social innovation organizations
(4) Establishrent of "Supplier Management Policy" to
continue to require independent management of ng
suppliers and the signing of "Supplier's Corporate
activities,driving green Social Responsibility Statement”
consumption practices
within the industry and

among the public

3. Describe the financial impacts of extrel
climate events and transformation
actions.

The Company is actively implementing ene@ving, carbomeducing, green power procurement, and
equipment replacement transformation projects at all operational sites across Taiwan. For details on the
impact, please refer to the prevéosections on the financial impact analysis of climate change (risks) and {
financial impact analysis of climate change (opportunities).

4. Describe how the process of climate rig
identification, assessment and
management is integrated into the
overallrisk management system.

After establishing a list of climate risks and opportunities, relevant departments identified and assessed
opportunities across Gamania's value chain. By referencing common practices in risk management, eac
impactseverity and vulnerability were evaluated and prioritized for significant risk hazards. These were t
integrated into the Group's risk management system to ensure timely preparation and implementation of
contingency measures. However, accordingusiness assessment, climate risk is considered-aslowatter,
and the Company voluntarily manages and discloses it in accordance with the TCFD framework.

5. If a scenario analysis is used to evalua|
the resilience of climate change risks,
the scearios, parameters, assumption
analysis factors and main financial
impacts shall be explained.

When assessing and ranking climate risks, the Company incorporates Net Zero Emissions (NZE) scenal
published by the International Energy Agency (IEA) andRd#2.6 and RCP8.5 scenarios proposed by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) to discuss the risks and opportunities of Gamania U
different climate scenarios.

6. If there is a transformation plan in
response to the management of
climate-related risks, describe the
content of the plan, the indicators and

targets used to identify and manage

In 2023, the Company announced "Net Zero Declaration"; Gamania Group is committed to achieve net ;
carbon emigsen by 2050, and has also formulated a transformation plan (please refer to Question 2 aboyv
set relevant indicators to track it.

1. Absolute reduction of greenhouse gases from the base year.

2. The Group's renewable energy procurement ratio.
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Item Implementation status

physical and transformation risks. 3. The poportion of renewable energy in the server room.

7. If the internal carbon pricing is used as| The Company does not use internal carbon pricing as a planning tool for the time being.
planning tool, the basis for setting the
price shall be explained.

8. If climaterelated targets are set, the The Company has made a "Net Zero Declaration" and set a carbon reduction target by 2050: Achieving
Company should specify the activities| and Scope 2 carbon neutrality by 2030, and net zebmoamission by 2050.
covered, the scope of greenhouse gay The Company actively introduces solar energy procurement and plans to increase the use of renewable

emissions, planning timeline, and a yearly basis. When renewable energy technology matures in the future, the goal is to purchase 100%
progress achieved each year. If carbg energy, suclas geothermal and hydrogen energy. In March 2023, Gamania headquarters building has be
offsets or Renewable Energy procure solar green power, and the number of purchased green power certificates has accumulated to 9

Certificates (RECs) are used to achie
related goals, the source and quantity,
carbon reductions or RECs used shou
be explained.

9. Greenhouse gas inventory and assurance, as wellesioadargets, strategies and concrete action plans (please fill and 12 separately).

1-1 The Company's greenhouse gas inventory in the last two years

1-1-1 Greenhouse gas inventory information

Describe the greenhouse gas emission volume (metric@O2e), intensity (metric tons CO2e/NTD million), and data coverage for the most recent two years,

With a capital of less than NTD 5 billion, the Company voluntarily conducts an early audit and assurance of the pargnandritpdaiwan operations.

2022 2023
Total emissions (metric tons Intensity (metric tons Total emissions (metric tons Intensity (metric tons
CO2e) CO2e/NTD million) CO2e) CO2e/NTD million)
Scope 1 45.882 0.004 193.463 0.020
Scope 2 5,267.656 0.463 4,559.764 0.466
Scope 3 3,541.213 0.311 3,789.482 0.387
Total 8,854.751 0.778 8,542.709 0.873
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1-1-2 Greenhouse Gas Assurance Information

Describe the status of assurance in the last two years up to the date of publication of the annual report, includiagtlassomgmce saurance institutions
assurance criteria, and assurance opinion.

2022 2023
Scope of assurancg Gamania Digital Entertainment and its subsidiaries in Taiwg Gamania Digital Entertainment and its subsidiaries in Taiw;
.Ass.urz?mce Det Norske ¥ritas (DNV) Det Norske Veritas (DNV)
Institutions
Assurance criteria ISO 14066:2011, ISO 14065:2020, ISO14852019 ISO 14066:2011, ISO 14065:2020, 1ISO14(852019
The verification is conducted for Scope 1 and 2 emissions at| The verification is conducted for Se® 1 and 2 emissions at a
reasonable assuranewel, although the assurance level is reasonable assurance level, although the assurance level is
Assurance opinion | determined based on evidence gathered during the process.| determined based on evidence gathered during the process.
indirect greenhouse gas emissions in various categories are| indirect greenhouse gas emissions in various categories are
verified according to an agreegon procedure (AUP). verified according to an agreegon proceduréAUP).

1-2 Greenhouse gas reduction goals, strategies and concrete action plans
The Company states the base year and data for greenhouse gas reduction, reduction targets, strategies, specificaactiproglass, towards the reduction targg

Carbon reduction goals of Gamania Group:

By 2030, the Company aims to reduce carbon emissions by 78% for Scope 1 and Scope 2 compared to 2022 (base year3, carth@cmewveality for Scope ]
and Scope 2, with a target of +sdro carbon emissiony 2050.

The detailed action plans are as foll ows:

(1) Turn off the lights in office at any time. Some public areas are equipped with light sensors to turn off the lightsfehuwins.

(2) The Company implements smart air conditioning controls inesffio manage air conditioning time, conserve electricity, and avoid waste (maintaining a

temperature of 226°C).

(3) Replace old and energytensive aiconditioning equipment, and regularly clean and maintain them to improve operational efficiency.

(4) Replace old lamps with higgfficiency LED lights to save electricity.

(5) Sunshade designs reduce indoor exposure to sunlight, which enhance cooling efficiency.

(6) A smart monitoring system is installed in buildings to monitor air conditioning, lightiater dispensers, office machines, sensor lights, and air quality. Th
system can set constant temperatures, schedule lightffuschedule power on/off, and activate sleep mode at set times, thereby achieving energy savi
managing air quality.

(7) In 2023, the Gamania headquarters building used about 21% of solar green power, and the cumulative number of percipasest gertificates was 901.
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(VIIT) Fulfillment of Ethical Corporate Management and Deviation from Ethical Corporate Managgestn
Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies and the Reasons

Operation Deviation from Ethical
Corporate Management Be
Evaluation item ves | No Summary Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and Reasons
l. Establishment of Ethad Corporate Management Policy and
Proposal ) The Company has formulated the regulations and poliNo difference
() Hasthe Company defined ethical corporate management \Y related to ethical corporate management, which have
policies approved by the board meeting, and declared its e approved by the Board of Direxs the Board of
corporate management policies and procedures in its rules Directors and the management adhere to the principlg
external documents, as wall the commitment of its Board o ethical corporate management to maximize sharehold
Directors and senior management to implementing the equity.
management policies? (I The Company has set up the exclusive unit to promot
(I Has the Company established an evaluation mechanism fg V ethical corporate management under the Board of
unethical behavioral risks that helps periodically analyze ar Directors,sh e AChi ef Executi ve
evaluate operational actiies of relatively high unethical responsible for defining and supervising the
behavioral risks within the scope of operation and defined ¢ implementation of the ethical corporate management
solution to prevent against unethical behaviors accordingly policy and preventive solutions and reporting to the Bg
covers at least the preventive measures against respective of Directors periodically on the implementation status.
under Article 7 Paragraph 2 thfe Ethical Corporate Related regulations and information have been disclog
Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Liste on the corporate website.
Companies. () The Company has set up the exclusive unit to promot
(I Does the Company have the operational procedures, beha] V ethical corporate management under the Board of
guidelines, punishment and complaint systems clearly defir Directors, the AChief EX
the program to prevent unethical doct and the responsite for defining and supervising the
implementationand the program is regularly reviewed and implementation of the ethical corporate management
amended? policy and preventive solutions and reporting to the Bq
of Directors periodically on the implementation status.
Related regulations and information have been disclog
on the corporate website.
Il. Consolidation of Ethical Corporate Management ()] The Company has a rating mechanism in place for cu
(I) Does the Company evaludtee ethical corporate management Y customers and suppliers. The rights and obligations a{No difference
records of parties it does business with, and has it stipulate as the confidentiality clause of both parties areildetin
ethical conduct clauses in businesstracts with them? a business contract entered into.
(I Has the Company established a dedicated unit under the BV (I The Company has established a dedicated unit under

of Directors to promote ethical corporate management and

Board of Directors, the Chief, to take charge of the
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Operation

Evaluation item

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from Ethical
Corporate Management Be
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed

Companies and Reasons

()

(V)

(V)

report its ethical management policy and solution to preven
against unethical behaviors and the status of im@hgation to
the Board of Directors periodically (at least once a year)?
Has the Company established policies to prevent against
conflicts of interest, provided appropriate channels for filing
related complaints and implemented the policies accdyding
Has the company created effective accounting and internal
control systems to consolidate ethical corporate managems
and have those systems audited by either internal auditors
CPAs on a regular basis?

Does the Company holdternal and exdrnal training on ethica
corporate management regularly?

promotion and related planning. It reports the ethical
corporate management policy and the preversihation
and monitoring and implementation status to the Boar
Directors at least once a year.

The Company already has the Guidelines for Recusal
Cases of Conflicting Personal Interests for Group
Employees in place. Any conflict of interestncbe
reported to the respective supervisor.

The Company's Audit Office sets respective routine,
nonroutine, exceptional, and impromptu audit plans e
year and reports to the Board of Directors how audits
performed.

The Company holds inteahand external educational
trainings on ethical corporate management periodicall

()

(V)

V)

il
(1)

(In

(1)

Whistle-blowing System of the Company
Has the compangstablished substantial reporting and incen
systems to provide convenient reporting afela and assign
appropriate personnel to investigate reported matters?
Has the company established any standard operating proc
subsequent measures to be adopted after the investigation
completed, or confidentiality mechanisms for handlinmpreed
matters?

Does the company assure employees who reported on
malpractices that they will not be improperly treated for mal
suchreports?

The Company has established the Operational Procedures &
Guidelines of Ethical Corporatdanagement Best Practice tha
cover thorough whistleblowing measures, the standard operg
procedure and confidentiality mechanism for the investigatio
reported matter, applicable measures to protect the whistlebl
External whistleblowing is undehe charge of the dedicated ur
under the Board of Directors, the Audit Office while internally
the responsible unit is the Human Resources Office, which p
and operates related whistleblowing systems. If a report mat
found to be true, the rpensible unit will report it along with ho
it will be handled and the subsequent corrective actions to th
Board of Directors. Related regulations and information are
already disclosed on the corporate website.

No difference

IV.Reinforced InformatiorDisclosure

(1)

Has the company disclosed information regarding its ethicg
corporate managemepitinciplesand implementation status o

its website and the MOPS?

The Company has disclosed information regarding its ethical
corporate management prinigp and implementation status on
website and the MOPS.

No difference

V. Ifthe company has its own Ethical Management Principles established according to the Ethical Corporate Management®&strieiplets for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies, pleastescribe the differences between its implementation and the prindiples:
VI. Other important information that helps understand the implementation of ethical corporate management of the dongany:
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i ndepen

(IX) Corporate Governance Best Practice Primd@nd related regulations:
Please refer to the Company's website and the Market Observation Post System.
(X)  Other information material to the understanding of the Company's
corporate governance practices
Gamania has been devoted to corporate goverramehe long term and
hopes to create maximum shareholder equity and sustainable corporate
operation by enhancing the function of the Board of Directors, establishing
functional committees, strengthening communications with stakeholders, and
reinforcing nformation disclosure, among others.
1. Voluntary establishment of the Nomination Committee
In the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors of the tenth intake on
December 24, 2020, establishment of the Nomination Committee was
approved. The Committee cosis of four members in total that are the
Companyds Chairman and all
(1) Committee Membership and Professionalism
All members of the Committee are equipped with diversified
professionalism, including operation and management, industr
knowledge, leadership, and decisimaking. They are either
outstanding entrepreneurs or professionals with enriched experience
in finance and operation.
Diversified professionalism
Position Name | Making judgment Accguntirlg Operational Crisis Industrial Internationz _ o ,
. and finamial I market | Leadership | Decisionmaking
about operations| managemen| managemen| knowledge .
analyses views
Director Liu, . . 5 . . . . .
(Convener] poYuan o] o] o] 0 0 0 0 0
Independer]  Lin, 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Director | RuetYi
Independer] Sheng, 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Director | BaosSi
Independer; Chen, 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Director | KuanPai
Independer] Hou, 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Director | ChiaQi

)

Duties of the Committee

To propose a list of suitable candidates for the director or
high-ranking managerial openingsttte Board of Directors
(including those of subsidiaries) and review in advance the candidates

recommended by shareholders or the Board of Directors by law and

submit the review results and the reference list of candidates to the
Board of Directors.
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While proposing the list of independent director candidates, attention
shall be paid to the experience, professionalism, integrity, and
fulfillment of the Securities and Exchange Act, Regulations
Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance
Matters for Public Companies, and applicable laws and regulations
regarding the criteria of independent directors of each candidate and
the developments of the Company and the Hmng interest of
shareholders shall be the primary considerations.

(3) Businessmplementation in 2023: Please refer to "Composition,

Responsibilities and Operations of the Nomination Committee" of the
annual report.

2. Appointmenif CorporateGovernance Officer

In the fourth meeting of the Board of Directors of the tenth intake on
November 11, 2020, the establishment of the corporate governance

supervisor was approved. It would be served by the Chief Financial Officer
Su, HsinHung, who has experience of working as the supervisor of

shareholder affairs and corporate governanetated affairs in public
companies for at least three years.
(1) Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Supervisor
To take care of corporate governamet@ted affairs, including matters

rel at e

(2) Business implementation in 2023

d to

To prepare

t he

t he

organizationngof s/
of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Compensation

and Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and related
functional committees, helping directors to take office and comply

with laws and regulations, providing directors with eratls required

for them to perform tasks, and other matters defined by law, in the
Articles of Incorporation, or in contracts, etc.

agenda for a
Direct or s 6memtngdf eachgf the tumctiomal committees,

provide the agenda and related attachments by the statutory deadline,
and communicate with the Board of Directors members or the
members of each of the said committees in advance and prepare
meeting minuteselated documentation.

Name of Meeting

Shar eh
meeting

Board of
Direci
meeting

Audit Committee
meeting

Compensation and
Remuneration Committe
meeting

Frequency

1

6

5

3

(3) Continuing education of corporate governance officers
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In accordance withgor agr aph 2, Article 24
the Setup of t he BmexhiedcompdrateDi r e c |
governance officers (CCGO) shall complete 18 hours of continuing
study within one year after taking office, and 12 hours of

continuing study isequired in subsequent years.

The corporate governance officer has completed 12 hours of

training in 2023.

o o Hours
Date Training agency Description )
involved

. How do senior executives supervis
Securities and Futures P

October 19, 2023||nstitute the Company's ¢erprise risk 3 hours
management and crisis managem

_|Securities and Futures |2030/2050 Green Industrial
November 6, 2023, stitute Revolution 3 hours

The latest "ESG sustainability" ang
"self-preparation of financial
statements" related policy 6 hours
development and internal control
management practices

Accounting Research ar
December 12, 202|peyelopment Foundatio
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(XI) Implementation of the internal control system
1. Declaration on Internal Control:
Date: March 62024

The Companygtates the fotiwing with respect to its 2023 internal control system based on the results of a

selfassessment:

VI.

The Company knows that establishing, enforcing, and maintaining an internal control system is the
responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors andagers and has such a system in place already.
The purpose of the system is to reasonably ensure the achievement of various objectives, including
operational efficiency and effectiveness (including profitability, business performance and the security of
assets), the reliability, timeliness and transparency of information disclosed, and compliance with relevant
guidelines as well as relevant laws and regulations.

The internal control system has its inherited restrictions that cannot be overcome wavetingesign.

An effective internal control system can also only reasonably ensure the fulfillment of the three goals
stated above and its effectiveness may change as the environment

or situation changes. There is a slfveillance mechanism, howevetiilt inside the internal control

system of the Company that helps the Company take a corrective action against deficiencies confirmed.
The Company determines the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal control system
in accor@dnce with the items in "Governing Regulations for Public Company's Establishment of Internal
Control System" (hereinafter called "Governing Regulations") that are related to the effectiveness of
internal control systems. The items adopted in the GoveRgmlations for determining the internal

control system are the five constitutional elements of the internal control system divided according to the
management and control process: 1. control environment, 2. risk assessment, 3. control process, 4.
information and communication, and 5. supervision. Each element further encompasses several items.
Please refer to "Governing Regulations" for details.

The Company has already adopted the aforesaid items for assessing the effectiveness of its internal
controlsystem in terms of system design and implementation.

Based on the aforementioned evaluation results, the Company believes that its internal control system
(including the supervision and management of subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2023, includtbsigthe

and implementation of a reliable, timely, transparent and compliant internal control system with relevant
regulations and applicable laws and regulations, are effective and can reasonably ensure the achievement
the above objectives.

This dechration constitutes a major part of the Company's Annual Report and the Company's Prospectus
that are made available to the public. If the aforesaid published contents are found to be false, or
fraudulent in any way, the Company and its management sHalyaky liable in accordance with

Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

VII. This statement was approved by the Company's Board of Directors on March 6, 2024. Among the 6 directo

present, O had objections and the remaindexgatted with the content of this statement and declare here.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Liu, Péruan Signature/Seal
President: Liu, P&fuan Signature/Seal
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(X1

(XII)

2. If review of the internal audit system is outsourced to CPAs as an
excepton, the CPA Review Report shall be disclosed: None.

Details of the penalty imposed on the Company and its internal
staff as required by law or that imposed by the Company on its
internal staff for violating requirements of the internal control
systemin the most recent year up to the date the annual report was
printed, that may have significant impacts on the shareholder
equity or prices of securities; list the penalties imposed, major
deficiencies and improvements already madee.

Importar resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and the Board of
Directors in the most recent year and up to the date of publication
of the annual report

1. Important resolutions of the 2023 annual shareholders' meeting

Date of meetin| Summary of important prajsals Implementation status
Recognition of 2022 financial [The pr oposal was appro
statements meeting.

This proposal was approved by the shareholders'
meeting, and the disbittion of cash dividends was
completed on August 18, 2023

Recognition of 2022arnings
appropriation

The list of elected representatives is as follows:

Director: Liu, Peyuan, Representatives of Wanin

June 20, 2023 . International Co., Ltd.: Hsiao, Cheitpo, Lin,

Election for 7 seats of the 11th . )
. HsienMing

Board of Directors . L o
Independent Directors: Sheng, B8 Lin, Rueti,

Chen, KuarPai, Hou, ChieQi

Change registration was completed on July 12, 2(

Release of nagompetition )

. ) The proposalwasapprewd i n t he sh
restrictions for new directors an )
meeting.

their representatives

2. Important decisions of the Board of Directors

In 2023 and up to the date of printing of this annual report, the summary
of important resolutions of the Board of Directors is as follows

Date Important decision

Approved the Company's 2022 financial statements.
Approval for the Company's 2022 distribution of remuneration to employees and

directors.
March 9. | Approved the Company's 2022 earnings appropriation proposal.
2023 ' Approved the 2023 remuneration of directors andamgars recommended by the

Company's Remuneration Committee.

Approved the replacement of the Company's CPAs.

Approved the proposal for the independence evaluation of the Company's CPAs a
subordinate CPA firm of the Company in 2023.
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Date

Important decision

Approved the Compar's internal control system from January 1, 2022 to December
2022, and the issuance of an internal control statement based on the results of the
selfassessment.

Approved the full reelection of directors.

Approved the lifting of norcompetition restations for new directors.

Approved the motion to determine the matters related to the convening of the 202
general shareholders' meeting of the Company.

Approved the Company's 2023 budget.

Approval of donation for the Gamania Cheer Up Foundation.

Approvedthe capital increase of subsidiary "Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd.".

May 10,
2023

Approval of the amendment to the Com
Implementation of Internal Audit.

Approved the Company's consolidated financiakestegnts for 2023 Q1.

Approved the proposal for the Company's 2022 directors' remuneration and mana
officers' remuneration.
Approved the nomination and qualification review of candidates for directors (inclu
independent directors).

Approved the cafal increase of subsidiary "Nownews Network Co., Ltd.".

June 20,
2023

Approval of the appointment of the C
Approved the establishment of the "Audit Committee".
Approved the appointment of the Company's second "Nomination Committee" nse

July 12,
2023

Approved the appointment of the Company's 5th "Remuneration Committee" mem
Approval of the determination of the fividend base date for the Company

August 7,
2023

Approved the Company's consolidated financial statements for@p23
Approved the establishment of the first "Risk Management Committee".

November
6, 2023

Approved the Company's consolidated financial statements for 2023 Q3.
Approved the formulation of the Company's 2024 annual audit plan.
Approved the 2023 "Performam&valuation of the Board of Directors".
Approved the motion to amend the Company's "Sustainable Development Commif
Charter".

Approved the motion to amend the Company's "Corporate Social Responsibility B
Practice Principles".

Approved the amendmerntisthe Company's "Procedures for Transactions with Spe
Companies, Group Enterprises and Related Parties".

Approved the change of "Deputy Spokesperson".

Approved the establishment of an "Information Security Supervisor."

March 6,
2024

Approved the Comany's 2023 financial statements.

Approved the motion for the Company's 2023 internal control system statement.
Approved the proposal for the independence evaluation of the Company's CPAs a|
subordinate CPA firm of the Company in 2024.

Approved the 13 remuneration of directors and managers recommended by the
Company's Remuneration Committee.

Approval for the Company's 2023 distribution of remuneration to employees and
directors.

Approved the Company's 2023 earnings appropriation proposal.

Approved themotion to determine the matters related to the convening of the 2024
general shareholders' meeting of the Company.

Approved the amendments to the Company's "Rules of Procedure for Board of Diy
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(XIV)

(XV)

(XVI)

Date Important decision

Meetings".
Approved the "Groupds tax policy".
Approvedhe est abli shment of the " Groupds
Approved the Company's 2024 budget.
Approved the motion for the Company to participate in the cash capital increase of
Walkermedia Co., Ltd.

, Approval of donation for the Gamania Cheer Up Foulodati
Approved the capital increase of subsidiary "Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd."
Approved the capital increase of subsidiary "Nownews Network Co., Ltd.".
Approved the Company's participation in the cash capital increase of "Flourish Wig
Limited".

. Approved the motion for the Company to acquire the equity of "Gash Point Co., Ltg
from "Conetter Comarketing Co., Ltd.".

, Approved the motion for the Company to acquire the equity of "Gamania Payment
Ltd." from "Gash Point Co., Ltd." and "Gash RqHK) Co., Ltd.".

Main contents of different opinions of directors or supervisors that
are recorded and stated in writing on important decisions made by
the board meetings in the most recent year up to the publication
date of the annual repoNbne.

Summary of resignations and dismissals of the Company's
Chairman, President, head of accounting, head of finance, head of
internal audit, head of corporate governance, and head of R&D in
the most recent year up to the publication date of thesdameport:
None.

Status of the acquisition of certificates and licenses designated by
the competent authority by the Company's financial information
transparency related personnel

Name of certificate Number of peoplg
Internal Auditor Certificate 1
Basic Internal Corporate Control Skills Qualification Certific 2
Trust and Investment Underwriter 1
Shareholder Service Professionalism Qualification Certifica 2
Professional Trust Business Provider Qualification Certifica 1
Certification in Rek Management Assurance (CRMA) 1
Intangible Asset AppraiserBasic Ability Appraisal 1
ROC CPA

US CPA 1
Brokerage Senior Dealer Qualification Certificate 1
Brokerage Dealer Qualification Certificate 2

64






V. Information on CPA Fees:

Currency: NT$$1,00

Name of Name of . | Audit public | Non-audit public
. . Duration of the audit ) ) Total Remarks
Accounting Firm| CPA expenditure expenditure
Yen, January 1, 2023 Description of noraudit publig
Yu-Fun | December 31, 2023 expenditures: Provide
verification and certification
PwC Taiwan . services for the direct
Lin January 1, 2023 o = %o deduction method of busineg
Yung-Chi| December 31, 2023 .
tax far concurrent business
operators.

(1) Where the audit fees paid during the year of change of accounting
firm are less than the audit fees paid in the previous year, the amount
of audit fees before arafter the change and the reason for the change

shall be disclosedione.

(2)  When the public audit expenditure has decreased by 10% or more
compared to the previous year, the amount, percentage and reason

shall be disclosedione.

VI. Information on Replacement of CPAs:

The Company shall disclose the following if it has changed its CPA in the

last two years and thereafter
(D About the former CPA

Date of Replacement

March 9, 2023

Reason for Replacement and Descrip

To go with the internal organizatial adjustment of PwC Taiwa

appointment

Explain if the appointee or accountant
terminated or does not accept the

Client .
CPA Authorizer

Status
Spontaneous termination of|  Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, None
appointment Yu-Fun

Does not accept (continue

. . pt ( nd None None
with) appantment

Opinions expressed in audit reports of
than unqualified opinions issued withi
the most recent two years and the rea

None

publisher

Different opinions from those of the

Accounting principles or practice

Disclosure of ihancial statements

Yes Scope of inspection or steps

Other
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None O
Description

Other Matters

(Those that should be disclosed as
indicated in ltems -4 to 1-7, None
Subparagraph 6 of Article 10 of these
Guidelines)

(I

About the Succeeding @P

Name of Accounting Firm PwC Taiwan

Name of CPA Yen, YuFung and Lin, YungChi

Date of Authorization March 9, 2023

Consultations and findings about opinions possibly signed
on the accounting approach of specific transactions and None
financial statemestprior to authorization.

Written opinions of succeeding CPAs that differ from those
former CPAs

None

(Il

(V)

Replies of former CPAs to Article 10 Paragraph 6 Item 1 and Item 2
Matter 3 of the Guideline®ot applicable.

Eval uat i dnidepenflencE PAG s

The Company's Audit Committee evaluates the independence and suitability of
its subordinate CPAs every year. In addition to requiring CPAs to provide
"Declaration of Independence"” and "Audit Quality Indicators (AQIs)", the audit
is conductedn accordance with the standards in the following table and 13 AQI
indicators evaluation. It was confirmed that the CPAs have no other financial
interests or business relationship with the Company, and that the CPA's family
members do not violate the indegkence requirements. AQI indicator
information is also used to confirm that the CPA and the firm have different
experience and the number of training hours is equivalent to the industry
average. In addition, we will continue to introduce digital auditoast in the

past three years to improve audit quality. The evaluation results of the most
recent year were discussed and approved by the Audit Committee on March 6,
2024, and submitted for the Board of Directors' resolution on March 6, 2024 to
evaluate théndependence and suitability of the CPAs.

67



Evaluation item Evaluation Compliance with
results independence requireme

Do the certifying CPAs have no direct or significant indirect financial interes; Yes Yes
with the Company?
Do the certifying CPAs ha no inappropriate relationship with the Company? Yes Yes
Do the certifying CPAs not concurrently work as regular employees of the Yes Yes
Company or its affiliated enterprises and receive a fixed salary?
Have the certifying CPAs not engaged in anyriicial borrowing or lending with Yes Yes
the Company or its affiliated enterprises?
Have the certifying CPAs not rece Yes Yes
business?
Do the certifying CPAs not hold any shares in the Company or its affiliated Yes Yes
enterprises?
Have the certifying CPAs not provided audit services to the Company for se Yes Yes
consecutive years?
Do the certifying CPAs have no joint investment or benefit sharing relationsl| Yes Yes
with the Company or its affiliated enterprises?
Do the certifying CPAs have not been involved in the management function Yes Yes
making decisions for the Company or related enterprises?
Do the certifying CPAs meet the independence requirements of the CPA
Professional Ethics Bulletin No. 18nd has the Company obtained the Yes Yes

"Declaration of Independence" issued by the certifying CPAs?
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VII. Any of the Company's chairperson, general manager, or
managers responsible for financial or accounting affairs being
itmloreanyaofutsl affitiated cordparty

VIII.

empl oyed
in the last year, including their names, job titles, and

by

whereabouts of the accounting firm during the term of office or
its affiliates: None.

Changes in the transfer and pledge of equity among directors,

supervisors, managers and shareholders with a shareholding
of more than 10% in the most recent year and up to the
publication date of the annual report.

Unit: Thousand shares

2023 As of March 31, 2024
Increase/Decreq Increase/Decrei
. Increase/Decre{ . Increase/Decreq .
Position Name . e in the numbe| . e in the numbe
e in the numbe| e in the numbe
of shares of shares
of shares hel of shares held
pledged pledged
Chairman |Liu, PoYuan - (3,000)
Wanin International
Director Representative: Hsiao,
ChengHao
Director Lin, HsienMing
Independent .
Director Sheng, Bai
Indgpendent Lin, RuetYi
Director
Indgpendent Chen, KuarPai
Director
Independent L
Director Hou, ChiaQi
Manager [Su, HsinHung (80)
Manager |Wu, ChangHung -
Manager |Chien, ChihRHao
Cloud Copious Investmer
Director (Note)|Limited. Representative:
Alex Chen

Information on the transfer of equity: No transfer of equity to a related party occurred among the

Information on the pledge of equity: No pledge of equity to a related party occurred among the
directors, supervisors, managers, and shareholders with a

Note: The director was discharged after theleztion on June 20, 2023. The shareholding and

directors, supersors, managers and shareholders with a
holding ratio exceeding 10% of the Company.

holding ratio exceddg 10% of the Company in the past
year up to the date the Annual Report was printed.

pledged rights remained unchanged during the term of office.
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IX. Informat ion of relationship among Top 10 shareholders who

are related, spouses, or relatives within the second degree of
kinship.

Shares held in person

Shares held by spou

and minor child(ren

Shares held in

someone else's narf

The title or name and relatiship among
shareholders in the Top shareholding list
are related, spouse to each other, or rela]

investment account of Advance

Starlight Comprehensive

International Stock Index Fund.

Name o .. |Remark
within the second degree of kinship
Number of | Shareholding Number [Shareholdin| Number|Shareholdin . .
. . . Name Relationship
shares ratio of shares ratio of shares ratio
Xiang Sheng
Liu, Po-Yuan 17,491,30 9.979 - - - - Investment Co., Person in charge -
Ltd.,
Wanin International Co., Ltd. 15,186,00 8.659 - - - - - - -
Representative: Hsiao, 9 0
ChengHao
Joy Develop Co., Ltd. Taian
14,883,00 8.489 - - - - R ; }
Branch
Lawsuit and nodawsuit 0 0
representative: Wang, Jiming
Xiangsheng Investment Co., Lt 13,600,00 7.759 - - - - Liu, Po-Yuan Person in charge -
Representative: Liu, Pguan 17,491,30 9.979 - - - - - - -
Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 8,757,00 4.999 - - - - - - -
Representative: Lin FHising 0 0 - - - - - - -
Investment Account of Xingtian
Technology Co., Ltd. in the 3,852,00 2.199 - - - - - - -
trusteeship of KGI Bank Co., Lt
lJAccount of Polunin Emerging
3,380,10 1.939
Markets Fund Company in the - - - - - - -
trusteeship of Citibank
Union Bank of Taiwan entruste
2,356,00 1.349
to hold the investment account - - - - - - -
Boju Holdings Co., Ltd.
Jakedi Emerging Market Sitha
) ) 2,093,00 1.199
Cap Equity Fund in the - - - - - - -
trusteeship of HSBC
JP Morgan Chase Bank is
lentrusted with the custody of
1,716,42 0.989
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X. Number of Shares Held by the Company, Its Directors,
Supervisors, Managers, and Enterprises Controlled Directly or
Indirectly by the Company in the Same Reinvested Enterprise,
and Consolidated Calculation of Comprehensive Shareholding

Percentage
March 31 2024 (expressed in thousands of shares; %)
Directors, supervisors,
Investment made by the | managers, and directly or o
) . Lo Comprehensive investmen
Reinvested business Company indirectly controlled
(Note) businesses
Number of ] ) Number of ) ) Number of ) )
Holding ratio Holding ratio Holding ratio
shares shares shares

Gamania Holdings Ltd. 20,100 100.00% - - 20,100 100.00%

Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co.
Lid. 25,500 100.00% - - 25,500 100.00%
VieFor Co., Ltd. 317 100.00% - - 317 100.00%
Digicentre Company Imited 16,016 67.48% - - 16,016 67.48%
Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 16,168 99.19% - - 16,168 99.19%
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. 627 51.00% - - 627 51.00%
Gash Point Co., Ltd. 13,500 90.00% 1,047 6.98% 14,547 96.98%
Indiland Co., Ltd. 2,950 100.00% - - 2,950 100.00%
DIT 3,997 33.03% - - 3,997 33.03%
Antsd Power Co., L 1,000 100.00% - - 1,000 100.00%
Coture New Media Co., Ltd. 1,315 93.08% - - 1.315 93.08%
Webackers Co., Ltd. 374 93.38% - - 374 93.38%
Nownews Network Co., Ltd. 51,520 82.06% 515 0.82% 52,035 82.88%
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd. 18,900 100.00% - - 18,900 100.00%
Beango Co., Ltd. 400 100.00% - - 400 100.00%
Gama Pay Co., Ltd. 44,694 81.26% 8,027 14.60% 52,721 95.86%
Ciirco, Inc. 1,698 99.90% - - 1,698 99.90%
Walkermedia Co.Ltd. 3,450 30.00% 8,050 70% 11,500 100.00%
SOFA Studio Co., Ltd. 3,000 42.86% - - 3,000 42.86%

(Note): It is the longerm investment of the Company using the equity method.
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Four. Fund-raising

|. Capital and Shares
(D Source of Capital Stock

As of March 31, 2024 Unit: NTD thousand, thousand shares

Approved capital stock Paidin capital stock Remarks
. Using properties other thg
MMAYYYY Issue price Number of Value Number of Value Source of capital stock cash to write off the stoc Other
shares shares
value

06/1995 10 500 5,000 500 5,000 Establishment Note 1

04/1998 10 1,000 10,000 1,000 10,000 Capital increase in cash $5,000 Note 2

10/1999 10 17,000 170,00¢ 5,000 50,000 Capital increase in cash $40,000 Note 3
Capital increase in cash $200,000
Earnings transferred capital increase

05/2000 10 60,000 600,00(¢ 28,057 280,57(27,500 Note 4
Employee bonus transferred capital
increase 3,070

03/2001 10 60,000 600,00(¢ 52,813 528,13( Capital increase in cash $247,560 Note 5
Earnings transferredapital increase

08/2001 10 60,000 600,00(¢ 56,92( 569,200 36,970 . Note 6
Employee bonus transferred capital
increase 4,100
Earnings transferred capital increase
227,680

07/2002 10 110,004 1,100,00 88,027 8g0,27¢ C2Pital reserve transferred capital incre Note 7
$56,920
Employee bonus transferred capital
increase 26,470

11/2002 10 110,00( 1,100,00 108,027 1,080,27(Capital increase in cash $200,000 Note 8
Earnings transferred capital increase

1410,503

07/2003 10 250,000 2,500,00 158,799 1,587,99 . Note 9
Employee bouos transferred capital
increase 97,224

1Treasury stockbased capital reduction

10/2004 10 250,000 2,500,00 153,990 1,539,89 $48.100 Note 10

04/2005 10 250,00 2,500,00 152,918 1,529,171 ;rltzaiggy stocibased capital reduction Note 11

09/2005 10 250,00( 2,500,00 151,87¢ 1,518,781 ;rl%agggy stodibased capital reduction Note 12

- - i

03/2006 10 250,00( 2,500,00 146,87¢ 1,468,781 ;;%agggy stodibased capital reduction Note 13
Earnings transferred capital increase

09/2007 10 250,000 2,500,00 152,869 1,528,694 38,188 . Note 14
Employee bonus transferred capital
increase 21,719

10/2007 10 250,000 2,500,00 153,067 1,530,67] - Plovee share subscription warrant Note 15
conversion $1,983
Earnings transferred capital increase

10/2008 10 250,000 2,500,00 158,782 1,587,821 7,061 . Note 16
Employee bonus transferred capital
increase 50,088

05/2009 10 250,000 2,500,00 158,908 1,589,054 ~Plovee share subscription warrant Note 17
conversion $1,231

11/2009 10 250,000 2,500,00 160,495 1,604,95( =TPlovee share subscription warrant Note 18
conversion $15,892

04/2010 10 250,000 2,500,00 161,73¢ 1,617,3g] - Plovee share subscription warrant Note 19
conversion $12,436

05/2010 10 250,000 2,500,00 165,631 1,656,37¢-TPloyee shar subscription warrant Note 20
conversion $38,988

11/2010 10 250,00( 2,500,00 165,703 1,657,02( EMPloyee share subscription warrant Note 21
conversion $644

04/2011 10 250,00( 2,500,00 166,32( 1,663,20¢ =Ployee share subscription warrant Note 22
conversion $,186

05/2011 10 250,00( 2,500,00 168,128 1,681,281 EPloyee share subscription warrant Note 23
conversion $18,076

06/2011 10 250,000 2,500,00 156,28¢ 1,562,884 reasury stocased capital reduction Note 24
$118,400

09/2011 10 250,000 2,500,000 156,401 1,564,01{EMPlovee share subscription warrant Note 25
conversion $1,128

11/2011 10 250,00( 2,500,00! 156,751 1,567,51§Employee share subscription warrant Note 26
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conversion $3,504
04/2012 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,754 1,567,54{CPloyee Bare subscription warrant Note 27
conversion $28
06/2012 10 250,000 2,500,00 156,812 1,568,124 EMPlovee share subscription warrant Note 28
conversion $582
11/2012 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,868 1,568,684 MPloyee share subscription warrant Note 29
conversion $59
05/2013 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,883 1,568,83{ - TPloyee share subscription warrant Note 30
conversion $149
06/2013 10 250,00( 2,500,00 157,007 1,570,974 =MPloyee share subscription warrant Note 31
conversion $2,142
09/2013 10 250,000 2,500,000 157,113 1,571,134 Employee share subscription warrant Note 32
conversion $157
12/2013 10 250,000 2,500,00 157,311 1,573,11]EmPloyee share subscription warrant Note 33
conversion $1,985
04/2014 10 250,00( 2,500,00 157,594 1,575,03¢ -TPloyee she subscription warrant Note 34
conversion $2,819
11/2017 10 250,000 2,500,00 168,537 1,685,374 Corporate bone conversion $109,436 Note 35
02/2018 10 250,000 2,500,00 175,029 1,750,281 Corporate bone conversion $64,909 Note 36
05/2018 10 250,000 2,500,000 175,427 1,754,27(Corporate bone conversion $3,989 Note 37
08/2018 10 250,000 2,500,00 175,493 1,754,93] Corporate bone conversion $665 Note 38
Note 1: Approval No.: (1995) Jian (4) No. 86819 dated June 12, 1995 Note 20: Approval No.: JinghouShang No. 09901109060 dated May 28, 2010
Note 2: Approval No.: (1998) dn (3) Geng No. 14362 dated April 3, 1998 ) T
: o Note 21: Approval No.: JinghouShang No. 09901260820 dated November 22, 2010
Note 3: Approval No.: Jing (1999) Zhong No. 88972957 dated October 27, 1999 : " .
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April 22, 2024; unit; shares

T £ sh Approved capital stock R "
ype ot share Shares already issuq Shares yet to be issue Total emarks
Registered 175,493,573 74,506,427 250,000,000 Main Board stock
common stock
Information on shelf registratio™None
(1) Shareholder Structure
April 22, 2024
Shareholdg Governmen| Financial Other . . Eor?lgn
tructure o . Individuals |institution and Total
. agency institutions | corporations .
Quantity alien
Number of people 0 3 221 44,103 187 44,514
Number of share 0 9,687,000 | 35,020,839 | 77,528,029 | 53,257,705 | 175,493,573
held
Holding ratio (%) 0 5.52 19.95 44.18 30.35 100
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(Il)  Decentralization of Equity

Distribution of Shares
Denomination of $10 per share

April 22, 2024
Shareholding Number of Number ofshares ] )

classification shareholders held Holding ratio (%)
110999 27,935 937,623 0.53
1,0065,000 14,478 26,551,263 15.13
5,00%10,000 1,182 9,359,908 5.33
10,00%15,000 302 3,857,612 2.20
15,00%220,000 194 3,603,220 2.05
20,00%30,000 131 3,350,097 1.91
30,00%40,000 65 2,390,990 1.34
40,00%50,000 53 2,478,813 1.41
50,00%100,000 76 5,046,953 2.88
100,001200,000 39 5,598,115 3.19
200,001400,000 18 4,920,640 2.80
400,001600,000 10 4,604,419 2.62
600,001800,000 10 6,996,136 3.99
800,0011,000,000 5 4,547,193 2.59
Above 1,000,001 16 91,290,591 52.03
Total 44,514 175,493,573 100.00

Preferred stockiNone
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(IV)  List of Major Shareholders

April 22, 2024

Name of major shareholder | Number of shares held (sharg Holding ratio (%)
Liu, PoYuan 17,491,30! 9.97¢
Wanin Intenational Co., Ltd. 15,186,00i! 8.659
Joy Develop Co., Ltd. Taiwan 14,883,00! 8.489
Branch
Xiangsheng Investment Co., Ltd 13,600,00i! 7.759
Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 8,757,00( 4.999
Investment Account of Xingtian 3,852,00( 2.199
Technology Co., Ltd. in the
trusteeship of KGI Bank Co., Ltd
Account of Polunin Emerging 3,380,10( 1.939
Markets Fund Company in the
trusteeship of Citibank
Union Bank of Taiwan entrusted 2,356,00( 1.349
hold the investment account of
Boju Holdings Co., Ltd.
Jakedi Energing Market Small 2,093,00( 1.199
Cap Equity Fund in the trusteest
of HSBC
JP Morgan Chase Bank is 1,716,424 0.989
entrusted with the custody of
investment account of Advanced
Starlight Comprehensive
International Stock Index Fund.

(V)

Related infomation of market price per share, net value, earnings,
and dividends for the past two years

Yeal As of March 31,

ltem 2022 2023 2024
Market Maximum 73.30 92.60 79.50
value per |Minimum 51.20 64.30 68.00
share Average 62.85 73.80 73.50
Net value |Before distribution 33.35 30.64 33.13
pershare |After distribution 27.55 30.64 33.13

Weighted average 175,494 175,494 175,494
Earnings |number of shares
per share |(thousand shares)

Earnings per share 7.29 3.28 2.31
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Cash dividend 5.80 3.28 -
[ I | - _ - -
Dividend § 237 - -
per share T5° 3 )
Accumulated unpaid -
dividend ] ]
Analysis ofiPrice to earnings ratio 8.62 22.49 31.97
return on |Price to dividend ratio 10.84 22.49 -
investmentCash dividend yield 9.23% 4.45% -

(VI) Company's didend policy and implementation status
1. Dividend policy:
In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, the Company should set
aside profit before tax of the current year before deducting the
remuneration of employees and the remuneration of direeiodsallocates
10%-15% for the remuneration of employees and no more than 2% for the
remuneration of the directors. The Company shall appropriate foreitite
the loss carried forward, if applicable. The policy on the distribution of
dividends is as follws:
(1) Principle for the distribution of dividends:
The Company distributes dividends applying the robust balance
principle, with normalization of the corporate financial structure and
accommodation of operational growth potential as the top principle.
Dividends are distributed at a ratio of no less than 10% of the earnings
of the specific year.
(2) Procedure for distributing dividends:
The procedure for distributing dividends of the Company is based on
the requirements of the Company Act. Each year, thee@Bof
Directors takes into consideration the profitability of the Company
and its future operational demand while preparing the proposal on
distribution of earnings and the proposal is to be approved through the
gener al sharehol dimplesnéntecheet i ng be
(3) How dividends will be distributed:
The method of dividend distribution takes into account factors such as
the Company's profitability, financial structure and the Company's future
development. At least 10% of the dividends distributetthéncurrent
year is set aside as cash dividend. The Board of Directors, however, may
adjust it reflective of the overall operational status and fund planning and
submit it during the sharehol der:
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2. Distribution of dividends interetl to be proposed and discussed during the
current shareholders6é6 meeting:
The Company's Board of Directors approved the distribution of cash
dividend of NTD 3.28 per share on March 6, 2024.

3. Expected major changes to the dividend policy, if any: None.
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(VII) Impacts of free share assignment intended through the current
sharehol dersd meeting on the Co
earnings per share: No share assignment is involved.

(V1) Remuneration for employees, directors and supervisors

1.

Percentage or range of remuneration for employees, directors and
supervisors as stated in the Compa

1 10% to 15% for employeesd remune
(2) Remuneration to directors shall not exceed 2%.

The basis for estimatingthem unt of empl oyees and
remuneration, the basis for calculating the number of shares to be
distributed as employeesd remuner at
accounting treatment of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual
distributed amont and the estimated figure.

The amount of directors' remuneration increased by NTD 124,001 from the
expenses recognized in 2023, and the amount of employees' remuneration
increased by NTD 1,120,006 from the expenses recognized in 2023; the
differences wil be recognized as 2024 profit or loss.

Links to directors' performance evaluation and remuneration:

In accordance with Article 4 of the Company's "Procedures for the
Distribution of Remuneration to Directors and Remuneration”, the amount
of remuneratia distributed to all directors shall take into account the
authority of each director, the number of meetings attended, the number of
training hours, and other performance evaluations; and the Company shall
comply with laws and regulations and the adjustinod actual operating
conditions. The allocated amount has been reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

Approval of distribution of remuneration by the Board of Directors:
On March 6, 2024, the Board of Directaqsproved the distribution

(1) Directors' remuneration: NTD 13,400,000.
(2) Amount of remuneration to employees: NTD 67,500,000.

The actual amount of the 2022 remuneration distributed to employees and
directors in 2023 is the same as the amount apprhoyélade board meeting
and the shareholdersé meeting.

(IX) Shares repurchased by the Compamne.
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lI. Corporate Bonds: None.

[1l. Preferred Stock: None.

IV. Global Depositary Receipt:None.

V. Employee Share Subscription Warrant:Nore.

VI. Issuanceof restricted stock awards (RSA):None.

VII. Issuance of New Shares for M&A or Acceptance of Shares of
Other Companies:None.

VIIl. Implementation of Capital Utilization Plan: None.
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Five. Operational Overview

Scope of Operation:

()

Scope of Operatn:

1. Main scope of operation

(1)
(2)

®3)
(4)
()

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)

Trading in all kinds of computer hardware and software.

Design, planning, trading, agency and distribution of industrial and
commercial machinery and equipment.

Output of machinery and equipment across the plant.

General imports and exports (excluding licensing).

Bidding and quotation for products on behalf of domestic and foreign
manufacturers.

General advertising.

TV program production.

Release of Radio and TV programs.

Radio and TV advering.

Brokerage.

Manufacturing of data storage and processing equipment.
Information software service.

Magazine.

All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law,
except those that are subject to special agrov

2. Scope of operation by the weight

Unit: NTD 1,000

Year| 2022 2023
Product Value % Value %
Gaming and point 9,490,861 83% 7,354,534 75%
storage income
Labor and other 1,897,15 17% 2,436,32f 25%
operating income
Total 11,388,02] 100% 9,790,86 100%

Source: 2023 consolidated financial statement audited and certified by CPAs.

3. Current Products (Services) of the Company

1)

(2)

Games: The Group's game operations include MapleStory, Lineage
Remastered, Elsword, Mabinogi, Courgtrike, Dragon Nest, K#&rider

and mobile games such as "Lineage M", "Summons Board," "Moonlight
Sculptor” and "World Flipper".

The AJol |l ybuy Di
on Anime, Comics, Games and Novels (ACGN) and is devoted to creating

eCommer ce: Groupos
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®3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

anentertaining eommerce platform. Gaming and socializing upgrade the
shopping fun. Al data is applied to improve the operational performance of
partner stores and to make trading more convenient and shopping more fun.
Payment: The Gr ouipestheGoupahdiBAY ¢ o mb
crossdisciplinary partners and turns online digital conteated

transactions offline (Online to Offline). The scope of service covers food,
clothing, housing, transportation, education, and entertainment to build
convenient and $a payment applications that better meet the spending
needs of the digital generation. Young and gaming populations are
prioritized. Meanwhile, the stores are offered the best solution to cash

flows, membership management, and ticketing. "GASH point" tredi

service not only provides services that players pay for, but also provides
comprehensive digital entertainment contents with Hgjgality and

powerful functions, allowing digital players around the world to easily

play through the GASH digital entertaient platform in unlimited

spacious digital entertainment in the world.

Medi a: The Groupo6s i CONépihorigiRabdigitas Kk r
solid foundation. The needs of network users are explored at a depth.
Meanwhile, the organizational capatyilof the Group makes rapid

streamlining of network resources possible. It becomes a marketing A Team
in streamlining media resources and helping customers echo with consumers
of the digital generation that is heard on the market, creating synergistic

" has years of e
comprehensive customer service mechanism. With a flexible professional
organization and layout, as well as social marketing, it achieves the benefits
of brand building and product promaiti, providing customers with the most

i mmedi ate | ogistical support, and f
reattime online news website in Taiwan. It provides diversified and
high-quality content and topics, actively integrates new technologies, and
launche new applications such as Al anchor news media.

Commerce: The Group's "Digicentre" is an expert of cloud data and
information security, integrating cloud computer room, information

security service, and mobile security to create a safe informatiantgec
environment for millions of players and a great future of cloud data, and
technical experience accumulated over the years to provide domestic and
foreign customers with customized services and solutions in information
security, system integration, @dilDC/NOC/SOC.

Mobile platform: beanfun! is a comprehensive mobile lifestyle platform

that integrates games, entertainment points, paymeoctnenerce, and IM
communication and interaction. Through the reorganization of functional
modules and optimizain of the underlying logical structure of the big

effec t s | "Antsobd6 Power
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data project, the user experience is enhanced and the group's service
connections are strengthened. It also penetrates into diverse user scenarios
to create more fun in life, and creates fan economy atjgittools for the
younger generation to enjoy simple and rich online life, and connect into
the internet ecosystem.

4. New products (services) to be developed

The Company continues to work with big international game companies to
launch highquality gamecontent, introduce masterpieces with exquisite
and unique content, drive game operations with blockbuster IP, and
continue to expand the business of-es¥hed games based on market
orientation and player needs R&D, supplemented by diversified IP
incubaton to enrich the content platform, improve user experience and
strengthen the connection of the Group's services, and to penetrate into
diverse user scenarios, the application and R&D of Al in various
entertainment scenarios, explore the usage scenartios Giroup's mobile
payment and deeply manage user needs. In addition, in recent years, the
cloud and information security markets have flourished, and the Group's
subsidiary Digicentre has successfully expanded into the Southeast Asian
market. Combined ih the local demand for smart cities, it has initially
established a local operating foundation and created new revenue drivers.
In the future, it will continue strengthening research and development and
operational capabilities, and deepen its overseakanpenetration

(1 Industrial Overview:
1. Current Industry Status and Development

(1) Game market
According to the January 2024 "Global Games Market Report"
published by the international market research institution Newzoo,
the global overall game miat will reach US$184 billion in 2023,
a 0.6% growth compared to 2022; of which, the mobile game
market will reach US$90.5 billion. The largest market, with a slight
decline of 1.4% from the previous year, accounting for 49%,
mainly due to the tighteningf @rivacy protection measures in the
global market for dugplatform games; followed by console games
as the second largest market, accounting for 29% with a scale of up
to US$53.1 billion, an annual increase of 1.7%.
According to the statistics of professal mobile game database
Adata. ai 0, RPG, strategy and mat
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that are most popular with global mobile game players in global
mobile game spending.

2023 global game market sizéy platform

Browser PC games
$1.9Bn

-16.9% YoY

Dowloaded/boxed
PC games

$38.4Bn

+5.3% Yoy

Console games

$53.1Bn

+1.7% YoY

2023 Total

$184.0Bn

+0.6%
YoY

$90.5Bn

-1.4% YoY

Source: Newzoo (2024)

In recen years, with the explosive growth of artificial intelligence
(Al) related technologies and applications, the game industry has
become the best application of generative artificial intelligence due
to its advantages of retime and diversified interactiveontent,

high flexibility in the virtual environment, and easy lagmmle
repetitive training. It brings new risks and threats but also greatly
improves development efficiency and reduces costs.

Spending on generative Al in the game industry

(billions)
$80

=== Generative Al Based Gaming Spending

§70 ——% of Total Gaming Market

560

$50

$40

Source: Blemberg
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2)

(3)

Payment market

The increasing popularity of internet and mobile devices, coupled
with the impact of the pandemic, has accelerated the public's
acceptance of and participation in mobile payment, and with the
industry's economies of scale gratly taking shape, merchants are
gradually increasing their willingness to use mobile payment, and
providing consumers with diverse and convenient payment options.
According to the forecast of Market.us, a market research company,
the global smart mobilegyment scale will reach US$462.2 billion in
2032, with a compound growth rate of 16% in the past decade.

Global digital smart payment market scale

Global Smart Payments Market
Size, by Payment Type, 2022-2032 (USD Billion)
500 462.2

450
oo 383.7
350 324.9
200 280.7
237.7
250 213.8
184.7
20 153.3
15 124.8
o

10

0

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

H Internet payment W Mobile payment

o © 0o ©

Source: Market.us

Commercial market

Postpandemic, global enterprises have accelerated their digital
transformation and migration to the cloud. With the explosion of
artificial intelligence applications, intelligence and security are issues
of urgency.

According to the research of the information consulting firm Gartner,
the expenditure of enterprises on fibloud will exceed that of
traditional IT. In 2025, the expenditure on the cloud will reach
US$917 billion, and the cloud will become an indispensable
investment.
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Global cloud computing scale

Total Revenue

M Traditional
M Cloud

1,000

500

Total Revenue ($B)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Source: Gartner

According to Market.us, a market researchmpany, the global
information security market is expected to reach approximately
US$533.9 billion by 2032, with a compound annual growth rate of
11% from 2022 to 2032. The annual growth rate will be 15%. In
recent years, frequent global cyber attacks,régin data leakage,
zeroday attacks and other incidents have resulted in huge business
losses, pushing up the demand for cyber information security services
and talents.

Market scale of the global network information security market
Global Cyber Security Market

Size, by Component Type, 2022-2032 (USD Billion)
600

W Solutions W Services

5339

500 4748
4278
390.4
400 3517
3294
3006
267.4
0 oag 2347
193.0 -
2
1 I
0

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

8

8

Source: Market.us

2. Correlations of the up mid-, and dowrstream of the industry

(1) Game market
On the upstream end of the game, it mainly includes game developers,
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(2)

development tool software vendors, etc., through the processes of
programming, art, special effects, andtigg, taking into account
aspects such as playability, game play, and tiredness, to develop
original innovative content, or to adapt existing content and remake to
produce game content IP with market potential. At present, games can
be played on a varietf platforms, including mobile games, console
games, PC games, and cloud games. With the increase in network
speed and the popularity of various devices, eptagorm games

have gradually become a trend, allowing players to break the
geographical resttions and participate in the game at any time.

The midstream and downstream players mainly include distributors,
publishers, and operators. The distributors have the right to operate
the game in specific regions by paying royalties and sharing the
profit. They introduce localized operations, marketing, and customer
service in accordance with local conditions to reach out to players in
the local market.

Commercial market

In the information security service industry, the upstream mainly
includes softwarand hardware suppliers, specializing in R&D and
manufacturing professional informatioelated products, and pays
close attention to the latest network attacks and vulnerability updates
in the market in order to develop products that meet the trends and
needs, and provide other sales opportunities for agency.

The midstream industry is mainly the distributors, who focus on
promoting products to the market, and the sales personnel establish
the sales channels; the professional technicians such as the
downsteam companies provide end customers with professional
services such as maintenance and technical support.

3. Various product development trends

(1)

Operation of several blockbuster games while taking into account
diverse markets

Gamania Group has been éudting the game market in Taiwan,

Hong Kong and Macau for more than 28 years, and has built a strong
and onestop team in operations, marketing, customer service, and
advertising. Since the launch of "Lineage" in Taiwan in 2000 by
Gamania Group, it has tonly ushered in the era of online games in
Taiwan, but also released "MapleStory" in 2005 and thetfrgday

game became a popular game for all. Games with richer contents and
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(2)

more comprehensive styles have been launched in recent years,
including fird-person shooter (FPS), refdaying game (RPG),

reattime Strategy (RTS), action game (AG), adventure game (AVG),
simulation game (SIM), sports game (SPG), puzzle game (PUZ),
casual/education simulation (EDU), and others, and are run for the

long run. Although there are many new game businesses in Taiwan,
various classic Gamania games never fail. The heavyweight IP game
ALineage MO was introduced at t h:
records in the history of mobile games of Taiwan. Various

collaborative evets have been introduced with subsidiaries, too, to
provide players with more diversified services. The classic PC game
"MapleStory" has made great achievements in recent years. The
operation team has been aiming to expand the user group by
rejuvenating tk brand. Since 2020, it has further upgraded the brand

to become a "PC game trendsetter". In 2023, we announced that we
are about to launch the 6th career change and key event. Therefore,

we have launched a series of wonderful wamevents to drive the

number of players back and create a phenomenal hype. In the future,
we will continue to demonstrate our robust local operation power to
integratecross ndustry resources in orde
demand for new gaming experience.

Expansion of bugsess opportunities througho®emmerce

Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Gamania

Group, is the first entertainmentcemmerce platform in Taiwan that
focuses on ACGN (ACGN). Through |
leveraging GamaniaGrpubs advant ageous membe
as the interactive consumption model that combiresnemerce and
games, we will expand into new areas -@oenmerce market. MOEA
selected JollyBuy Digital to help shops and individuals to run online
shops under thRetailers Digital Transformation Stimulus Program

by introducing more preferential plans for digital transformation to
retailers in order to relieve their pressure in business operations during
the pandemic. 't introduxed Tai w:
marketing model to bring new business opportunities with breavd

buying experience. In 2023, it continued focusing on the products

loved by the ACGN community as the key category, and exclusively
promoted virtual and physical consumption through inhgga

services, driving new customer traffic.
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3

(4)

(5)

Expanded mobile payment layout

In order to accelerate the popularity of mobile payment in Taiwan, the
government actively proposes related programs. The goal is to
increase the penetration rate of mobilerpapt to 90% by 2025.

There has been significant growth in recent years, and it has exceeded
70% in 2021. GAMA PAY, a subsidiary of Gamania Group, is actively
expanding cooperation with various consumption channels and
implementing O20 payment applicatiohs.recent years, it has
expanded its four major supermarket territories to fully put in place,
significantly strengthened the spending power of beanfun! ecosystem,
and responded to the amendment to Electronic Payment Management
Act to allow crossnstitution fund transfers, and strives to innovate
services to provide members with a convenient and diverse
consumption experience; we mastered the new OMO retail business
model integrating virtual and physical goods in 2022 and cultivated
high-frequency usagecenarios, and actively participated in the
government's TWQR program in 2023 to become the first wave in
joining the crowd of convenient@mmerce services.

Accurate control of digital marketing trends

Conetter Comarketing Co., Ltd., a subsidiary aih@nia Group,

provides partners with a full range of integrated marketing services.
With years of solid foundation in digital media, we can deeply explore
the needs of internet users, and use the Group's abundant network
resources to share big data analyand connected with diversified
media to maximize the effect of customer marketing, and successfully
helped a variety of online products and services such as games,
entertainment, and@mmerce to enter the Taiwan market successfully.
Information seurity experts in enterprise cloud services

With the rapid growth of the cloud market after the pandemic, and the
development of new technologies, information security protection has
become more and more important. Digicentre of Gamania Group
provides thre major services: cloud, information security, and

custody. Its customers cover finance, retail, gaming, and payment. In
2023, the seltleveloped mobile phone information security

protection system "appGuard" was announced to have obtained EAL2
level of Canmon Criteria (Common Criteria for Security Assessment),
an international IT product security certification of over 50%, and
actively expands into the Southeast Asian market.
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(6) Comprehensive development of pamtertainment services
Committed to buildinghe entrance platform of beanfun!
panentertainment ecosystem, combining the-star platforms of
"Comic Star" and "Literature Star" to extend to the fields of content
creation, such as film, television, art, and other fields, cultivate
original talentsand strengthen content, and actively expand
crossindustry cooperation to diversify application scenarios. The
main social function "SHOW Together" is to deepen the entertainment
police of the young generation, introduce a large number of new users,
and ircrease user activity.
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4. Product competition situation

)

Game market

With the evolution of software and hardware technology, the habit of players
using computers or websites to play games in the past has changed. At
present, global players mainly ugedbile phones" to play games, with 49%

of global players being accustomed to or frequently using mobile devices to
play games. It is also the fastest growing type of gaming platform, mainly
due to the popularity of the internet and the fact that almosy@ave

owning a phone or other mobile device, making mobile games a convenient
and fast access gaming channel, and also a frequently used gaming platform
for mild players. The most popular mobile game genre among global players
in 2023 is "Role Playing Garsé(RPG), with a global consumption amount

(I AP) of USD25.5 billion, followed
the second most popular gaming platform which accounts for 29%, is
usually the platform preferred by moderate or heavy players, and cgn carr
more refined and smooth game settings.

2023 global game market sizéy platform

$1.9Bn

-16.9% YoY

Dowloaded/boxed
PC ga

> $38.4Bn

+5.3% YoY

$53.1Bn

+1.7% YoY

2023 Total

$184.0Bn

+0.6%
YoY

-1.4% YoY

Source: Newzoo (2024)

Scale of irapp spending (IAP) on tegelling mobile games
worldwide in 2023

RPG 255

Strategy [N 101
Match [ NN 3.7
casino [N s
Stimulation [ NEGNGG 51

0 5 10 15 20 25 30
(USD 1 billion)

Source: data. ai (2023); compilation by the Company
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(2) Payment market
Mobile payment is becoming increasingly popular; currently in
Taiwan, induction payment, thigarty payment and electronic
payment are the most common methods, mainly differentiated by
regulatory authorities and the scope of business undertaken.
Category Third-party payment e-Payment

Ministry of Economic | Financial Supervisory
Affairs Commission

Regulatory authoritie

_ Agency collection and
_ Agency collection and
Scope of business payment, transfer,

ayment )
pay storage, withdrawal, et

Source: Complied by théompany

In recent years, the government has gradually relaxed and adjusted relevant
laws and regulations and promoted related measures in response to this
change in payment habits. For example, in 2020, the amendment to the
"Electronic Payment InstitutiemManagement Act" was passed for the third
reading, which integrates telepay and electronic invoice that open up the
inter-institutional exchange of cash flow to create more room and
opportunities for industry players to promote healthy market development
and competition, and create a more comprehensive consumption
environment; also, Financial Information Service Co., Ltd. has launched
"Taiwan digital payment platform (TWQR)" system that integrates domestic
electronic payment services to create rwlth applications for consumers,
merchants, and-eommerce operators.

(3) Commercial market
In the global cloud market, the cloud services of the three major
manufacturers are the main players. In the fourth quarter of 2023 as an
example, according to the staitistof the data company Statista, the market
share of Amazon Web Services was 31%, which is the largest cloud industry.
It is the early leader in the cloud infrastructure market, followed by
Microsoft's Azure with 24% market share, and then Google's cleruice.

(lll)  Technical and Research and Development Overview:

1. R&D expenses in the most recent year and up to the date of publication of
the annual report

Year
tem 2023 Q1 2024
R&D expenses NTD 653,204 NTD 179,190
thousand thousand
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R&D expenses &% of 6.67% 5.38%
operating revenue

2. Technologies or products successfully developed in the most recent year
and up to the date of publication of the annual report

The Company's current R&D strategy is still based on the Group's vision of

"strengtheninghe Group's IP ecosystem and continuing to grow the

all-round entertainment ecosystem".

Diversified applications, innovation and influence:

"fun bazaar" builds a digital collectible platform with authorized IP.

"One-stop Integration Service of Blockchaim&S"

IP is applied in multiple scenarios, including the licensing of the movie IP

"Marry My Dead Body" and the translation of the "Atom Boyz" manga.
Continue to invest in the enrichment of proprietary games:

"Convenience Store Pocket Edition" is a safice mobile game

designed by the Group to simulate the operation of classic IP and expand

the experience of combining virtual and physical products.

Develop selfmade mobile games of "CHIBI MARUKO CHAN

Cheerful Spirit" and "CHIBI MARUKO CHAN Sleepwalking” to
reproduce classic contents and expand diversified game types.

5
5

5

(IV)  Longterm and Shosterm Business Development Plans
1. Shortterm business development plan

(1) Blockbuster IP drives game operations
Launch highquality game content based on market dagan and
player needs, combined with a diversified product segmentation
strategy.

(2) Cultivating the ecommerce market in ACGN field
Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Gamania
Group, continues to strengthen the consumption modélagisng
combined with game interaction, develops digital unique differential
guotient models, accelerates the big data application of the Group's
ecological resources, and realizes+téak personal product
recommendation and continues to focus on pradiosed by ACGN
group category, and exclusively promote physical and virtual
consumption with innovative services to drive new customer traffic
and further add sports activities to beanfun!.

(3) Scenarios for mobile payment deployment
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For Gama Pay's mobifsayment service, Gama Pay will be prioritized
for consumption by young people and gamers. The Company is
actively negotiating with partners from all walks of life, developing
service scope and diversity of usage scenarios, deeply exploring
high-frequencypayment scenarios, and continuously expanding user
preferences to strengthen the implementation of beanfun! ecosystem
and to create a fast, convenient and secure payment tool.

(4) Capturing the growth markets of cloud and information security
Based on thexisting cloud service and multidustry experience, in
response to the market development direction and the support of the
deregulation, Digicentre has deployed maltud or crossloud
services, and continues to deepen the information secafkited
services in order to become the information security expert of the
enterprise cloud service.

(5) To expand beanfun!'s market presence and influence on the mobile
lifestyle
The Group launched beanfun! App, a mobile lifestyle platform. The
continuous accuntation of energy and member traffic have become a
niche for the growth of beanfun!. It also attracts younger generations
of users with its key function "SHOW Together", emphasizing the
sense of interaction, gaming, community, etc. For entertainment
experiace, it also helps emerging artists and content IPs to expand
the fan base and establish interaction channels to createwimulti
business opportunities.

2. Longterm business development plan

Gamania Group continues to develop into adalblogical netwik
enterprise. In the future, in addition to deepening the diversified layout of
its various businesses including games, paymecoj@merce, media, and
digital commerce solutions, it will expand and invest resources in the
development of its own IP andieleveloped games, and introduce new
Al technology and technology to facilitate the interconnection and
integration of business groups, make good use of data advantages,
comprehensive wdepth daily applications, overturn user experience,
innovate the Grap's energy, exert the Group's synergy, build an
all-ecological entertainment network enterprise, and lay the momentum for
sustainable growth.
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Market and Production/Distribution Overview:

()

Market Analysis

1. Areas of sales (provision) of key pratti (services)

Unit: NTD 1,000

Yeal 2022 2023
Item Value % Value %
Taiwan 9,542,567 84% 8,081,15 83%
Asia and others 1,845,45¢ 16% 1,709,701 17%
Total 11,388,02] 100% 9,790,86 100%

Source: 2023 consolidated financial statement audited andextitifi CPAS.

Gamania is a pioneer in the gaming industry of Taiwan. It started the era of
online games in 2000 and introduced the first fee collection model
featuring free download of the tools in 2005. All have been tsetiing

and received well amongé¢ consumers. Gamania has also been listed as
one of the fATop 100 Companies for
years. The Gamania Group, not only demonstrating robust capabilities in
the gaming field, has also been proactively transforming itse®0L9, it
built the first | ocal mobile | ife
games, points, media, mobile payment, almd@merce in one while

trying to become the first comprehensive wesed enterprise in Taiwan.

2. Market share
(1) Game markt

In Taiwan's game market, due to the popularity and speed of the
internet, and the current situation of one device per person, mobile
games are the most popular platform, accounting for about 60%, next
is console games which accounted for 29%, and feltblay PC

games at 11%. In 2023, Taiwan's mobile game market is estimated to
reach US$2.5 billion, making it the 6th largest mobile game market in
the world. Taiwan's average revenue per user (ARPU) is US$409,
which shows the high investment and participatf Taiwvanese

gamers in the game.
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2023 global mobile game market size
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Source: data.ai, Statista; compiled by the Company

Payment market

As a result of the deregulation, there are currently a total of 10
specialized branches and 20 coneuntly operating branches that
provide the general public with a wide range of online and offline
payment channels. Under the layout of inclusive finance, several
purely online banking operators in the country also offer different
banking services. Accordynto the Financial Supervisory

Commission's statistics, as of December 2023, a total of 27.13 million
people had used electronic payment, and the cumulative transaction
amount for the year exceeded NTD 160 million.

Commercial market

According to IDC stistics, the five major cloud service providers in
Taiwan have more than 90% market share. Under the vigorous
development of Taiwan's cloud industry, the public cloud market is
expected to reach USD 2.782 billion in 2025, with a compound annual
growth rae of 19% from 2021 to 2025; with the increasing demand for
information security, it is estimated that the market scale of Taiwan's
information security industry will reach USD 91.5 billion in 2025.

3. Future supply and demand and growth on the market

(1)

Game market

In the overall global entertainment market, the game industry has the

largest market scale and the fastest growth compared to films, books,
and music. It is estimated that the compound growth rate from 2023 to
2027 will reach 8%. In recent yearsith the development of
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diversified content and entertainment forms, major manufacturers
have introduced new concept and the competition is fierce. Multiple
types of game content are becoming increasingly popular, which helps
to quickly attract traffic ad create popularity for the game itself,
which is highly attractive to light gamers; at the same time, for
moderate to heavy gamers, rplaying, action, and strategy games
are still the most popular game types, bringing players an immersive
and interadve gaming experience, which is conducive to creating a
highly addictive and spending game type.
In addition, with the growing popularity of creptatform games, play
scenarios can be realized anytime and anywhere. Formal developers
and operators providgossplatform games to avoid version or
software compatibility issues. This also helps to improve the game
information security specifications and create more secure products
for players and more interesting gaming experience.

(2) Payment market
As mobilepayment becomes more and more popular in Taiwan and
has penetrated into the daily life of the public, the number of people
and the transaction amount has been increasing year by year. The
government has also launched the "TWQR" mechanism to integrate
domestic mobile devices. The infrastructure of cash flow contains a
large amount of realme consumption data and trajectories.
Therefore, it is attracting the active participation of enterprises in
various industries, hoping to create business opportufitiesthe
huge data; as cro¢mrder payment becomes a new development and
crossborder travel resumes after the pandemiwadet is the main
method of overseas payment to expand the application scenarios and
convenience of digital payment.

(3) Commerciaimarket
According to the latest IDC research report, as of October 2023, 89%
of enterprises in Taiwan were using clengdated services in their
workflows. In terms of analysis, cloud service also helps enterprises'
development on sustainability issues. Itifile factors are driving the
overall increase in cloutklated expenditure of enterprises.

4. Competitive niche and advantageous and disadvantageous factors for
future developments and countermeasures

Gamania Group has been cultivating the game mark@8fgears and is
the leader of the industry's first model. In 2000, its flagship game
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"Lineage" ushered in the age of online gaming in Taiwan; in 2005,

Mapl eSt orydés special marketing tecl
scope of players and contintecreate new records; in 2014, the free

server version of the classic evergreen online game "Lineage" was

launched, and the number of registered members exceeded one million; the
blockbuster IP mobile game "Lineage M" in 2017 According to the data of
App Annie, an international research organization, "Lineage M" has been

the topselling mobile game in Taiwan for four consecutive years after its

l' isting. All of the above are examj
strategies. Gamania thinks outside tox and takes the lead to address
demand on the market and the needs of users to be a brave breakthrough
pioneer. Its brand new creativity is its main competitive advantage.

We also fearlessly started a transformation to expand topagraent,
e-commece, media, and digital commerce sectors to actively transform
into an internet business with an oregiosystem. The transformation
includes: teaming up with international game developers to introduce
heavyweight new games for gamers to enjoy unique nevingam

experience; capturing the business opportunities in entertainment
e-commerce through JollyBuy Digital targeted at the ACGN groups to
create an interactive shopping model by integrating with games; fully
penetrating into the consumption of all partshef daily life-food,

clothing, housing, transportation, education, and entertainrettt

GAMA PAY to develop convenient and safe payment services to develop
convenient and safe payment services closer to the consumption needs of
the digital generatiorhtough O20 connection; and demonstrating

influence in respective areas through the media business by mining the
needs of internet users through CONETTER with rich experience in native
digital foundation developed over a dozen years to quickly link up mketwo
resources to increase the share of voice for partners. In the future, Gamania
Group will focus on Al, big data, and platform development, and continue
to start from the game users and connect the four business groups of games
payment, commerce, and etk (including ecommerce and media) to each
other and gather in beanfun! to develop a comprehensive entertainment
ecosystem that can leverage and assist each other to share resources.
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(1)

Important purposes and production processes of main products
1. Important purposes of main products

The Company mainly provides game operating business services, and also expands into diversified fields such as

e-commerce, payment, media and mobile life platform, to create a full range of digital entertainment foew life
consumers.

Production processes of main products: The Company is not in the production industry and hence this is not
applicable.

(Il

Supply of main raw material¥he Company is not in the production industry and hence this is not applicable.

(IV)  List of main purchases and sales customers over the past two years
1. Names of customers with 10% or more purchases and the values and ratios of the purchases in any of the past two
years: please also describe the reason for the increase or decrease.
2022 2023 Up to the first quarter of 2024
Percentage in the n| . ) Percentage in the n( . . Percentage in the net purchas| Relationship
Relationship Relationship .
Item Name Value purchases throughg . . Name Value purchases througho| ) Name Value | ofthe current year up to the e[  with the
with the issuer with the issuer ) )
the year (%) the year (%) of the first quarter (%) issuer
1 PO1 1,952,491 30.26 None PO1 1,508,06 27.11 None PO1 689,395 4504 None
2 P04 1,057,241 16.39 None P04 840,984 15.12 None P04 229,784 1534 None
Other 3,442,724 53.35 Other 3,214,59 57.77 Other 580,767 38.72
Net purchase 6,452,461 100.0( Net purchasey 5,563,63 100.0( Net 1,499,95] 100.0d
purchases
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2. Names of customers with 10% or more sales and the values and ratiesalds in any of the past two years: please
also describe the reason for the increase or decrease.

2022

2023

Up to the first quarter of 2024

Percentage in th . , Percentage in . . . . .
g Relationshiy ¢ Relationshif Percentage ithe net sales (Relationshiy
net sales ) the net sales . .
Item Name Value with the Name Value with the Name Value |the current year up to the g with the
throughout the| . throughout thel . ) .
issuer issuer of the first quarter (%) issuer
year % year %
1 S23 1,952,91 17.1¢ None S23 1,676,791 17.22 None S23 420,024 12.34 None
Other 9,430,024 82.84 Other 8,061,73 82.78 Other 2,972,73 87.62
Netsales 11,382,93 100.0¢ Net sales 9,738,53 100.0¢ Net sales| 3,392,76] 100.0¢
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(V)  Production volumes/values in the past two years

Production volumes/values over the past two years
Unit: NTD thousand

Yealr

Production 2023 2022
volume/value
h hout Production|Productior h hout Production Production
: roughpu roughpu
Main product gnp volume value gnp volume value

(or dgoartment)
Online game - - - - - -

Labor - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

Note: Not applicable because of the nature of the industry.

(VI) Sales volumes/values in the past two years

Sales volumes/values in the past two years

Unit: NTD thousand

Year 2023 2022

Sales

volume/valu Importation Exportation Importation Exportation

Main product Volume | Value | Volume| Value | Volume| Value |Volume| Value

(or department)

Online game - - - - - - - -

Labor - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - - -

Note: Not applicable because of the nature of the industry.
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Employees

Year 2022 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Manager 182 182 191
Research and
160 159 181
Number of development
employes| Management an
L 711 778 740
distribution
Total 1053 1119 1112
Mean age 35.87 36.09 36.16
Mean years in service 5.22 5.12 5.18
PhD 0.09% 0.18% 0.18%
Gradua¢ School 17.24% 19.57% 19.24%
Ratio of
. University 66.58% 65.50% 66.64%
education
distributiof Junior college 9.61% 8.94% 8.54%
High School and
6.48% 5.81% 5.40%
Below

V.

Information on Environmental Protection Expenditure

Losses suffered because of environmental pollutionseipast year up to the date the
Annual Report was printed (including compensation and violations of environmental
protection laws and regulations with environmental protection audit findings; the date of
punishment, punishment number, article of the lanegulation violated, description of

the violation and the punishment shall be specified) and disclose estimated values now

and likely incurred in the future and countermeasures: None.

Labor-Management Relations

() Employee Welfare Measures

1. Employee group insurance
Group insurance: The Company arranges group insurance for all employees,
with the coverage including life insurance, accident and injury insurance,
hospitalization and medical care insurance, cancer insurance and medical

insurance for addents.
2. Employee healthcare program:
Employees are entitled to one health checkup at a contract hospital or

health check institution.
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(I

3. Cafeteria and leisure center:

We have a cafeteria for employees to enjoy food with daily free points, and
a free finess center for employees to exercise round the clock.

4. Employee benefits:

All Gamania employees are entitled to the children's kindergarten and some
subsidies, online game points for employee purchases, free parking spaces
for cars and motorcycles, coamy merchandise, unlimited voluntary leave,
three days paid travel leave, and paid birthday. Female employees are
entitled to eight days of paid maternity leave, 10 weeks of paid maternity
leave, and 13 days of paid paternity examination and paternity tdav
employees' partners during pregnancy and childbirth. Travel subsidies,
employee club subsidies, cash gifts for three major festivals and birthdays,
marriage subsidies, funeral subsidies, hospitalization subsidies, childbirth
subsidies, emergency rdlidiousehold cleaning subsidies, etc.

5. Employee assistance program (EPA):

Free psychological counseling (psychological counseling and
finance/medical/legal services) for employees and discounts for
psychological counseling for relatives within a thiradydee of kinship.

Continuing education and training for employees

The Company offers to employees a vegjuipped learning environment and a
well-planned education and training framework covering orientation training for
new employees, professionaM@déopment training, and hierarchical training
(Gamanian). Every year we organize talks and irregular seminars (Gamania
Classroom, Gamania Content) supported witBagning (Gamania Resources)

to implement education and training. We also provide subdidiesployees to

take external training courses.

In 2023, there were a total of 272 employee training courses, with a total of 391
companysponsored courses, with a total of 7,062 trainees, a total of 13,339
training hours, and a total annual training exqeeaf NTD 3,423,217.

Number of No. of classes opened pg  Headcount of )
2023 course conten . Traineehourg Expense
courses course trainees
Classroom courses| 48 127 3,079 10,053.91,759,19¢
Online courses 164 173 3,892 1,815.2¢ 541,00(
External training
60 91 91 1,470.141,123,01§
couses
Total 272 391 7,062 13,338.943,423,21]
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(Il)  Retirement System and Its Implementation

1. The Company has prepared the Employee Retirement Guidelines as requirec
by the Labor Standards Act, the Labor Pension Act anavislthem.

2. Pension contribution:

From July 1, 2005, we established the Pension Contribution Regulations
according to the Labor Pension Act for R@&tionality employees. The
Company sets aside 6% of the monthly salary to be the labor pension for
the persnal accounts of employees with the Labor Insurance Bureau in
accordance with the labor pension system defined in the Labor Pension Act
that employees choose to apply. The payment of the pension fund can be
done on a monthly basis or in a lump sum accgytbnthe amount in the
personal retirement account of each employee and the accumulated income.
The employee pension reserve set aside by the Company is under the
supervision of the Committee formed jointly by employees and the
Company. Employees may natcaunt for less than twthirds of the total
members of the Committee.

3. Employees may apply for retirement if:

(1) they have worked for at least 15 years and are 55 years old or older.

(2) they have worked for at least 25 years; or

(3) they have workedofr at least 10 years and are 60 years old or older.
For spontaneous retirement, the em
Retirement Application For mo one m
retirement. Once it is approved by the supervisor with decisigding

power, it will be processed by the Human Resources Unit. Employees
applicable under the new system who are 60 years old or older and have
worked for at least 15 years may apply with the Labor Insurance Bureau

and claim the pension fund on a monthlgisaFor those who have not

worked for 15 years, the pension fund shall be claimed in a lump sum.

(IV) Labormanagement agreemeRNtne.

(V)  Respective Measures to Protect the Rights of Employees
1. Protective measures in the workplace:

(1) Fire drills and fire prevention workshops are organized on a yearly
basis targeting in particular new hires. The Fire Prevention Plan is
prepared and participants are assigned tasks during the drill and used
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actual firefighting equipment. Meanwhile, disaster prevernson
precisely enforced in order to protect the safety of employees. Fire
drills and demonstrations take place from time to time as required by
the Fire Department, too, to further perfect fire prevention in the
workplace.

(2) The filters of drinking fount@s in the office area are replaced
guarterly, and water quality testing and water tower cleaning are
conducted every six months to maintain the quality of drinking water
for employees and promote health.

(3) There are monthly preventions against cockreacmosquitoes, and
mice and also quarterly thorough preventions against vectors in office
areas to ensure a clean workplace for our people.

(4) The carpets are extensively cleaned periodically on a yearly basis in
order to ensure a comfortable environment

(5) The airconditioning system is cleaned up periodically on a yearly
basis and the filter for the energy recovery ventilator (ERV) is
replaced periodically to ensure the quality of air at work.

(6) There are multiple janitors to take charge of cleanip@ffices and
restrooms regularly on a daily basis to keep the workplace
comfortable.

. Personal safety protection:

(1) Provide comprehensive health examination for all employees every
year to check the health of employees.

(2) Engage fulitime nursesd provide health care within the Company.

(3) Acafeteria and a fitness room are established at the GAMA Island
with in-house chefs and fithess coaches to provide employees with
total health solutions from diet to exercise.

(4) Onsite physician health séce is provided on a quarterly basis,
where occupational medical specialists come to the Company to
consult with employees on related questions, so that employees can
ask guestions if they are in doubt about their health.

(5) Labor Insurance, National Hida Insurance, group insurance, and
liability insurance are provided. Additionally, travel insurance is
arranged for employees on a business trip to provide employees with
more bodily and health coverage when they are working hard for the
Company.

(6) TheSafety and Space Management Department is set up to monitor
the workplace around the clock for a safe and assuring workplace.
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Security guards control access around the clock and make the rounds
through floors regularly to check blind spots that cannotiddesd up
by surveillance cameras.

(7) The whole building is the exclusive office space for the Group and
employees are given limited access that is set as needed by the
Company.

(VI) Losses suffered because of lalmmnagement disputes in the past
year upto the date the Annual Report was printed (including
violations of the Labor Standards Act with labor inspection findings;
the date of punishment, punishment number, article of the law or
regulation violated, description of the violation and the punistimen
shall be specified) and disclose estimated values now and likely
incurred in the future and countermeasures:

The Company has been valuing employee welfare and the radomaigement
relations have been quite harmonious; no labhanagement disputes have
occurred. The same principle will continue to be followed in the future for more
robust and harmonious laboranagement relations, which is believed to be able
to eliminate laboimanagement issues. Therefore, no losses have been incurred
because of labemaragement disputes.

VI. Cybersecurity Management

(D Framework of cybersecurity risk management

Cyber security management is a continuous process. Operational risks are
analyzed and assessed through the organizational management structure.
Appropriate protetion mechanisms, monitoring measures, and responsive
actions are then put in place to ensure that the Company operates with minimum
losses and maximum income.

The Company's main requirements for information communication security
management:

. The IT secuty risks faced by the operations are properly managed.

. Encouragement of the Company's management and operation teams to
understand the impact of risk exposures.

Achieve better business flexibility and compliance.

5

, Provide a rigorous decisiemaking and plaming process.

The "Information Security Committee of the Group" is the highest organization
for information and communications security. Based on the Company's
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operational goals and strategies, and complying with relevant government laws
and regulations he corresponding information security policies are formulated
to carry out information security deployment, reinforcement, and abnormal
information monitoring, emergency response, etc., to implement various
information security management systems, ancevevhe existing security
management implementation through the risk management cycle to ensure the
continuity of services and operations; the CEO of the Group serves as the
highest supervision, and supervises organization members to implement all
information security management. Actions are taken to show the full support for
the information security management system. The organizational structure of the
committee is as follows. The committee is composed of commissioners
designated by various departmentsjuding but not limited to the head and
division-level executivdevel members. The team assists in providing various
information security services.

Board of Dig

. CEO of Cyber Security (concurrer

position) Chief Executive Officer

. Information Securiy Officer, Director of Information Security
Information Service Division for Meeting
Convening (concurrently served) Committee Planning and supervision of the actual auc

Policy and Information Security Technolo

Execution Team Risk Management Team

Implementation Team

. Collection of information on security protection by subsidiarie:
N and lgation of relevant inforn subsidiaries nf i N tect
. Information security protection service
security management specifications ..
Manage the Group's information security mamagnt .+ Bxecute the Gup's related information secur . Threat analysis and monitoring and attack security risks
. Suggestions on the content of relevant infor i warning . lcrg?rren;a(‘?\Sigecﬂgcse‘gxr‘essrem"mg and coordination of
management specifications ponding p
. Tracking existing deficiencies or weaknesses and providing
improvement suggestions and solutions
. Formulation of information security drill plan, audit and
implemenation of recommendations

. Supenvisors or frortine personnel of . Domestic Al technology automation . Manage business information security related matters
. Provide maintenance and operation related information secu
based ol information

(1) Cybersecurity policy

As a fulkecosystem network enterprise, the Group complies with government
laws and regulatianand the requirements of the competent authorities to
provide customers with a safe and convenient environment, confirm the
confidentiality, completeness and availability of personal and transaction data,
and ensure that the security of customer dateoisgssed and used throughout
the process.

1. To maintain the continuous operation of core service systems without
interruption

Regular or irregular review and evaluation of core services with operational
continuity and rapid response mechanisms; estabéishof a "network
DDoS protection” mechanism that actively analyzes DDoS attack packets,
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blocks and cleans attack traffic to mitigate its attack capacity. Avoid server
capacity overload or network congestion due to DDoS attacks and ensure
continuous servee delivery.

Prevent hackers, viruses, etc. from intrusion and damage

Ensure that all information security accidents or suspected security
weaknesses can be properly investigated and handled; take into account
efficiency, quality, and safety in the pr@sefrom software development to
application service operation.

Preventing the leakage of sensitive data due to improper or illegal use by
people

To ensure that information is not inadvertently disclosed to unauthorized
third parties during the proceskd authentication technology not only
encrypts the content of emails/confidential documents, but also integrates
internal crosssite service accounts, and applies electronic signature and
data encryption functions to prevent human errors, prevent unagtiori
improper access, and ensure the protection of information assets.

Establish the Group's information security infrastructure and protect the
safety of the operating environment

In addition to the necessary network/host defense framework (e.g. VPN,
firewall, intrusion detection, artirus software, etc.), all operating
businesses have also introduced a comprehensive information security
mechanism, the "Global Endpoint Threat Analysis and Automatic Alarming
System" to monitor network communication setyu

The Group's information security policy includes corresponding
specifications, procedures, operating rules or procedures, including but not
limited to the following, to ensure the systematic operation of information
security management.

Organizatiorand division of responsibility

5

. Personnel Safety and Education and Training

Physical security management

Network and Communication Security Management

Data backup and media management

Information Security Operation Management

Electronic data interchange

Data access and maintenance

Information communication system acquisition, development,

maintenance and management

107



Continuity Management of Information Operations
Information management outsourcing

PC management

Security management of system operation enviemsn
Development, maintenance, and management of system
Information security incident handling

Cloud-based job management

(Il Specific management plans

The management resources or specific implementation for response to risks in
cyber security are aslfows:

1. Internal and external issues and requirements of interested parties

Through the Groupds I nformation Se:q
external issues and the expectations of concerned parties are regularly or
irregularly reviewed, including ganizational structure, organizational

culture, major changes, competent authorities, laws and regulations,
standard changes, information security trends, etc. and so on.

2. Risk assessment of information assets

Annually or whenever a significant changeoxs, the "Information

Security Risk Assessment Model" is used to calculate the VaR for each
combination of threats and vulnerabilities based on the consequences of
destroying the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of information
assets when talentify risks, and to implement corresponding "risk
treatment or improvement plans” and residual riskvauation based on

the risk level for effective risk management or treatment. Then, appropriate
resources will be invested to reduce or transfertémag.

3. System development

Based on the nature and risk of different information operations, business
operations are classified, necessary protection measures are set, and various
information security management assessments are conducted on a regular
bass; security inspections are conducted for information and

communication service systems, website or host vulnerability scanning,

and penetration testing, which requires the system to execute source code
scanning security testing and complete system weakeesirs before the
system goes live or when making major changes, to reduce the impact of
human or natural factors on corporate operations; also, to understand and
evaluate the corporate network environment and system security to verify
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the security levieand effectiveness of the current information security
protection settings.

4. Safety protection

(1) Establish an automatic alarm mechanism for global endpoint threat
analysis (EDR)

Continuously pay attention to new information security technologies,
offensive and defensive trends pulse information, update defense or
management mechanisms in response to the changes in time and space
of information service formats, to effectively reduce and block new

types of information security threats and mitigate openat risks.

(2) Establish a cyber security threat detection and management center (SOC
Establish the contingency and recovery procedures for abnormal
information security incidents, introduce the use of defense and
detection mechanisms, and use inteftigmformation security
monitoring to uncover hidden malicious behaviors in the early stage of
hacker attacks and hunt down possible threats, in order to quickly
respond to information security incidents Isolate and eliminate threats,
reduce the scope amdtent of impact, and implement strict
information and communication security protection management.

(3) Establishment of privileged account management mechanism
Manages the privileged accounts of personal computers and important
equipment in the maintene@ and operation environment, and
actively protects, isolates, controls, and continuously monitors the
privileged accounts of virtual and physical servers, databases, network
information security equipment, applications, etc., to reduce the risk
of externdattacks and internal malicious threats.

5. Privacy and personal information protection

Member data is subject to strict encryption procedures and protection
measures. Relevant regulations are required to control the use and analysis
of member data, anchty authorized personnel may access the relevant
data. System data access records are regularly backed up and kept; in
addition, any network transmission of personal information is encrypted to
ensure that the information is not illegally retrieved bydtipiarties during

the transmission process. For the protection of personal data privacy,
enterprises shall follow the Group's "Personal Data Protection Policy" and
related personal data security maintenance and management plans, and
include the knowledge dninformation items of protection management in
the annual information inspection focus and implementation review.
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6. Business continuity

There is a disaster recovery plan for the core service system, and disaster
recovery drills are carried out on a reggubasis to ensure the restoration of
the access rights and functional effectiveness of the IT infrastructure;
restore to a normal or acceptable operating level of the enterprise, so that
the core service system can continue to function and the operatimn o
enterprise shall not be interrupted.

7. Education and training

(1) Physical and online information security courses
Information security riskdriven education and training allows
proactive defenses to precede attacks. Internal information security
trainings are also organized to enhance information security awareness
and awareness among information and communication management
personnel and general colleagues, understand the importance of
information security and various possible security risks, anutave
Information security awareness among employees, and thereby change
their behavior.
(2) Social engineering drills
Simulate hacker attacks and create highly simulated attack emails to
send decoy letters to employees to understand the true state of
empoyees' information security awareness and basic defense
capabilities in the face of social engineering, phishing, and other
behaviors; Employees who have successfully been deceived are given
targeted education programs to arouse employees' instinctive
regponses to threats, adjust information security behaviors, and build
the ability to stop, see, and listen.
(3) Information security enewsletter
Information security eewsletters are distributed from time to time to
supplement the information security aemaess propaganda, in order
to enhance and strengthen the awareness of information security
awareness among employees, and cultivate the habit of security
inspections.
8. Supplier management
According to the Group's procurement management policy and other
relevant regulations, it is necessary to select and supervise suppliers in an
appropriate manner to ensure the security of the upstream and downstream
supply chains, have sufficient technical capabilities and organizational
measures to fully protect the yacy of personal data, and provide them in
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the agreed service terms. It is required not to arbitrarily provide, sell,
exchange or rent private and sensitive information to other groups,
individuals, private institutions or for other purposes. All sup@ialuation
and selection process and weightings are recorded for future reference.
Suppliers who do not meet the qualifications will be removed from the
qualified supplier list and no further transactions will be conducted.

(IV) Resources for cybersecyrimanagement
1. Information Security Committee

Every half year, the Information Security Committee is chaired by the
Group's CEO to comprehensively review the information and
communication security management system, and conduct a rolling review
of the curent management mechanism and protection measures for the
operation of the information system and network services, to ensure their
normal operation and continuous improvement; at the same time,
operational risks, related response plans, and the annoiahation

security project promotion progress review are assessed.

2. Introduction of information security management system ISO/IEC 27001

The certification is valid from November 2, 2023 to October 31, 2025.
Meanwhile, subsidiaries of the Group are beingnmted to obtain
international safety certifications.

3. Information security internal audit

An internal information security sefssessment is conducted on a

guarterly basis, not only on Gamania itself, but also on the various
information security managnent measures of the Group's subsidiaries, and
the Groupbs headquarters has for mul
management inspection plan, and arsit@ inspection is conducted once a
year and conduct inspections to ensure the implementation of the'&roup
information security policy goals and management mechanisms. Potential
risks can also be discovered through the inspection and implementation
records, and improvement suggestions are proposed in the interview
summary report, which can be used as a bastsacking and corrective
implementation in the future.

4. Invest in the information security monitoring mechanism and strengthen
the contingency handling capacity

Institutionalize the reporting, classification, grading, processing, and
tracking of infaomation security incidents in accordance with the
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information security incident handling procedures; promptly report and
respond to information security incidents when they occur, and respond
within the shortest time possible to ensure at the same titneguced the
mechanism of security monitoring (SOC) and endpoint protection (EDR),
and invited the domestic thiglarty security technology consultant team
and security emergency response team to grasp the security alerts and
intelligence, strengthen andcelerate detection and response.

Damage and potential impact caused by material cybersecurity

incidents in the most recent year and up to the publication date of
annual report, and countermeasures.

(V)

As of the end of 2023, we have implemented infornmasiecurity management.
There have been no major cyber attacks or incidents, and no penalties from
relevant competent authorities for information security. In addition, the use of
personal data by Gamania is limited to specific purposes. No complaints or
rulings from regulators were received during the year, and no legal cases or
investigations were involved in this regard.

VII. Important Contracts

Up to the date of publication of the annual report, the important contracts of the
Company are as follows

Nature of contract Client

Contract start/end da

Main contents

Restrictions

Software authorization
contract
Wars of Prasia

Nexon Korea
Corporation

Effective on May 2,
2023, renewed
automatically

Software
authorization

The authorized
areas include
Taiwan, Homy
Kong, and Macao

Software authorization
contract

Nexon Korea

Effective on July 18,
2022, expired on July

Software

The authorized
areas include

Renewal of contract wit|Corporation authorization Taiwan, Hong
19, 2025
MapleStory Kong, and Macao
o . The authorized

Software athorization Effective on March .

NCsoft . Software areas include
contract . 11, 2022, expired on o .

Corporation authorization Taiwan, Hong

Lineage M

March 11, 2025

Kong, and Macao




Six. Financial Overview

|.  Condensed Balance Sheet and Comprehensiincome
Statement of the Past Five Years and Audit Opinions from the
CPAs: As of the date of publication of the annual report, if
there is any recent financial information certified or reviewed
by CPAs, it shall also be disclosed.

) Condensed Balance &t and Income Statement

1. Condensed balance she€onsolidated financial report

Unit: NTD thousant

Financial Data of the Past Five Years (Note 1) The current year up tg
Year 2023 March 31, 2024
ltem 2019 2020 2021 2022 Note2) | Financial DatsNote 1)
(Note inancial DatgNote
Current assets 4,559,08 4,382,631 5,432,401 5,899,49] 5,264,091 6,605,544
Real estate, plants, and equipmen 2,857,12 2,845,43 2,797,261 2,812,434 2,836,461 2,845,521
Intangible assets 842,55] 1,411,66 630,744 1,178,39( 1,076,891 975,616
Other assets 1,001,12 665,161 612,109 496,544 644,324 669,426
Total assets 9,259,884 9,304,891 9,472,511 10,386,86 9,821,771 11,096,10
Before
. 3,606,07 3,579,601 3,459,294 3,938,16¢ 3,859,584 4,659,034
Current liabilities|___distribution
After distribution 4,150,10 4,281,574 4,336,761 4,956,03] 3,859,584 4,659,034
Non-current liabilities 356,414 213,564 161,16¢ 159,734 175,502 205,691
Before
. 3,962,491 3,793,164 3,620,46 4,097,90! 4,035,081 4,864,731
Total liabilities distribution
After distribution 4,506,521 4,495,13 4,497,93( 5,115,76( 4,035,084 4,864.73]
Equity attributable to the owner of
aury 4,711,00 4,984,64 5,408,434 5852,03] 5,377,274 5,814,01
the parent company
Capital stek 1,754,93( 1,754,934 1,754,93¢ 1,754,934 1,754,934 1,754,934
Additional paidin capital 1,291,59 1,352,47 1,335,167 1,354,761 1,349,314 1,349,501
Before
. 1,836,53 2,429,141 2,823,697 3,181,681 2,723,574 2,076,29]
Retained earnind__distribution
After distribution 1,292,50 1,727,17 1,946,224 2,163,814 2,723,574 2,076,291
Other equities (171,976 (551,904 (505,352] (439,349] (450,554 (416,807
Treasury stock 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling interests 586,304 527,083 443,614 436,93( 409,417 416,456
Before
o 5,297,39 5,511,73 5,852,053 6,288,961 5,786,691 6,231,374
Total equity distribution
After distribution 4,753,36 4,809,75] 4,974,584 5,271,09¢ 5,786,691 6,231,371

Note 1: All the annual financialada listed above have been audited or reviewed and certified by the CPAs.

Note 2: The abowenentioned 2023 earnings distribution proposal was resolved by the Board of Directors on March 6, 2024, but has noppeb\estby
the shareholders' meeting.
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2. Condensed balance sheétdividual financial report
Unit: NTD thousand

Year Financial Data of the Past Five Years (Note 1)
Item 2023
201 202 2021 2022
019 020 0 0 (Note 2)
Current assets 1,291,58] 1,190,551 1,808,524 1,723,27¢ 1,068,71¢
Real estateplants, and 2,665,21 2,661,09 2,616,96¢ 2,623,580 2,643,45¢
equipment
Intangible assets 158,91 808,911 157,564 733,247 651,310
Other assets 2.853,70" 2,555,68 2.676,89 2.450,58] 2.478,78]
Total assets 6,969,40 7,216,241 7,259,905 7.530,68( 6,842,27
Before 1,995,67 2,114,53 1,796,44 1,643,34] 1,427 53]
Current distribution
il
iabilitles | After 2,539,70 2,816,50 2,673,91 2.661,20¢ 1,427 53]
distribution
Non-current liabilities 262,63¢ 117,061 55,074 35,311 37.464
Before 2,258,31] 2,231,59¢ 1,851,51¢ 1,678,654 1,464,99¢
L distribution
Total liabilitie: After
Ater 2,802,341 2,933,57 2,728,981 2.696,51] 1,464,99¢
distribution
Capital stock 1,754,934 1,754,93 1,754,93 1,754,93¢ 1,754,93¢
Additional paidin capital 1,291,59 1,352,47 1,335,161 1,354,76] 1,349,31¢
Reserved | Before 1,836,53 2.429,14 2,823,69] 3,181,68] 2.723,57¢
Earnings distribution
Alter 1,292,50 1,727.17 1,946,224 2.163,81 2.723,57¢
distribution
Other equies (171,976 (551,904 (505,352 (439,349 (450,554
Treasury stock - - - - -
Total equity | Before 4,711,09 4,984,64 5,408,43 5,852,03] 5,377,274
distribution
After 4,167,06 4,282,674 4,530,97 )
distribution ’ ’ L ’ ) ’ ) 1 4,834,16 5,377,274

Note 1: All the annual financial data listed above have been audited and certified by the CPAs.
Note 2: The abovementioned 2023 earnings distribution proposal was resolved by the Board of

Directors on March 6, 2024, but has not yet been approved by thestdarsh

meeting.

Note 3: The parent company only financial statements for the first quarter of 2024 were not

prepared.
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3. Statement of comprehensive incont@onsolidated financial report

Unit: NTD thousani

. . ) Current year up to
Year Financial Data of the Past Five YedNote) March 31, 2024
ltem
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Financial Data (Note)
Operating income 9,681,344 10,443,04] 11,372,47] 11,388,02] 9,790,86 3,332,22]
Operating gross profit 4,093,15¢ 3,968,73] 4,757,08f 4,86508{ 3,794,80 1,434,519
Operating loss or profit 1,260,034 1,137,417 1,734,09] 1,758,56] 639,691 533,374
Nonroperating income and expenditu (81,627 (71,868] (288,999 (50,114] 47,924 11,804
Pretax net profit (loss) 1,178,407 1,065,54] 1,445,09¢ 1,708,448 687,621 545,176
Net profit (loss) of the continuing 405,42(
operating department for the current 864,61¢ 782,32( 1,009,114  1,278,10] 560,237
term
Losses from discontinued units 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net profit (loss) of current term 864,61¢ 782,32 1,009,111 1,278,101 560,23 405,42(
— .
Other comprehensive income of currg (7,811 (109,948 35,268 72,164 (5,144 39,079
term (aftertax net value)
i i q
Sum of combined profits or losses of 856,801 672371 1.04438] 1.350,27] 555,088 444,494
current term
Net profit attributable to the owner of 887,89 872490 1106.28] 1.279.69¢ 575,188 403,932
the parent company
Net profit attributable to neoontrolling (23.277 (90,176 (97.166] (1,589) (14,956 1,488
interests
The sum of comprehensive income 437,674
attributable to the owner of the paren 877,31¢ 759,827 1,145,337 1,329,87 562,884
company
Totgl combined profits or.Ios.ses (20,509 (87,450 (100,954 20,400 (7,797 6,820
attributable to nortontrolling interests
Earrings per share 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29 3.24 2.3]

Note: All the annual financial data listed above have been audited or reviewed and certified by the CPAs.
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4. Statement of comprehensive incontedividual financial report
Unit: NTD thousand

Year Financial Data of the Past Five Years (Note 1)

ltem 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Operating income 7,011,514 7,423,59; 8,285,40! 8,128,584 6,454,66
Operating gross profit 2,803,871 2,613,20¢ 3,324,56! 3,203,44( 2,459,77]
Operating loss or profit 1,325,734 1,024,974 1,651,05! 1,414,731 563,703

Nonroperating income and ] |
expenditure (175,877 15,037 (220,399 112,70( 30,86(
Pretax net profit (loss) 1,149,85¢ 1,040,011 1,430,65¢ 1,527,43] 594,563
Net profit (loss) of the

continuing operag department 887,894 872,49¢ 1,106,28] 1,279,69¢ 575,184

for the current term

Losses from discontinued units - - - - -

Net profit (loss) of current term 887,89¢ 872,49¢ 1,106,28] 1,279,69¢ 575,184

Other comprehensive income o

(10,579 (112,674 39,05¢ 50,175 (12,303
current termgftertax net value)
Sum of combined profits or
877,316 759,827 1,145,337 1,329,871 562,884
losses of current term
Earnings per share 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29 3.28

Note 1: All the annual financial datated above have been audited and certified by the CPAs.
Note 2: The parent company only financial statements of 2024 Q1 were not prepared

(1) Names of CPAs for the Past Five Years and Their Audit Opinions

Year of ) ) ) o
_ |Name of Accounting Firr Nane of CPA Audit Opinion
certification
) o ) Unqualified opinion plus other
2019 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Pan, HuLing
matters
) o Unqualified opinion plus other
2020 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, YdFun
matters
) o Unqualified opinion plus dier
2021 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, YdFun
matters
) o Ungualified opinion plus other
2022 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, YaFun
matters
) ) | Unqualified opinion plus other
2023 PwC Taiwan Yan Yu-Fang, Lin YungChi tt
matters
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Financial Analysis of the past Five Years

(1)

Financial Analysis Consolichted Financial Report

Financial Analysis of the Past Five Years

Year (Note, As of March 31,
Analytical Item (Note ) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
! ) Liability -to-asset ratio 42.79 40.77 38.22 39.45 41.08 43.84
Financial structur -
o Long term cajgal to real estate, plants| i 226.22
(%) _ _ 197.8¢ 201.21 214.97 229.2¢ 210.2(Q
and equipment Ratio
Current ratio 126.43 122.43 157.04 149.8( 136.3¢ 141.78
Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 108.1( 107.1( 143.32 138.36 124.5( 130.64
Interest ProtectioMultiples 6,460.14 8,827.59  21,119.5¢ 31,202.2§ 12,214.5] 48,431.2]
Receivable turnover ratio (frequency) 9.02 9.84 11.71 12.69 13.22 15.63
Average collection days 40.46 37.09 31.16 28.7¢ 27.61 23.35
Inventory turover ratio (frequency) 6.17 5.80 4.36 2.68 4.09 1.12
Management |Payable turnover ratio (frequency) 9.39 12.35 12.28 10.97 9.72 10.31
ability Average sales days 59.15 62.93 83.71 136.1¢ 89.24 325.38
Real estate, plants and equipment 4.69
o 3.36 3.66 4.03 4.06 3.44
turnover ratio (tines)
Total asset turnover ratio (frequency) 1.0 1.13 1.21 1.15 0.97] 1.27
Return on assets (%) 9.22 8.53 10.81 12.92 5.59 15.54
Return on equity (%) 16.54 14.48 17.76 21.05 9.28 26.99
N Pretax net profit to paidn capital size 31.07
Profitability . 67.15 60.72 82.34 97.35 39.14
ratio (%)
Net profit rate () 8.93 7.49 8.87 11.22 5.72 12.17
Earnings per share (NT$) 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29 3.28 2.31
Cash flow ratio (%) 24.30 65.2( 74.40 62.74 25.09 18.08
Cash flow |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 59.79 114.66 136.17 137.58 113.7¢ 140.58
Cash Renvestment ratio (%) 6.39 34.81 29.53 25.4¢ (0.76 12.31
Operating leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Leverage
Financial leverage 1.01 1.01 1.00 1.00 1.01 1.00

Explain the reasons for the changes in respective financial ratios over the most recent two years. (No analysis fs
the variation in increases/decreases falls short of 20%.)

O©CoO~NOULD, WNBE

. Debt serviceoverage ratio: due to the decrease intgreprofit and loss.
. Inventory turnover (times): due to the increase in cost of goods sold.
. Average sales days: due to the increase in cost of sales.
. Return on assets: due to decreased profits.

. Returnon equity: due to decreased profits.

. Ratio of pretax net profit to paidn capital: due to the decrease in-fa profit and loss.
. Net profit margin: due to decreased profit.

. Earnings per share: due to decreased profit.

. Cash flow ratio: duentthe decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

10. Cash reinvestment ratio: due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.
11. Cash reinvestment ratio: due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.




(I1) Financial Analysis Individual Financial Report

Year (Note Financial Analysis of the Past Five Years
Analytical Item (Note ) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
. : Liability-to-asset ratio 32.4(Q 30.92 25.5C 22.29 21.47
Financial 3 " Tl t [ esial
structure (%) -ON9 t€rm capital to real estatq 186.67 191.71 208.77 224.4( 204.84
plants and equipment Ratio
Current ratio 64.72 56.30 100.67 104.86 74.86
Solvency (%)Quick ratio 56.05 50.85 94.37 97.82 67.42
Interest Protection Multiples 9,243.98 12,014.41 37,838.2] 102,957.44 34,890.1]
Receivabldurnover ratio 10.49 12.86 11.91 9.48 9.10
(frequency)
Average collection days 34.79 28.38 30.64 38.50 40.10
Inventory turnover ratio 0.21 0.36 0.24 0.16 0.1d
(frequency)
Managemen Payable turnover ratio 11,35 17.03 17.3 14.28 12.45
ability (frequency)
Average sales days 1,738.0¢ 1,013.8¢ 1,520.8: 2,281.25 3,650.0(
Real estate, plants and equipr 262 278 3.13 3.1Q 2.45
turnover ratio (times)
Total asset turnover ratio 0.95 1.05 114 110 0.90
(frequency)
Rewrn on assets (%) 12.18 12.4Q 15.33 17.32 8.02
Return on equity (%) 18.83 18.00 21.2¢ 22.73 10.24
Profitability |F"E1X Net profit to paidn 65.52 59.26 81.52 87.04 33.84
capital size ratio (%)
Net profit rate () 12.66 11.75 13.35 15.74 8.91
Earnings per share (NT$) 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29 3.28
Cash flow ratio (%) 40.10 110.1¢ 108.11 109.04 82.71
Cash flow |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 66.36 110.95 112.31 118.54 81.86
Cash R-investment ratio (%) 5.21] 36.92 19.61 33.47% 2.85
Leverage Operating leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0Q 1.0Q
9 Financial leverage 1.01 1.01 1.00 1.0Q 1.0Q

Explain the reasons for the changes in respective financial ratios over the most regeatrsv(No analysis is required i

the variation in increases/decreases falls short of 20%.)

. Current ratio (%): due to a decrease in cash flow.

. Quick ratio (%): due to a decrease in cash.

. Debt service coverage ratio: due to the decrease-taypprofit and loss.

. Inventory turnover: due to the decrease in operating costs.

. Average days of sales: due to the decrease in operating costs.

. The turnover rate of property, plant and equipment: due to the decrease in operating revenue.
. Returnon assets (%): due to decreased profits.

. Return on equity (%): due to decreased profits.

. EBT to paidin capital ratio (%): due to decreased profits.

10. Net profit margin (%): due to decreased profit.

11. Earnings per share: due to decreased profit.

12. Cash flow ratio (%): due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

13. Cash reinvestment ratio (%): due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

O©CoO~NOULD, WNBE
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Note*: The calculation formula is provided below:

1. Financialstructure
(1) Liability-to-asset ratio = total liabilities/ total assets
(2) Longterm funds to fixed assets ratio (net value of shareholder equity longterm
liabilities)/ net value of fixed assets.
2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio Current assets/ Current liabilities.
(2) Quickratio  (Current assets Inventory  Advance payrants)/Current liabilities.
(3) Interest protection multiples Income tax and net profit before interest/Interest expenditure of
current term
3. Management ability
(1) Receivable (including accounts receivable and receivable notes from operations) tratiover
Net sales value/ mean balance of receivables of each term (including accounts receivable and
receivable notes from operations).
(2) Average collection days 365/Receivable turnover ratio
(3) Inventory turnover ratio  Sales cost/mean inventory
(4) Payable (including accounts payable and payable notes from operations) turnover risii
sales value/ mean balance of payables of each term (including accounts payable and payable
notes from operations).
(5) Average sales days 365/Inventory turnoveratio
(6) Fixed asset turnover ratio = Net sales value/Mean net value of fixed assets
(7) Total asset turnover ratio = Net sales value/Mean total assets
4. Profitability
(1) Return on assets = [aftix gains and losses + interest xtdg rate)]/gross asts on average
(2) Return on shareholder equity = aftax profit or loss/mean net value of shareholder equity
(3) Net profit rate  After-tax profits and losses/Net sales value
(4) Earnings per share (After-tax net profit ~ Preferred stock dividend)/Weighted average
number of shares already issued
5. Cash flow
(1) Cashflowratio Net cash flow from operatingctivities/Current liabilities
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio Net cash flow of operating activities over the past five
years/(capital expenditure + increase in inventorycash dividend) over the past five years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cdlslw from operating activities cash dividends)/(gross value
of fixed assets + lonterm investment + other assets + working capital)
6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage (Net operating income Change in operating costs and
expenses)/Operating profit.
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating incomigrest expense).



lll. Supervisor or Audit Committee's review report on the 2023
annual financial reports

Audit Committeeds Audit Repo

The 2023 annual business report and financial s&tesr{including individual and
consolidated financial statements) have been prepared by the Board of Directors for
proposal. The financial statements have been audited by CPA Yaangiand CPA

Lin Yung-Chi of PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, and havedsanendependent
auditor's report. The abovreentioned Business Report, Financial Statements, and
Proposal on Distribution of Earnings have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
and no inconsistency has been found. Therefore, according to applicablemeaisre

of the Securities and Exchange Act and the Company Act, it is reported as above.

Your review and approval are cordially requested.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

Convener of Audit Committee:

March 6, 2024
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IV. Financial Statements of 202

GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO.,
LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ review report and the
accompanying financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version
prepared and used in the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and
the original Chinese version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language
auditors’ review report and financial statements shall prevail.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

PWCR 23000420

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the audit reports of other auditors (refer to the other matter
section), the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
Jor the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Group’s 2023 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we
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do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Estimation of revenue recognition of online and mobile games revenue

Description

Refer to Note 4(27) for accounting policies on revenue recognition, Note 5(2) for the critical accounting
estimates and assumptions and Note 6(22) for the details of accounting applied on revenue recognition.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and the subsidiary, Gamania Digital
Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., are primarily engaged in providing online and mobile game services.
The game players purchase game stored-value cards or value-added to play the game or exchange for
virtual items. The Company and the subsidiary, Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd.,
recognise receipt of payments for game stored-value card purchases or value-added by players as
“contract liability”, and recognises revenue over the period of the service or the estimated delivery period
of the virtual items when the game stored-value cards or value-added is used for the purchase of service
or virtual items, respectively.

The estimation of the virtual items delivery period, which is the same as the expected users’ relationship
period, is based on historical data on item consumption and item transfer by management. The Company
has implemented processes and controls to develop and periodically review these estimates. The
information of stored-value and value-added was collected by computer system. Given that the Company
has many transactions of game revenue and the deferral of virtual items and the estimation of users’
relationship period involve management's subjective judgment, we consider the estimation of
recognition of online and mobile games revenue and contract liability as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed and tested the relevant internal controls over revenue recognition for online and mobile
games revenue.

B. Tested on a sample basis the consumption information generated from the Company’s data
collection systems and verified against the consumption report provided by the Company’s
accountant.

C. Tested on a sample basis the virtual items information generated from the Company’s data
collection systems and verified against the contract liability as shown in the trial balance sheet
provided by the Company’s accountant.
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D. Tested on a sample basis the expected users’ relationship periods as reflected in the data collection
systems, and compared with expected consumption based on the Company’s accounting policy.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Description

Refer to Notes 4(18) and (19) for accounting policies on goodwill impairment, Notes 6(12) and (14) for
details of goodwill, and Note 5(2) for the uncertainty of accounting estimates and assumptions in relation
to goodwill.

Goodwill arising from the merger of the Company with NOWnews Network Co., Ltd. and Digicentre
Company Limited is material to the financial statements and the projected future cash flows of the
expected recoverable amount under the valuation model adopted in the impairment assessment of
goodwill was estimated based on management’s subjective judgement and expectation on the future

operations. Thus, we consider the assessment of goodwill impairment a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures relative to the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed whether the valuation models adopted by the Group are reasonable for the industry,

environment and the valued assets of the Group;

B. Confirmed whether the expected future cash flows adopted in the valuation model are in agreement
with the budget provided by the cash-generating units;

C. Assessed the appointed external appraisers in conformity with the rules of qualification and
independence, and evaluated the reasonableness of material assumptions, such as expected growth
rates, operating profit margin and discount rates, by:

(a) Reviewing the appraisal method and calculation formulas used by the independent appraisal

expert.
(b) Comparing the expected growth rate and operating profit margin with historical data;
(c) Reviewing the discount rate and comparing similar return on similar assets ratio in the market.

D. Compared the recoverable value and book value of each cash-generating unit in order to assess the

reasonableness of the book value.
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Other matter — Reference to the audits of other auditors

As described in Note 4(3), we did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, which were
audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements and the information disclosed in Note 13 relative to
these investments, is based solely on the audit reports of other auditors. Total assets of the subsidiaries
amounted to NT$2,428,046 thousand and NT$2,157,183 thousand, constituting 25% and 21% of
consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and operating revenue was
NT$2,517,590 thousand and NT$2,825,788 thousand, constituting 26% and 25% of consolidated total
operating revenue for the years then ended, respectively.

Other matter — Parent company only financial reports

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion with other matter section on the parent company
only financial statements of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1,

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

\<-Q/V\,, Yw'?amg 7"‘7 chA %/“

Yen, Yu-Fang Lin, Yung-Chih

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 6, 2024

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ audit report are not intended for
use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice.



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARTES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 3,157,380 32 3,737,319 36
1136 Financial assets at amortised cost -  6(7) and 8

current 83,977 1 148,654 2
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(2) 64 - 11 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(2) 604,477 6 785,366 3
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties, 7

net 14,146 - 20,651 -
1200 Other receivables 6(3) 655,171 7 532,957 5
1210 Other receivables - related parties 7 2,312 - 2,571 -
1220 Current income tax assets 172,397 2 24,341 -
130X Inventories 6(4) 108,991 1 128,927 1
1410 Prepayments 6(5) 349,878 4 321,577 3
1470 Other current assets 8 110,298 1 197,078 2
11XX Total current assets 5,264,091 54 5,899,492 57

Non-current assets

1510 Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - non-current 15,000 - 15,000 -
1517 Financial assets at fair value through  6(6)

other comprehensive income - non-

current 112,874 1 117,581 1
1535 Financial assets at amortised cost -  6(7) and 8

non-current 725 - - -
1550 Investments accounted for under 6(8)

equity method 116,990 1 135,404 1
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(9) and 8 2,836,467 29 2,812,438 27
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(10) 89,126 1 73,933 1
1780 Intangible assets 6(12) 1,076,891 11 1,178,390 11
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(28) 96,280 1 96,886 1
1900 Other non-curtent assets 6(13) 213,333 2 57,741 1
15XX Total non-current assets 4,557,686 46 4,487,373 43
IXXX  Total assets $ 9,821,777 100 10,386, 865 100

(Continued)
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., L TD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(15) 90,039 1% 91,760
2130 Current contract liabilities 6(22) 327,607 3 379,934
2170 Accounts payable 613,583 6 615,362
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 2,486 - 1,572
2200 Other payables 6(16) 2,156,071 22 2,217,043 21
2220 Other payables - related parties 7 529,766 B 351,676 3
2230 Current income tax liabilities 22,274 - 158,773 2
2280 Current lease liabilities 33,440 - 26,385
2399 Other current liabilities 84,018 1 95,663 1
21XX Total current liabilities 3,859, 584 39 3,938,168 38
Non-current linbilities
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(28) 97,884 1 89,912 1
2580 Lease liabilities - non-current 56,040 1 47,718
2600 Othet non-cutrent liabilities 21,578 - 22,105
25XX Total non-current liabilities 175,502 2 159,735 1
2XXX Total liabilities 4,035,086 41 4,097,903 39
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital 6(18)
3110 Common stock 1,754,936 18 1,754,936 17
Capital surplus 6(19)
3200 Capital surplus 1,349,316 14 1,354,763 13
Retained earnings 620
3310 Legal reserve 611,649 488,103
3320 Special reserve 439,349 505,352
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 1,672,578 17 2,188,227 21
Other equity interest 6(21)
3400 Other equity interest 450,554 ( 43 ( 439,3493 ( 4y
31XX Equity attributable to owners of
the parent 5,377,274 55 5,852,032 57
36XX Non-controlling interest 4(3) 409,417 4 436,930 4
XXX Total equity 5,786,691 59 6,288,962 61
Significant contingent liabilities and 9
unrecorded contract commitments
Significant events after the balance 11
sheet date
I2X Total liabilities and equity 9,821,777 100§ 10,386,865 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., 1. TD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share data)

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Operating revenue 6(22) and 7 $ 9,790, 860 100§ 11,388,021 100
5000  Operating costs 6(4) and 7 ( 5,996,060 ( 61 ( 6,522,937} ( 58}
5950  Gross profit 3,794,800 39 4,865,084 42
Operating expenses 6(27)and 7
6100 Selling expenses ( 1,293,050) ( 13y ¢ 1,358,731y ( 12y
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 1,197,719 ( 12) ( 1,260,746 ( 1
6300 Research and development expenses ( 653,204} ( T 484,778} ( 43
6450 Expected credit impairment loss 12(2) ( 11,132) - 2,207)
6000 Total operating expenses ( 3,155,105y ( 32 ( 3,106,522} ( 27y
6900  Operating income 639,695 7 1,758,562 15
Non-operating income and expenses

7100 Interest income 6(23) 47,970 - 20,899
7010 Other income 6(24) 30,291 - 19,627
7020 Other gains and losses 6(25) ( 2,544 - 54,713)
7050 Finance costs 6(26) ( 5,676} - 5,493)
7060 Share of loss of associates and joint  6(8)

ventures accounted for under

equity method ( 22,115} - 30,434)
7000 Total non-operating income and

expenses 47,926 - ( 50,114)
7900  Profit before income tax 687,621 7 1,708,448 15
7950 Income tax expense 6(28) ( 127,388} ( ¢ 430,341 ( 43y
8200  Profit for the year $ 560,232 & 3 1,278,107 11
(Continued)
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share data)

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Other comprehensive income, net
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
8311 Actuarial (loss) gain on defined
benefit plan ($ 1,372} -5 10,765
8316 Unrealised loss on investmentsin =~ 6(6)
equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income ( 4,701} - ( 53,3300
8320 Share of other comprehensive loss of 6(21)
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity
method that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss ( 1063 - ( 313
8349 Income tax related to components of
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 274 - ( 2,153)
8310 Other comprehensive loss that will
not be reclassified to profit or
loss ( 5,905% - ( 45,031)
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Financial statements translation
differences of foreign operations 99 - 128,787 1
8399 Income tax relating to the 6(28)
components of other
comprehensive income 662 - ( 11,592)
8360 Other comprehensive income that
will be reclassified to profit or
loss 761 - 117,195 1
8300 Total other comprehensive (loss)
income for the year (% 5, 1443 -3 72,164 1
8500  Total comprehensive income for the
year $ 555,088 6 3 1,350,271 12
Profit (loss) attributable to:
8610 Owners of the parent $ 575,188 6 $ 1,275,696 11
8620 Non-controlling interest { 14,956 - ( 1,589
$ 560,232 6 3 1,278,107 11

Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
8710 Owners of the parent $ 562,885 6 3 1,329,871 12
8720 Non-controlling interest ( 7,797y - 20,400 -
$ 555,088 6 3 1,350,271 12

Earnings per share { in dollars) 6(29)
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 3,28 § 7.28
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 3.25 % 7.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2002

Balance at January 1, 2022
Profit (loes) for the year
Other comprehensive income (oss) for the year
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Appropriations of 2021 retained carnings

Legal reserve:

Reversal of special reserve

Cash dividends
Chengein ownership interest in subsidiaries
Chenges in non-controlling interest
Disposal of investments in aquity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income
Balance at December 31, 2022

2003

Balance et Jenuary 1, 2023
Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Total comprehengive income (loss)
Appropriations of 2022 retained carnings

Legsl reserve

Special reserve

Cash dividends
Change in ownership interest in subsidiaries
Changes in non-controlling interest
Balance at December 31, 2023

GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD:. AND> SUBSIDIARIES

ATED ST

EMBER 31, 2023
(Bxpresaed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

2022

Capital Reserves Retained Barnings Other Bquity Interest
Unrealised gainz
{losses) from
Financial financial assets
statements measured at fair
translation value through ofher
Share capital - Additional paid-in Treagury stock Unappropriated differences of comprehensive Non-controlling
—Notzs __ commonstock ___ capitel  __ tmnsactions  _ Othes  _Legalreserve _Specisl reserve _ retained camings _forcign opermtions ingome Toul intercst —Total oquity
$ 1,754,936 § 886,975 $ 372,701 § 75,487 § 378,451 $ 551,904 § 1,893,337 $ 131,809 ) (% 373,543) § 5,408,439 $ 443,614 $ 5,852,053
- - - - - - 1,279,696 - - 1,279,696 ( 1,580 ) 1,278,107
- - - - - - 8,612 95,206 { 53,643 ) 50,175 21,989 72,164
- - - - - - 1,288,308 95,206 ( 53,643 ) 1,329,871 20,400 1,330,271
6{20)
- - - - 109,652 - 109,652 ) - - - - -
- - - - - 46,552 46,552 - - - - -
- - - - - - 877,468 ) - - ( 877,468 ) - 4 877,458 )
6(30) - - - 19,800 - - 28,410 ) - - ( 83810) ¢« 8,487 ) ¢ 17,297 )
- - - - - - - - - - ( 18,597 ) ¢ 18,597 )
6(6}
- - - - - - 24,440 ) - 24,440 - - -
$ 1,754,936 § 886,975 $ 372,701 5 95,087 $ 488,103 $ 505,352 $ 2,188,217 (5 36,603 ) $ 402,746 )  $ 5,852,082 $ 436,930 $ 6,288,962
$ 1,754,936 § 886,975 $ 372,701 § 95,087 § 488,103 $ 505,352 § 2,188,227 (% 36,603 ) (% 402,746 ) § 5,852,032 $ 436,930 $ 6,288,962
- - - - - - 575.188 - - 575,188 ( 14,956 ) 560,232
- - - - - - 1,008 ) « 6,398 ) ( 4,807 ( 12,303 ) 7,159 4 5,144 )
- - - - - - 574,090 ( 6,398 ) ( 4,807 ) 562,885 ( 7,797 ) 555,088
6{20)
- - - - 123,546 - 123,546 ) - - - - -
- - - - - (66,003 66,003 - - - - -
- - - - - - 1,017,863 ) - - ( 1,017,863 ) - ( 1,017,863 )
6(30) - - - ( 5,447 ) - - 14,333 ) - - ( 19,780 ) 18,484 { 1,296 }
- - - - - - - - - - ( 98,200 ) ( 38,200 }
$ 1,754,936 § 886,975 $ 372,701 $ 89,640 $ 611,649 $ 439,349 $ 1,672,518 (% 43,001 ) ($ 407,553 ) $ 5,377,274 $ 409,417 $ 5,786,691

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

GAMANIA DIGITATL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended December 31,
Notes 2023 2022
CASH FL.OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 687,621 1,708,448
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation 6(9)(10) 170,450 161,035
Amortisation 6(12) 476,556 421,196
Expected credit impairment loss 12(2) 11,132 2,267
Interest expense 6(26) 5,676 5,493
Interest income 6(23) 47,870 ) ( 20,899 )
Share of loss of subsidiaries and associates accounted  6(8)
for under equity method 22,115 30,434
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6(25) 1 3
Loss on disposal of investment 6(25) 895
Impairment loss on non-financial assets 6(14) 93,163
Gain on lease modification 6(25) 3 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Notes receivable 53 741
Accounts receivable 173,159 58,154
Accounts receivable - related parties 6,505  ( 9,310
Other receivables 123,343 ) ( 273,871 %
Other receivables - related parties 259 357
Inventories 19,936 ( 6,345 )
Prepayments 32,255} 30,449
Other cuttent assets 24,602 45,003
Other non-current assets 4,127 -
Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities 52,517y ( 5,082 )
Accounts payable 2,373 51,235
Accounts payable - related parties 914 ( 5,615
Other payables 181,592 3 361,293
Other payables - related parties 178,090 163,002
Other current liabilities 11,927 899
Other non-current liabilities 1,117} 63
Cash inflow generated from operations 1,327,793 2,902,384
Interest received 47,970 20,899
Dividends received 831 622
Interest paid 5,676 ( 5,493 )
Income tax paid 402,704 ) ( 447,641 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 968,214 2,470,771
(Continued)
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GAMANIA DIGITAI ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FL.OWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit

ot loss

Decrease (increase) in financial assets at amortised cost

Decrease in other financial assets

Acquisition of investments accounted for under equity
method

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in other non-current assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in short-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term debt

Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received

Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in acquiring subsidiaries

Cash dividends paid

Increase in subsidiaries capital from non-controlling

interest
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interest
Acquisition of additional equity interest in subsidiaries
Net cash used in financing activitics

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Years ended December 31,
Notes 2023 2022
6(6)
- $ 31,208
- 15,000
58,992 ( 31,741
62,178 31,385
6(8)
6,400 ) ( 44,770 3
6(31) 129,791 ) ( 130,990 )
148 287
2,977« 5,572
6(31) 279,476 ) ( 1,056,292
162,636 ) ( 12,457 )
454 008 )y ( 1,233,942
6(33) 1,706 ) ( 17,726 )
- 80,000
560 ( 1,740
6(33) 34,917 ( 33,139)
4,366 ) -
6(20) 1,017,863 ) ( 877,468 )
6(30)
913 5,323
38,200 ( 18,597
6(30) - 14,704 )
1,005,549 ) ( 1,038,051 )
1,404 119,645
579,939 ) 318,423
3,737,319 3,418,896
3,157,380 $ 3,737,319

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION
Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the “Company™) was incorporated as a company limited by
shares under the provisions of the Company Law of the Republic of China (R.Q.C.). The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as the “Group™) are primarily engaged in software services

of on-line game and sales of related merchandises.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION
These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on March
6, 2024.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS. AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS®”) Accounting Standards that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial

Supervisory Commission (“FSC™)
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and became effective from

2023 are as follows:
Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities January 1, 2023
arising from a single transaction’
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘International tax reform - pillar two model May 23, 2023
rules’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC but
not yet adopted by the Group

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and will become effective from
2024 are as follows:
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Effective date by

International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or January 1, 2024
non-current’
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ‘Supplier finance arrangements’ January 1, 2024

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(3) IFRS Accounting Standards issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRS
Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International Accounting
Standards Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, “Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - January 1, 2023
comparative information’
Amendments to IAS 21, ‘Lack of exchangeability’ January 1, 2025

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC® Interpretations, and

SIC® Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the
“IFRSs™).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention:
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(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
(c) Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.
B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or

complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation
of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases

when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between

companies within the Group are eliminated.

(c) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

(e) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture.
Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets or
liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, all gains or

losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary



should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified

to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are disposed of.

Name of
Investor

Name of
Subsidiary

Main Business
Activities

B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Owmership (%)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 Description

Gamania Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd.

Gamania Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd.

Gamania Holdings Ltd.
(GH)

Gamania International
Holdings Ltd. (GIH)

Gamania International
Holdings Ltd. {(GIH)

Gamania International
Holdings Ltd. {(GIH)

Gamania International
Holdings Ltd. {(GIH)

Gamania China
Holdings Ltd.

Gamania Sino Holdings
Ltd.

Achieve Made
International Ltd. (AMT)

Tollywiz Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.

Tollywiz Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.

Tollywiz Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.

Tollywiz Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.

Cyber Look Properties
Ltd.

Gamania Holdings
Ltd. (GH)

Gamania Digital
Entertainment (HK)
Co., Ltd.

Gamania
International
Holdings Ltd. {GIH)

Gamania China
Holdings Ltd.

Joymobee
Entertainment Co.,
Ltd.

Achieve Made
International Ltd.
(AMD

HaPod Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.

Gamania Sino
Holdings Ltd.

Gamania Digital
Entertainment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Tollywiz Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.

Cyber Look
Properties Ltd.

Tollywiz International
(HK) Co., Ltd.

Bjolly Co., Ltd.
(Bjolly)

NOWnews Network
Co., Ltd.
(NOWnews)

Legion Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Holding company

Software services

Investment and
holding company

Investment and
holding company

Software services

Investment and
holding comparny

Software services
and sales

Investment and
holding comparny

Research and
development and
sales of software

Supply of electronic
information services

Investment and
holding company

Supply of electronic
information services

Supply of electronic
information services

Broadcast and TV
shows production

Supply of electronic
information services

13¢€

100

100

100

98.85

100

43.28

100

100

100

100

100

100

95.83

0.82

100

100

100

100

98.85

100

45.40

100

100

100

100

100

100

95.83

0.94

100



QOwmership (%)

Name of Name of Main Business
Investor Subsidiary Activities December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 Description
Legion Technology Jollywiz Digital Supply of electronic 100 100
(Shanghai) Co., Lid. Business Co., Ltd. information services
Gamania Digital Gamania Asia Investment company 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd. Investment Co., Ltd.
(Gamania Asia)
Gamania Digital Ciirco Inc. (Ciirco) Software services 99.90 99.90
Entertainment Co., Litd.
Gamania Digital Fundation Digital Publishing of 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Entertainment Co., magazines and
Lid. (Fundation) periodicals
Gamania Digital JollyBuy Digital Supply of electronic 99.00 98.89 Notes 8
Entertainment Co., Ltd. Tech. Co., Ltd. information services and 9
(JollyBuy)
Gamania Digital Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Animation 51 51
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  {Two Tigers) production
Gamania Digital Gash Point Co., Ltd.  Information 90 20
Entertainment Co., Itd.  (Gash Point) software and supply
of electronic
information services
Gamania Digital Ants’ Power Co,, Ltd. Customer service 100 100
Entertainment Co,, Ltd.  (Ants’ Power)
Gamania Digital Indiland Co., Ltd. Third party payment 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (Indiland)
Gamania Digital We Backers Co.,, Ltd. Crowd funding 93.38 93.38
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (We Backers)
Gamania Digital BeanGol Co., Ltd. Software services 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (BeanGol)
Gamania Digital Coture New Media Online media 93.08 93.08
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Co., Ltd. (Coture production
New Media)
Gamania Digital GAMA PAY Co., Electronic payment 81.26 81.26 Note 6
Entertainment Co., Ltd. Ltd. (GAMA PAY)
Gamania Digital NOWnews Network  Broadcast and TV 82.06 79.44 Notes 3
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Co., Ltd. shows production and 5
(NOWnews)
Gamania Digital Digicentre Company Software services 67.48 67.48
Entertainment Co., Ltd. Limited (Digicentre)
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Qwnership (%)

Name of Name of Main Business
Investor Subsidiary Activities December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 Description
Gamania Digital Walkermedia Co., Digital media 30 - Notes 4
Entertainment Co., Itd. Ltd. (Walkermedia)  platforms and
general advertising
services
Gash Point Co., Lid. Gash Point (Hong Information 100 100
Kong) Company software and supply
Limited of electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point (Japan) Information 100 100
Co., Ltd. software and supply
of electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point Korea Information 100 100
Co., Ltd. software and supply
of electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Lid. GAMA PAY Co., Electronic payment 6.22 6.22 Note 6
Lid. (GAMA PAY)
Gash Point Co., Lid. Conetter Software services 79.98 79.98
CoMarketing Co.,
Ltd. (Conetter)
Gash Point (Hong Kong) GAMA PAY Co., Electronic payment 8.38 8.38 Note 6
Company Limited Ltd. (GAMA PAY)
Gamania Asia The China Post Co., Newspaper and 100 100
Investment Co., Ltd Ltd. magazine
publishing
Gamania Asia Bjolly Co., Ltd. Supply of electronic 4.17 4.17 Note 2
Investment Co., Ltd. (Bjolly) information services
NOWnews Network Walkermedia Co., Digital media 70 - Notes 4
Co., Ltd. (NOWnews) Ltd. (Walkermedia)  platforms and and 10
general advertising
services
Digicentre Company Digicentre (HK) Software services 100 100
Limited Company Limited
Digicentre Company Hyperg Smart Software services 51 51
Limited Security Technology
Pte. Ltd. (Hyperg)

Note 1: The equity held by the Group was less than 50%. However, as the Group held half of the
seats in the Board of Directors, the investee was included in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Note 2: The Company’s subsidiaries, Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. and Gamania Asia,
held a 95.83% and 4.17% equity interest in Bjolly, respectively, and had control over the
investee, thus, the investee was included in the consolidated financial statements,

Note 3: The Company and its subsidiary, Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd., held 82.06% and
0.82% equity interest in Nownews, respectively and had control over the investee, thus,
the investee was included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 4: The Company and its subsidiary, NOWnews Network Co., Ltd. held a 30% and 70%
equity interest in Walkermedia Co., Ltd., respectively, and had control over the investee,
thus, the investee was included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 5: On May 9, 2022 and December 23, 2022, the Company participated in the capital increase.
The Company acquired 0.47% equity interest in NOWnews. Accordingly, the equity
interest in Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. decreased to 0.94%. On June 2, and
December 22, 2023, the Company participated in the capital increase. The Company
acquired 2.62% equity interest in NOWnews. Accordingly, the equity interest in Jollywiz
Digital Technology Co., Ltd. decreased to 0.82%.

Note 6: On December 28, 2022, the Company participated in the capital increase. The Company
acquired 8.52% equity interest in GAMA PAY. Consequently, the equity interest in
GAMA PAY of Gash Point Co., Ltd. and Gash Point (Hong Kong) Company Limited on
December 31, 2022 decreased to 6.22% and 8.38%, respectively.

Note 7: The subsidiary, AMI, issued ordinary shares without consideration in 2023. Therefore, the
share ownership of the Group decreased by 2.12%.

Note 8: The subsidiary, JollyBuy, increased capital by issuing new shares for cash in November
2022. However, the Group did not acquire additional shares proportionately to its interest,
thus, the share ownership increased by 0.12%. The subsidiary, JollyBuy, redeemed
treasury in August 2022. Therefore, the share ownership increased by 1.1%.

Note 9: The subsidiary, JollyBuy, increased capital by issuing new shares for cash in January, June
and November 2023. However, the Group did not acquire additional shares
proportionately to its interest, thus, the share ownership decreased by 0.11%.

Note 10: On June 30, 2023, the Board of Directors of the subsidiary, NOWnews Network Co.,

Ltd., resolved to acquire a 70% equity interest in Walkermedia Co., T.td.
C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.
E. Significant restrictions: None.

F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group:
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the non-controlling interest amounted to $409,704 and
$436,930, respectively. The information on non-controlling interest and respective subsidiaries is

as follows:
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Non-controlling interest

Principal December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Name of place Ownership Ownership
gubsidiary of busincss Amount (%) Amount (%) Description
AMI and Taiwan and China 5 141,054 56.72% § 150,240 54.60% Note
subsidiaries
Digicentre Taiwan, China and 127,991 32.52% 129,583 32.52%
Company Singapore
Limited and
subsidiaries

Note: Registered location of AMI is British Virgin Islands.

Balance sheets
AMI and subsidiaries

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
Current assets $ 323,536 $ 335,744
Non-current assets 47,581 67,718
Current liabilities ( 119,404) ( 123,067)
Total net assets $ 251,713  § 280,395

Digicentre Company Limited and subsidiaries

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current assets $ 441,984 $ 372,937
Non-current assets 222,323 244,862
Current liabilities ( 258,106) ( 213,561)
Non-current liabilities ( 32,037) ( 36,268)
Total net assets $ 374,164 $ 367,970
Statements of comprehensive income

AMI and subsidiaries
Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Revenue $ 726,851 §$ 542,983
Loss before income tax ( 22.387) ( 6,115)
Income tax expense ( 4,496) -
Loss for the year ( 26,883) ( 6,115)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax ( 877) ( 9,743)
Total comprehensive loss for the year $ 27,760) ($ 15,858)
Comprehensive loss attributable to non-controlling
interest @ 381) ($ 11,849)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest $ - $ -
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Digicentre Company Limited and subsidiarics

Years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Revenue $ 1,296,428 § 1,181,834
Profit before income tax 71,261 56,120
Income tax expense ( 21,370) ( 20,688)
Profit for the year 49,891 35,432
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 3,959
Total comprehensive income for the year $ 49,891 $ 39,391
Comprehensive income attributable to

non-controlling interest $ 17971 §$ 14,404
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (6 11,575) § 5,402
Statements of cash flows

AMI and subsidiaries
Years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 18,150 ($ 10,943)
Net cash provided by investing activitics 3,708 7,010
Net cash used in financing activities 25,328) ( 6,477)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 723) ( 16,801)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,193} ( 27,211)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 101,662 128,873
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 97,469 § 101,662

Digicentre Company Limited and subsidiaries

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 108,288 §$ 108,862
Net cash used in investing activities 23,789) ( 26,319)
Net cash used in financing activities 40,498) ( 58,856)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 35) 6,218
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 43,946 29,905
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 151,119 121,214
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 195,065 §$ 151,119

(4) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company operates (the “functional currency™). The
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consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollars, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(¢) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All other foreign exchange gains and losses based on the nature of those transactions are

presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.
B. Translation of foreign operations

(a) The operating results and financial position of all the Group entities and associates that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:
i. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange

rate at the date of that balance sheet;

ii. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that year; and

iii. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(b) When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is an associate, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on sale. In addition, if the Group retains partial interest in the
former foreign associate after losing significant influence over the former foreign associate,
such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in these foreign operations.

(c) When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a subsidiary, cumulative exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately transferred
to the non-controlling interest in this foreign operation. In addition, when the Group retains
partial interest in the former foreign subsidiary after losing control of the former foreign
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subsidiary, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in the foreign
operations.

(5) Classification of current and non-current items
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to
be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they
are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

(6) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that
meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments in
operations are classified as cash equivalents.

(7) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at

amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the
transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair

value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

(8) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities
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which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. These financial assets are
subsequently remeasured and stated at fair value. The changes in fair value of equity investments
that were recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to retained earnings and are
not reclassified to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends are
recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established, future economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

(9) Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short maturity

period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(10) Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange
for transferred goods or rendered services.
B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(11) Impairment of financial assets
For receivables that have a significant financing component, at each reporting date, the Group

recognises the impairment provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment provision for
the lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition
after taking into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On
the other hand, for receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group
recognises the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(12) Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met:
A. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset expire.

B. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

C. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have been transferred and,
the Group has not retained control of the financial asset.

(13) Leasing arrangements (lessor) - operating leases

Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in
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profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(14) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The original costs are the cost to
obtain the assets. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method. The item by item approach
is used in applying the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the applicable variable selling expenses.

(15) Investments accounted for under the equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly or
indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or/constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate, the Group recognises change in ownership interests in the associate in ‘capital surplus’
in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

E. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Group does not subscribe or acquire new
shares proportionately, which results in a change in the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate but maintains significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and
‘investments accounted for under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for the increase or
decrease of its share of equity interest.

F. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
associate are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, then
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate
are reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

G. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this

associate, the amounts previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are
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transferred to profit or loss. If it retains significant influence over this associate, then the amounts
previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are transferred to profit or
loss proportionately.

(16) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Land is no depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are depreciated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives. Each part
of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are evaluated, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Buildings 3~51 years
Machinery and equipment 2~8 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office equipment 2~8 years
Leasehold improvement 4~5 years
Other equipment 4~8 years

(17) Leasing arrangements (lessee) - right-of-use assets/lease liabilities

A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable. The Group subsequently measures the
lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method and recognises interest expense over
the lease term, The lease liability is remeasured and the amount of remeasurement is recognised
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as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are changes in the lease term or lease
payments and such changes do not arise from contract modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost and the cost is comprised of
the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability. The right-of-use asset is measured
subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term. When the lease liability is
remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use

asset.

(18) Intangible assets
A. Licence fees

Licence fees were prepaid and may be paid in the future for operating online game software, are

stated at cost and amortised based on the period of the contract or reversed in proportion of

operating revenue after online games lauching.

B. Software
Costs of software are stated at cost and amortised under the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 1-5 years.

C. Trademark right

Trademark right is stated at fair value at the acquisition date and regarded as having an indefinite

useful life as it was assessed to generate continuous net cash inflow in the foreseeable future.

Trademark right is not amortised, but is tested annually for impairment.

D. Customer relationships

Customer relationships which are intangible assets acquired during the business combinations

are stated at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their

estimated useful life of 8~12 years.
E. Other intangible assets

(a) Copyrights which are intangible assets acquired during the business combinations are stated
at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful life of 15 years.

(b) Software independent development which is intangible assets acquired during the business
combinations are stated at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful life of 3 years.

(c) Obtaining the relevant licence for the game, distribution bussiness recognised as intangible
assets and special technology with estimated useful life are stated at acquisition and occurred
cost date and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 3~10
years.
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F. Goodwill
Goodwill arises in a business combination accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
Goodwill is recognised in the amount of acquisition price including direct costs of business
combination less the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. The measurement date of
acquisition price must not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

(19) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets in
accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ where there is an indication that they are impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell or value in use. Except for goodwill, when the circumstances or reasons for recognizing
impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is
reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the
depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been
recognised.

B. The recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets that have not definite useful life and
have not yet been available for use shall be evaluated periodically. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss of goodwill previously recognised in profit or loss shall not be reversed in the
following years.

C. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is/are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

(20) Borrowings
It refers to long-term and short-term borrowings from the bank. Borrowings are recognised initially

at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(21) Notes and accounts payable
Notes and accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in

the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Short-term notes and accounts payable which are
non-interest bearing are subsequently measured at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting

1s immaterial.
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(22) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract

is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(23) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as
expense in that period when the employees render service.
B. Pensions
(a) Defined contribution plan
For defined contribution plan, the contributions are recognised as pension expense when they
are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent of
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.
(b) Defined benefit plan
i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount of
pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the Group
in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability; when there is no
deep market in high-quality corporate bonds, the Group uses interest rates of government
bonds (at the balance sheet date) instead.
ii. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plan are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.
C. Termination benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of
employment as a result from either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment
before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of redundancy
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Group recognises expense when it
can no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises related restructuring
costs, whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12 months after balance
sheet date shall be discounted to their present value.
D. Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration
Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration are recognised as expense and liability,
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provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those
amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the
subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates.

(24) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in
the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax
is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each balance sheet
date, unrecognised and recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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F. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the tax credits can be utilised.

(25) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(26) Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities; stock dividends
are recorded as stock dividends to be distributed and are reclassified to ordinary shares on the
effective date of new shares issuance.

(27) Revenue recognition
A, Online and mobile games revenue

(a) The Group is engaged in online games and mobile phone games and sales of peripheral
products of the games, Sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred, that
is, the customer has control of the product and obtained most residual benefit, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer acceptance of the products.

(b) Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into
account business tax, returns, rebates and discounts for the sale of goods based on the contract
price.

(¢) The Group recognises the collections of payments for game stored-value card purchases or
value-added by players as contract liabilities, and amortises those amounts as revenue over
the expected users’ relationship period or the estimated delivery period of the virtual items,
when they are actually used.

(d) The Group recognised accounts receivable when the control of product has been transferred
and has the right to collect price without condition. The accounts receivable has usually a
short-term period and does not contain significant financial component. However, for online
games and mobile phone games, the Group collects the price in advance upon sale, and
recognises the contract liability.

B. Service revenue

The Group recognises customer service revenue, advertisement revenue, E-commerce service
revenue, cloud and information security service revenue when the individual obligation is
fulfilled at a point in time or fulfilled over time. Service revenue is based on contract price. The
sales of services is based on the price stated in the contract. When the contract consideration
includes variable consideration, the Group recognises the minimum amount that is highly likely

to not reverse in the future period.
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C. Revenue from stored-values
The Group is engaged in the sale of game stored-value cards. The purpose of selling game stored-
value cards to players is to offer a tool that allows them to purchase game services from the
Group or another party. When a player purchases a game from another party for which the Group
has no control over the service provided, then the Group merely acts as an intermediary that
facilitates the transaction; the game service is entirely provided by another party. The Group
recognises payments received less amounts paid to another party as revenue.

D. Sales revenue

The Group sell agent products and information security equipment. Sales revenue recognized
when the products transfer control to customer, that is, when the product is delivered to the
customers and the Group has no outstanding obligations that may affect the customer's
acceptance of the product. When the product is shipped to the designated location, the risk of
obsolescence and loss has been transferred to the customer and the customer accepts the product
in accordance with the sales contract or there is objective evidence that all acceptance criteria
have been met, the delivery of the goods will happen. Account receivables are recognised when
the goods are delivered to the customer because the group has the unconditional right for
consideration which can be collected from the customer.

(28) Business combinations

A. The Group uses the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities
incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued at the acquisition date, plus the fair value of
any assets and liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. All
acquisitionrelated costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable asscts acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. For each business combination, the Group measures at the acquisition
date components of non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to the proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation at either fair value or the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the
recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
should be measured at the acquisition-date fair value.

B. The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill at the
acquisition date. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest in the acquiree
recognized and the fair value of previously held equity interest in the acquiree is less than the
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss on the acquisition date.
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(29) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments.

. CRITICAIL. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION
UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical

judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies
Revenue recognition on a net/gross basis

The Group determines whether the nature of its performance obligation is to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for the other party to provide those
goods or services (i.e. the Group is an agent) based on the transaction model and its economic
substance. The Group is a principal if it controls a promised good or service before it transfers the
good or service to a customer. The Group recognises revenue at gross amount of consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services transferred. The Group is an
agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of goods or services by another
party. The Group recognises revenue at the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the other party to provide its goods or services.

Indicators that the Group controls the good or service before it is provided to a customer include the
following:

A. The Group is primarily responsible for the provision of goods or services.

B. The Group assumes the inventory risk before transferring the specified goods or services to the

customer or after transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

C. The Group has discretion in establishing prices for the goods or services.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
A. Revenue recognition
The Group recognises the collections of payments for game stored-value card purchases or value-
added by plavers as contract liabilities, and amortises those amounts as revenue over expected
users’ relationship periods or the estimated delivery period of the virtual items, when they are
actually used. The Group estimates the deferred amount and delivery period based on operating
history and other known factors. Given that the Group has extensive list of virtual items spread

across thousands of users and the estimation of delivery period for virtual items may be complex,
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the Group assesses the reasonableness of the estimation periodically. Please refer to Note 6(22)

for the information on revenue recognition.
B. Impairment assessment of licence fees

The impairment assessment of licence fees depend on the Group’s subjective judgement. The
recoverable amount is determined based on estimated online game revenue arising from expected
game points used by players and budget expenditures.

C. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The impairment assessment of goodwill relies on the Group’s subjective judgement, including
identifying cash-generating units, allocating assets and liabilities as well as goodwill to related
cash-generating units, and determining the recoverable amounts of related cash-generating units.
Please refer to Note 6(14) for the information on goodwill impairment.
6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Cash on hand $ 1,762 $ 2,337

Demand deposits and checking
accounts 2,145,958 2,677,247
Cash equivalents - time deposits 1,009,660 1,057,735
$ 3,157,380 §$ 3,737,319

A. The Group deals with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse
credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

B. Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents pledged to others as collateral that have been
classified as financial assets (shown as ‘other current assets’) are provided in Note 8.

(2) Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Notes receivable $ 64 $ 11

Accounts receivable $ 613,834 § 832,665
Less: Loss allowance ( 9,357) ( 47,299)

604,477 785,366

Overdue receivables (shown as

other non-current assets) 149,388 114,261
Less: Loss allowance ( 149,388) ( 114,261)

$ 604,477 § 785,366
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A. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Not past due $ 577,301 $ 760,730
Up to 30 days 19,559 19,759
31~60 days 3,014 2,622
61~90 days 3,346 2,914
91~120 days 3,387 169
Over 121 days 7,227 46,471

$ 613,834 $ 832,665

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

B. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has no notes receivable past due.

C. As at December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and January 1, 2022, the balances of receivables
(including notes and overdue receivables) from contracts with customers amounted to $763,286,

$946,937 and $1,035,832, respectively.

D. The Group does not hold any collateral. Further, the Group has no notes and accounts receivable

pledged to others as collateral.

E. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the Group’s notes receivable was $64 and $11, and accounts receivable was $604,477 and

$785,366, respectively.
F. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable is provided in Note 12(2).
(3) Other receivables
December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
Other receivables $ 660,566 $ 535,210
Less: Loss allowance ( 5,395) ( 2,253)
$ 655,171 § 532,957

A. The ageing analysis of other receivables that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Not past due $ 598,538 $ 481,424
Up to 30 days 29,541 17,165
31 to 60 days 7,504 5,779
61 to 90 days 7,148 9,165
91 to 120 days 5,748 9,853
Over 121 days 12,087 11,824

$ 660,566 $ 535,210

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.



B. The Group does not hold any collateral for other receivables. Further, the Group has no other
receivables pledged to others as collateral.

C. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the Group’s other receivables was $655,172 and $532,957, respectively.

D. Information relating to credit risk of other receivables is provided in Note 12(2).
(4) Inventories

December 31, 2023

Allowance for
obsolescence and
market value
Cost decline Book value
Merchandise inventory $ 127,223 ($ 18,232) § 108,991

December 31, 2022

Allowance for
obsolescence and

market value
Cost decline Book value
Merchandise inventory $ 147,349 ($ 18,422) $ 128,927
Expenses and losses incurred on inventories for the year:
Years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Cost of goods sold $ 562,582 $ 384,423
{(Gain on reversal of) loss on decline in market value  ( 190) 1,230

$ 562,392 $ 385,653

(3) Prepayments
December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Prepayments to suppliers $ 159,665 $ 166,891
Prepaid expenses 89,913 81,718
Excess business tax paid 94,902 68,859
Others 5,398 4,109

$ 349,878 § 321,577
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(6) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Items December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022
Non-current items:
Equity instruments

OTC stocks $ 78,376 §$ 78,376
Emerging stocks 20,546 20,546
Unlisted, non-OTC and non-emerging stocks 425,894 425,894
524,816 524,816

Valuation adjustment ( 411,942) ( 407,235)
$ 112,874 $ 117,581

A. The Group has elected to classify investments that are considered to be strategic investments as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value of such
investments amounted to $112,874 and $117,581 as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

B. In 2022, in line with the Group’s business development and resource allocation plan, the Group
sold its 5.42% equity interest in Microprogram Information Co., Ltd. at fair value in the amount
of $31,208. The cumulative loss on disposal of Microprogram Information Co., Ltd. was $24,440.

C. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income or loss in relation to the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Change of fair value recognised in other
comprehensive (loss) income ¢ 4,701) $ 53,330
Cumulative loss reclassified to retained
earnings due to derecognition $ - (8 24,440)

D. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged to
others as collateral.

(7) Financial assets at amortised cost

Items December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Current items:
Time deposit with maturity of more than

three months $ 83,977 $ 148,694
Non-current items:

Demand deposits 725 -

$ 84,702 $ 148,694




A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortised cost are listed
below:
Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Interest income $ 937 $ 745

B. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group was $84,702 and $148,694, respectively.

C. Details of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others as collateral are provided
in Note 8.

D. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortised cost is provided in Note 12(2).
The counterparties of the Group’s investments in certificates of deposits are financial institutions
with high credit quality, so the Group expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

(%) Investments accounted for under equity method

2023 2022

At January 1 $ 135,404 $ 121,309
Addition of investments accounted for under

equity method 6,400 44,770
Transformation of subsidiary from associate (Note)  ( 1,791) -
Share of loss of investments accounted for under

equity method ( 22,115) ( 30,434)
Earnings distribution of investments accounted for

under equity method ( 831) ( 622)
Disposal of investments accounted for using equity

method - ( 8)
Changes in other equity items ( 106) ( 313)
Effects of foreign exchange 29 702
At December 31 $ 116,990 $ 135,404

Note: On June 30, 2023, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in WalkerMedia, which became a
subsidiary of the Group. The related information on business combination is provided in Note
6(32).
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A. List of long-term investments:

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Ovwmnership Owmnership
Name of associates percentage Balance percentage Balance
Jsdway Digital Technology Co.,

Ltd. (Jsdway) 37.183 % 50,559 37.18 § 49 485
Hao-Ji Film 1td. (Hao-Ii) 42.86 27,082 42.86 30,021
Chuang Meng Shr Ji Co., Ltd.

(Chuang Meng Shr J.) 33.03 21,356 33.03 22,984
Walkermedia Co., Ltd.

{(Walkermedia) (Note 3) 30.00 - 30.00 5,105
Aotter Inc. {Aotter) 2148 ( 133) 21.48 6,045
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd.

(Taiwan e-sports) 29.54 - 29.54 7,224
Store Marais Co., Ltd. (Marais)

{Note 1) 7.69 8,466 7.69 11,192
Pri-One Marketing Co., Ltd.

{(Pri-One) 30.00 3,509 30.00 3,348
Entron Technology Co., Ltd.

(Note 1) 14.16 6,151 - -
Gungho Gamania Co., Limited

{Gungho Gamania) 49.00 - 49.00 -
Ju Shr Da Jiu (Shanghai)

International Trading Co.,

Ltd. (Ju Shr Da Jin) (Note 2) 30.00 - 30.00 -
Firedog creative Co., Ltd.

{Note 2) 40.00 - 40.00 -

$ 116,990 $ 135,404

Note 1: The Group has significant control as it has obtained majority of the board seats and,
accordingly, the investment was accounted for under equity method.

Note 2: All impairment losses derived from equity investments have been recognised based on

the Company’s assessment.

Note 3: On June 30, 2023, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in WalkerMedia, which

became a subsidiary of the Group. The related information on business combination is

provided in Note 6(32).

B. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s individually immaterial
associates amounted to $116,990 and $135,404, respectively. The Group’s share of the operating

results are summarised below:
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Years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Loss for the year 3 22,115) ($ 30,434)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax ( 106) ( 313)
Total comprehensive loss ¢ 22,221) ($ 30,747)

C. There is no price in open market for associates of the Group, therefore, no fair value is applicable.

D. The Group is the single largest shareholder of Jsdway with a 37.18% equity interest. Given that
the remaining 62.82% equity interest in Jsdway is held by other few investors and the number of
votes of minority voting rights holders has exceeded the Group’s votes as they acted together, this
indicates that the Group has no current ability to direct the relevant activities of Jsdway.
Accordingly, the Group has no control, but only has significant influence, over the investee.
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(9) Property, plant and equipment

Unfinished
construction
and equipment
Transportation Office Leasehold Other under
Land Buildings ~ Machinery equipment equipment  improvements equipment acceptance Total
At January 1, 2023
Cost $ 2,246,082 % 558,612 §$ 424299 § 1,245 §$ 102,697 $ 26,301 $ 53,130 § 2,125 § 3,414,491
Accumulated depreciation - ( 203,635) ( 296,269) ( 1,185) ( 55,681) ( 11,889) ( 27,012) - ( 595,671)
Accumulated impairment - - ( 6,382) - - - - - ( 6,382)
$ 2,246,082 § 354977 §$ 121,648 $ 60 $ 47,016 $ 14,412 § 26,118 § 2,125 § 2,812,438
2023
Opening net book amount
as at January 1 § 2,246,082 § 354977 § 121,648 $ 60 % 47,016 $ 14412 § 26,118 § 2,125 § 2,812,438
Additions - 29,467 63,949 - 28915 6,443 5,774 24,538 159,086
Acquired from business
combinations - - - - 436 - - - 436
Disposals - - ( 1) - ( 148) - - - ( 149)
Transfers - 5,176 - - - 13,957 145 ( 19,278) -
Depreciation charge - ( 42,198) ( 56,575) - ( 18,832) ( 6,001) ¢ 11,742) - 135348)
Net exchange differences - - 14 - ( 10) - - - 4
Closing net book amount
as at December 31 $ 2,246,082 % 347422 $ 129,035 $ 60 % 57377 % 28,811 $ 20,295 §$ 7,385 $§ 2,836,467
At December 31, 2023
Cost 5 2,246,082 § 592,135 § 416,181 $ 1,223 3 119,064 § 46,471 $ 49,579 § 7.385 § 3,478,120
Accumulated depreciation (0 244T13)( 280,764) ( 1,163) ( 61,687) ( 17,660) 29,284) - 635271)
Accumulated impairment - - ( 6,382) - - - - - ( 6,382)
$ 2,246,082 §$ 347,422 § 129,035 $ 60 $ 57377 % 28,811 § 20,295 § 7,385 § 2,836,467
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At January 1, 2022

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment

2022

Opening net book amount
as at January 1

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Depreciation charge

Net exchange differences

Closing net book amount
as at December 31

At December 31, 2022
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment

A. The Group’s property, plant and equipment are mainly owner-occupied.

Unfinished

construction
and equipment
Transportation Office Leasehold Other under
Land Buildings ~_ Machinery equipment equipment  improvements equipment acceptance Total

$ 2,246,082 §$ 536,582 § 429755 $ 1,226 $ 92428 §$ 36,134 § 44,122 $ 8,091 $ 3,394,420
- ( 168,055) ( 318,996) ( 1,166) ( 53,008) ( 30,890) ( 18,656) - 590,771)
- - ( 6,382) - - - - - 6,382)
$ 2246,082 § 368,527 § 104,377 $ 60 % 39420 $ 5244 § 25466 $ 8,091 $§ 2,797,267
$ 2,246,082 § 368,527 § 104,377 $ 60 $ 39420 §$ 5244 § 25466 $ 8,091 $ 2,797,267
- 9,016 75,111 - 23,147 11,342 9,600 15,768 143,984
- - - - ( 290) - - - 290)
- 15,489 - - - 3,352 2,893 ( 21,734) -
- ( 38,055) ( 58,156) - ( 15,286) ( 5,528) ( 11,841) - ( 128,866)
- - 316 - 25 2 - - 343
$ 2,246,082 § 354,977 § 121,648 $ 60 3 47,016 $ 14412 § 26,118 $ 2,125 § 2,812,438
$ 2,246,082 $ 558,612 § 424299 § 1,245 § 102,697 § 26,301 § 53,130 § 2,125 $ 3,414,491
- ( 203,635) ( 296,269) ( 1,185) ( 55,681) ( 11,889) ( 27.012) - ( 595,671)
- - ( 6,382) - - - - - 6,382)
$ 2,246,082 § 354,977 § 121,648 § 60 $ 47,016 $ 14,412 § 26,118 § 2,125 § 2,812,438

B. No borrowing cost was capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment.

C. Information about the property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral is provided in Note 8.
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(10) Leasing arrangements - lessee

A. The Group leases various assets including buildings, parking lot, machinery and business vehicles.

Rental contracts are typically made for periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

. Short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less comprise buildings and multifunction

printers. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, payvments of lease commitments for
short-term leases amounted to $6,258 and $10,376, respectively.

C. The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

D.

Book value
December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022
Buildings $ 73,982 § 55,606
Land improvements 3,113 322
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) 883 1,903
Machinery 11,148 16,102
$ 89,126 $ 73,933
Depreciation charge
Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Buildings $ 27,768 §$ 24,078
Land improvements 1,360 1,288
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) 1,020 1,848
Machinery 4,954 4,955
$ 35,102 § 32,169

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the additions to right-of-use assets were
$50,247 and $11,809, respectively.

E. Information on profit or loss in relation to lease contracts is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 902 $ 743
Expense on short-term lease contracts $ 6,258 $ 10,376
Gain on lease modification $ 3 8 -

F. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases were

$42,077 and $44,258, respectively.
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(11) Leasing arrangements - lessor

A. The Group leases various assets including buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for
periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. To protect the lessor’s ownership rights on the leased
assets, leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

B. Gain arising from operating lease agreements for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Rent income $ 1,390 $ 1,220

C. The maturity analysis of the lease payments under the operating leases is as follows:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

2023 - 914
2024 914 914
2025 914 914
2026 305 305

$ 2,133 § 3,047
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(12) Intangible assets

Other Trademark Customer
License fees Software intangible assets right relationship Goodwill Total

At January 1, 2023
Cost $ 1,140,099 $ 98,023 § 179,132 § 10,090 197,132 § 386,238 $ 2,010,714
Accumulated amortisation ( 363,452) ( 45,384) ( 50,005) - 92,559) - ( 551,400)
Accumulated impairment ( 46,631) - ( 85,369) - - ( 148,924) ( 280,924)

$ 730,016 $ 52,639 $ 43,758 § 10,090 104,573 § 237,314 § 1,178,390
2023
Opening net book amount as at January 1 $ 730,016 § 52,639 § 43,758 § 10,090 104,573 § 237,314 § 1,178,390
Additions 308,787 56,262 172 - - - 365,221
Acquired from business combinations - 38 - - - 7.744 7,782
Reclassifications (Note) - 4,286 - - - - 4,286
Amortisation charge ( 386,954) ( 62,824) ( 11,432) - 15,346) - ( 476,556)
Net exchange differences ( 1,089) - { 526) - - ( 617) ( 2,232)
Closing net book amount as at December 31 $ 650,760 $ 50,401 § 31,972 § 10,090 89,227 § 244441 § 1,076,891
At December 31, 2023
Cost $ 1,346,939 $ 106,660 $ 97413 § 10,090 198,531 § 393,975 § 2,153,608
Accumulated amortisation ( 651,929) ( 56,259) ( 64,386) - 109,304) - ( 881,878)
Accumulated impairment ( 44,250) - ( 1,055) - - ( 149,534) ( 194,839)

$ 650,760 $ 50,401 § 31,972 § 10,090 89,227 § 244441 $§ 1,076,891

Note: From prepaid expense transferred to intangible assets.
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Other Trademark Customer
License fees Software intangible assets right relationship Goodwill Total

At January 1, 2022
Cost $ 1,617,093 § 89,531 § 165,930 $ 10,090 $ 195,700 $ 381,572 8§ 2,459,916
Accumulated amortisation ( 1,425,861) ( 40,438) ( 38,264) - ( 72,543) - ( 1,577,106)
Accumulated impairment ( 75,870) - ( 29,375) - - ( 146,821) ( 252,066)

$ 115,362 § 49,003 § 98,291 § 10,090 $ 123,157 § 234,751 § 630,744
2022
Opening net book amount as at January 1 $ 115,362 § 49,093 §$ 98291 $ 10,090 $ 123,157 § 234,751 $ 630,744
Additions 978,759 65,183 10,504 - - - 1,054,446
Amortisation charge ( 330,376) ( 61,807) ( 10,175) - ( 18,838) - ( 421,196)
Impairment loss (Note) ( 36,353) - ( 56,810) - - - ( 93,163)
Net exchange differences 2,624 170 1,948 - 254 2,563 7,559
Closing net bock amount as at December 31  § 730,016 $ 52,639 $ 43,758 % 10,090 $ 104,573 § 237,314 $ 1,178,390
At December 31, 2022
Cost $ 1,140,099 $ 98,023 §$ 179,132 § 10,090 $ 197,132 $ 386238 $ 2,010,714
Accumulated amortisation ( 363,452) ( 45,384) ( 50,005) - ( 92,559) - ( 551,400)
Accumulated impairment ( 46,631) - ( 85,369) - - ( 148,924) ( 280,924)

$ 730,016 $ 52,639 § 43,758 § 10,090 $ 104,573 $ 237314 $ 1,178,390

Note: For impairment loss, refer to Note 6(14).
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A. The details of amortisation are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Operating costs $ 396,477 $ 359,745
Selling expenses 23,172 18,619
General and administrative expenses 33,711 24,772
Research and development expenses 23,196 18,060
$ 476,556 $ 421,196

B. The Group acquired registered trademark from the acquisition of NOWnews. As the trademark
is assessed to have indefinite useful life, it shall not be amortised but shall be tested for
impairment annually.

C. Goodwill and trademark with an indefinite useful life are allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to operating segment as follows:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Goodwill:
NOWnews $ 197,055 $ 197,055
Digicentre 141,149 141,149
AMI 18,914 18,917
GIH 27,438 27,442
Walkermedia (Note) 7,744 -
Others 1,638 1,675
393,938 386,238
Less: Accumulated impairment ( 149,534) ( 148,924)
$ 244,404 § 237,314
Trademark:
NOWnews $ 10,090 $ 10,090

Note: On June 30, 2023, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in WalkerMedia, which
became a subsidiary of the Group. The related information on business combination is
provided in Note 6(32).

Acquisition prices for business combination are calculated based on the price of acquisition and

related direct costs. The amount of goodwill recognised is the difference of the acquisition price

less the net fair value of identifiable assets acquired. The allocation period of acquisition price
may not exceed one year after the acquisition.

D. The Group’s goodwill acquired in a business combination consisting of expected operating
revenue growth from acquired companies and benefits from its potential customer relations. In
accordance with IAS 36, goodwill acquired from business combination shall be tested for
impairment every year and when there is any indication that it might have been impaired. The
impairment testing on goodwill as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
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(a)

(b

For the impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the business combination. Each company may be a cash-generating unit which can
generate independent cash flows. Thus, the impairment of goodwill is calculated based on
the difference between the recoverable amount and carrying amount of net assets of each
company.

The Group used value-in-use calculated by external appraiser to be the recoverable amount
of subsidiaries, NOWnews and Digicentre, at December 31, 2023 and 2022. As the
recoverable amount of NOWnews and Digicentre was higher than the carrying amount at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, goodwill was not impaired. The main assumptions used in
calculating value-in-use by external appraiser are set out below:

December 31,2023 December 31, 2022
Growth rate 2.8%~4.7% 2.4%~6.4%
Discount rate 10.8%~13.3% 14.0%~14.2%

(c) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, aside from NOWnews and Digicentre, the recoverable

CY

amounts of cash-generating units were calculated based on value-in-use. Because the
recoverable amounts exceeded the carrying amount, goodwill was not impaired. The key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations take into consideration operating profit
margin, growth rate and discount rate.

Management determined the budgeted operating profit margin based on past performance and
their expectations of market development. The weighted average growth rates are consistent
with the projection in industry reports. The discount rates were pre-tax and reflected specific
risks relating to the relevant operating segments.

(13) Other non-current assets

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Overdue receivables $ 149,388 $§ 114,261
Less: Loss allowance for overdue receivables ( 149,388) ( 114,261)
Refundable deposits 43,954 46,931
Prepayments for intangible assets 162,636 -
Others 6,743 10,810
$ 213,333 § 57,741

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group recognised impairment loss of $0 and $93,163 for the years ended December 31, 2023

and 2022, respectively. Details of such loss are as follows:
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